
AGENDA

G Ŵ Y S  Y  C Y N G O R

At holl aelodau'r cyngor

Rydych dan wŷs trwy hyn i ddod i

GYFARFOD Y CYNGOR

i'w gynnal am 2.00 pm 

DYDD MERCHER, 9 MEDI 2020 Dydd Mercher, 9 Medi 2020

Yn
 

O BELL TRWY MICROSOFT TEAMS

Sicrhewch Fod Eich Ffonau Symudol Yn Dawel Trwy Gydol Y Cyfarfod

--- A G E N D A ---

RHAN A

1. Cyhoeddiadau'r Maer.  

2. Datganiadau o fuddiannau  

3. Derbyn cofnodion cyfarfod blaenorol y cyngor a'u cadarnhau os 
ystyrir bod hyn yn addas:Y Flwyddyn Ddinesig 2020/2021  
(Tudalennau 3 - 38)

29 Ionawr 2020, 14 Chwefror 2020, 26 Chwefror  2020, 6 Mawrth 
2020, 28 Mai 2020 and 2 Gorffennaf 2020



RHAN B

4. Deddf Trwyddedu 2003 - Adolygu'r Polisi Trwyddedu  (Tudalennau 
39 - 116)
Adroddiad gan Bennaeth y Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol.

RHAN D

5. Cwestiynau gan Aelodau, â Hysbysiad, dan Reol 9.2 Rheolau 
Gweithdrefnau'r Cyngor  

6. Eitemau brys  
Any urgent items (whether public or exempt) at the discretion of the 
Mayor pursuant to Section 100B (4) (b) of the Local Government 
Act 1972.

Prif Weithredwr

CANOLFAN DDINESIG, 
PORT TALBOT

Dydd Iau, 3 Medi 2020



- 30 -

Dydd Mercher, 29 Ionawr 2020

CYNGOR

(CANOLFAN DDINESIG PORT TALBOT) 

Aelodau sy’n Bresennol: Dydd Mercher, 29 Ionawr 2020

Y Maer: Councillor  S.Jones

Y Dirprwy Faer Councillor J.Warman

Cynghorwyr: A.R.Aubrey, S.Bamsey, D.Cawsey, H.C.Clarke, 
C.Clement-Williams, M.Crowley, S.apDafydd, 
A.P.H.Davies, N.J.E.Davies, O.S.Davies, 
R.Davies, C.Galsworthy, W.F.Griffiths, J.Hale, 
N.T.Hunt, S.K.Hunt, C.James, H.N.James, 
C.J.Jones, D.Jones, J.Jones, L.Jones, 
R.G.Jones, D.Keogh, S.A.Knoyle, E.V.Latham, 
D.Lewis, A.Llewelyn, A.R.Lockyer, A.McGrath, 
J.Miller, R.Mizen, S.M.Penry, D.M.Peters, 
M.Protheroe, S.Pursey, S.Rahaman, P.A.Rees, 
S.Renkes, S.H.Reynolds, A.J.Richards, 
P.D.Richards, M.Spooner, R.L.Taylor, 
D.Whitelock, C.Williams, R.W.Wood a/ac 
A.N.Woolcock

Swyddogion sy’n 
Bresennol:

S.Phillips, H.Jenkins,  A.Evans, A.Jarrett, 
N.Pearce, K.Jones, C.Griffiths, C.Morris,  
C.Furlow-Harris and  A.Manchipp

Cynrychiolwyr o’r 
Gwasanaeth 
Cyfieithu:

Present

1. CYHOEDDIADAU'R MAER. 

Roedd yn ofid mawr i'r Maer hysbysu'r cyngor am farwolaeth y 
canlynol :

Tad Arweinydd y Cyngor:
Tad y Cynghorydd Suzanne Renkes:
Gwraig y Cynghorydd Mike Harvey a 
chyn-Bennaeth Dros Dro Rheoli Newid ac Arloesi, Mr Philip Graham. 

Tudalen3

Eitem yr Agenda3



- 31 -

Dydd Mercher, 29 Ionawr 2020

Fel arwydd o barch, safodd y cyngor am funud o dawelwch.

2. DERBYN COFNODION CYFARFOD BLAENOROL Y CYNGOR A'U 
CADARNHAU OS YSTYRIR BOD HYN YN ADDAS: 

PENDERFYNWYD:Cadarnhau cofnodion cyfarfod y cyngor isod fel 
cofnod cywir:-

16 Hydref a 27 Tachwedd, 2019.

3. CYNLLUN GOSTYNGIADAU TRETH Y CYNGOR 

PENDERFYNWYD:Y bydd y cyngor yn cymeradwyo'r canlynol 
mewn perthynas â sefydlu ei Gynllun 
Gostyngiadau Treth y Cyngor ar gyfer 
blwyddyn ariannol 2020/2021:

 Cymeradwyo Rheoliadau Cynlluniau 
Gostyngiadau'r Dreth Gyngor a Gofynion 
Rhagnodedig (Cymru) 2013 fel y'u 
diwygiwyd ymhellach gan Reoliadau 
Cynlluniau Gostyngiadau'r Dreth Gyngor 
(Gofynion Rhagnodedig a Chynllun Diofyn) 
(Cymru) (Diwygio) 2020; 

 Cymeradwyo cadw'r elfennau dewisol 
presennol mewn perthynas â'r Cynllun 
Rhagnodedig:

(a)       Na ddylid cymhwyso unrhyw gynnydd 
yn y cyfnod ôl-ddyddio ar gyfer pob 
hawliwr o'r 3 mis safonol a gynhwysir yn 
y Cynllun Rhagnodedig.

(b)      Na ddylid cymhwyso unrhyw gynnydd yn 
y cyfnod gostyngiad estynedig ar gyfer 
pob hawliwr o'r 4 wythnos safonol sydd 
wedi'u cynnwys yn y Cynllun 
Rhagnodedig ar hyn o bryd.

(c)      Cymhwyso diystyriad 100% ar gyfer 
Pensiynau Anabledd Rhyfel, Pensiynau 

Tudalen4



- 32 -

Dydd Mercher, 29 Ionawr 2020

Rhyfel Gwŷr a Gwragedd Gweddw ar 
gyfer pob hawliwr.

4. CYNLLUN DATBLYGU LLEOL CASTELL-NEDD PORT TALBOT 
2011-2026 

                            Cyflwynwyd yr eitem gan Arweinydd y Cyngor. 
Cytunodd yr Aelodau ar bwysigrwydd cynyddu 
ymwybyddiaeth y cyhoedd o'r adolygiad. Yn 
benodol, mynegodd aelodau'r farn ynghylch y 
cydbwysedd rhwng trefi, cymoedd a'r ardaloedd 
arfordirol. Gellid edrych ar bolisïau ynghylch, er 
enghraifft, Tai Amlfeddiannaeth yn ystod yr 
adolygiad.

                            Yna nododd yr Aelodau y byddai'r Cynllun Datblygu 
Lleol presennol (CDLl) yn estyn tan 2026, a byddai'r 
cynllun newydd yn cwmpasu'r cyfnod rhwng 2020 a 
2035.  Byddai'r adolygiad ei hun yn cymryd pedair 
blynedd ac yn parhau i gyfnod y cyngor newydd yn 
2022.

                            Anogodd swyddogion yr Aelodau i gysylltu â 
swyddogion pe bai ganddynt unrhyw ymholiadau.

PENDERFYNWYD: Cymeradwyo Adroddiad Adolygu'r Cynllun      
Datblygu Lleol (CDLl) drafft, fel y'i nodir yn Atodiad 
1 i'r adroddiad a ddosbarthwyd, fel un a fydd yn sail 
ar gyfer ymgynghori wedi'i dargedu ac y byddai'r 
gweithdrefnau cyhoeddi ac ymgynghori fel y'u nodir 
ynddo'n cael eu rhoi ar waith.

5. PWYLLGOR SAFONAU CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL 
CASTELL-NEDD PORT TALBOT - AELOD O'R CYNGOR 
TREF/CYMUNED 

PENDERFYNWYD: Penodi'r Cynghorydd Cymuned, Carl    Williams, 
i gynrychioli'r cynghorwyr cymunedol ar y Pwyllgor 
Safonau ac y dylid penodi'r Cynghorydd Tref, Gerry 
Reynolds, yn ddirprwy.

Tudalen5



- 33 -

Dydd Mercher, 29 Ionawr 2020

6. NEWIDIADAU I'R CYLCH CYFARFODYDD 

                            Gofynnodd yr Aelodau a fyddai modd ystyried 
cyfyngu cyfarfodydd yn ystod gwyliau'r ysgol, os yw 
hynny'n bosib, pan fydd y cylch pwyllgor ar gyfer y 
flwyddyn ddinesig newydd yn cael ei gwblhau.

PENDERFYNWYD:  Am y rhesymau a geir yn yr adroddiad a 
ddosbarthwyd, y bydd amlder cyfarfodydd y 
Pwyllgor Craffu Gofal Cymdeithasol, Iechyd a 
Lles/Bwrdd y Cabinet yn dychwelyd i gylch chwe 
wythnos tan flwyddyn ddinesig newydd 2020/2021 
ac y dylid rhoi ystyriaeth bellach i gyfyngu 
cyfarfodydd yn ystod cyfnodau gwyliau ysgol.

7. DERBYN Y CANLYNOL AC UNRHYW GWESTIYNAU A OFYNNIR 
GAN YR AELODAU, NEU UNRHYW FATERION SYDD I'W CODI 
GAN AELODAU’R CABINET:- 

PENDERFYNWYD: Nodi'r canlynol:-

Y Cabinet 30 Hydref 2019
Gofal Cymdeithasol, Iechyd a Lles 17 Hydref 2019  
Adfywio a Datblygu Cynaliadwy 18 Hydref 2019 

Adfywio a Datblygu Cynaliadwy 29 Tachwedd 2019 

8. EITEMAU BRYS 

Gyda chaniatâd y Maer, codwyd yr eitem ganlynol fel eitem frys.

Rhesymau dros y brys:

Oherwydd yr elfen amser.

 

Tudalen6



- 34 -

Dydd Mercher, 29 Ionawr 2020

 
9. BARGEN DDINESIG BAE ABERTAWE 

Dywedodd Arweinydd y Cyngor wrth yr aelodau fod prosiectau'r 
awdurdod a oedd wedi'u hailweithio wedi'u cymeradwyo mewn 
cyfarfod o'r Cydbwyllgor a gynhaliwyd ar 28 Ionawr 2020.  Gwerth y 
prosiect oedd tua £60m, y byddai £45m ohono'n dod o gronfa 
Rhaglen y Fargen Ddinesig. Byddai'r prosiectau yn awr yn cael eu 
hanfon ymlaen at Lywodraeth y DU a Llywodraeth Cymru i'w 
cymeradwyo.  

Roedd yr Aelodau'n falch o'r newyddion a nodwyd bod cyfarwyddwr 
rhaglen newydd wedi'i benodi i Swyddfa Rhaglen y Fargen Ddinesig.

CHAIRPERSON

Tudalen7



Mae’r dudalen hon yn fwriadol wag

Tudalen8



- 35 -

Dydd Gwener, 14 Chwefror 2020

CYNGOR

(CANOLFAN DDINESIG PORT TALBOT) 

Aelodau sy’n Bresennol: Dydd Gwener, 14 Chwefror 2020

Y Maer: Councillor  S.Jones

Y Dirprwy Faer Councillor J.Warman

Cynghorwyr: A.R.Aubrey, S.Bamsey, D.Cawsey, H.C.Clarke, 
C.Clement-Williams, M.Crowley, S.apDafydd, 
A.P.H.Davies, O.S.Davies, R.Davies, 
C.Edwards, S.E.Freeguard, C.Galsworthy, 
W.F.Griffiths, J.Hale, S.Harris, S.K.Hunt, 
J.Hurley, C.James, H.N.James, C.J.Jones, 
D.Jones, H.Jones, J.Jones, L.Jones, 
R.G.Jones, D.Keogh, S.A.Knoyle, E.V.Latham, 
D.Lewis, A.Llewelyn, A.R.Lockyer, A.McGrath, 
J.Miller, S.Miller, R.Mizen, J.D.Morgan, 
S.Paddison, D.M.Peters, R.Phillips, 
M.Protheroe, L.M.Purcell, S.Pursey, P.A.Rees, 
S.Renkes, S.H.Reynolds, A.J.Richards, 
P.D.Richards, A.J.Taylor, R.L.Taylor, 
D.Whitelock, C.Williams, R.W.Wood a/ac 
A.N.Woolcock

Swyddogion sy’n 
Bresennol:

S.Phillips, H.Jenkins, A.Evans, C.Griffiths,
C.Morris, A.Bradshaw, C.Furlow-Harris a/ac
A.Manchipp

Cynrychiolwyr o’r 
Gwasanaeth 
Cyfieithu:

Cyflwyno

1. CYHOEDDIADAU'R MAER. 

Gyda thristwch mawr yr hysbysodd y Maer y cyngor am farwolaeth y 
cyn-Gynghorydd Stan Mason, a fu’n cynrychioli Ward Margam, ac a 
oedd yn chwaer i’r Cynghorydd Sheila Penry.

Fel arwydd o barch, safodd y cyngor am funud o ddistawrwydd.

Tudalen9



- 36 -

Dydd Gwener, 14 Chwefror 2020

Roedd y Maer yn falch o gyhoeddi y byddai Mrs Louise Fleet JP yn 
olynu D Byron Lewis fel Arglwydd Raglaw Gorllewin Morgannwg o 16 
Mawrth 2020.

2. ADOLYGIAD ETHOLIADOL: CASTELL-NEDD PORT TALBOT 

Ystyriodd yr Aelodau yr adroddiad uchod gan nodi nad oedd y 
goblygiadau a ddeilliai o leihau'r oedran etholiad wedi'u cynnwys yn y 
cynigion na hefyd y cynnydd yn nifer yr etholwyr o ganlyniad i'r 
mewnlifiad o fyfyrwyr.  

Teimlai rhai Aelodau fod y cynigion yn effeithio ar gymunedau'r 
cymoedd mewn modd anghymesur drwy leihau cynrychiolaeth 
aelodau ac effeithio'n andwyol ar hunaniaethau'r cymoedd.  Nid oedd 
ystyriaeth wedi'i rhoi i'r effaith y byddai'r cynigion yn ei chael ar y 
preswylwyr.

Roedd rhai Aelodau'n anhapus â'r argymhellion a gafwyd yn yr 
adroddiad a ddosbarthwyd, yn arbennig:
 

 Y bwriad i alinio wardiau Pelenna, Bryn a Chwmafon.
 Y bwriad i gyfuno wardiau Glyn-nedd a Blaengwrach.
 Y bwriad i gyfuno wardiau Pontardawe a Threbannws.
 Y cynnig ar gyfer ward Aberafan.

Roedd atodiad wedi'i ddosbarthu, cyn y cyfarfod, yn amlinellu 
pryderon Grŵp Plaid Cymru ac yn cynnig diwygiad i'r argymhellion a 
gafwyd yn yr Adroddiad ar y cyd.   

Atgoffwyd yr Aelodau fod y ddogfen ymgynghori wedi'i chyhoeddi gan 
y Comisiwn Ffiniau ac na ellid ystyried lefelau amddifadedd, troseddu 
ac ati.  Roedd y cynigion yn seiliedig ar niferoedd y boblogaeth.  

Cafodd y diwygiad a gynhwyswyd yn yr atodiad ei gyflwyno yn y 
cyfarfod.  Methodd hyn ac ystyriwyd y prif argymhelliad fel y'i 
cynhwyswyd yn yr Adroddiad ar y Cyd.

Tudalen10



- 37 -

Dydd Gwener, 14 Chwefror 2020

 PENDERFYNIAD: Dylid awdurdodi'r Prif Weithredwr i gyflwyno 
ymateb i'r Comisiwn Ffiniau yn seiliedig ar yr 
asesiad gan swyddogion a gynhwysir yn yr 
adroddiad a ddosbarthwyd.

3. BIL LLYWODRAETH LEOL AC ETHOLIADAU (CYMRU) 

PENDERFYNWYD: 1.  Nodi cynigion Llywodraeth                      
Cymru i ddiwygio a chryfhau llywodraeth leol a 
gwella trefniadau etholiadol, fel a nodir ym Mesur Llywodraeth Leol 
ac Etholiadau (Cymru).
2.  Ar ôl ystyried y dystiolaeth a gyflwynwyd gan Gymdeithas 
Llywodraeth Leol Cymru i'r Pwyllgor Cydraddoldeb, Llywodraeth Leol 
a Chymunedau, y dylid cymeradwyo'r sefyllfa, fel y'i nodir yn Atodiad 
1 i'r adroddiad a ddosbarthwyd.
3. Y bydd y Prif Weithredwr yn cael ei awdurdodi i ymateb yn ffurfiol 
i'r cynigion ar ran y cyngor hwn drwy Gymdeithas Llywodraeth Leol 
Cymru.

4. NEWIDIADAU I GYMESUROLDEB GWLEIDYDDOL AC 
AELODAETH O'R CABINET, Y PWYLLGORAU AC O GYRFF 
ALLANOL 

PENDERFYNWYD: Bod y canlynol, fel y'u nodir  yn yr atodiadau i'r 
adroddiad a ddosbarthwyd, yn cael eu cymeradwyo;

 Dyrannu seddi'n gymesur i'r grwpiau 
gwleidyddol fel y'u nodir yn Atodiad A.

 Lleihau maint y Cabinet o ddeg aelod o'r 
Cabinet i naw aelod o'r Cabinet;

 Portffolios gwleidyddol arfaethedig y naw 
Aelod o'r Cabinet fel y'u nodir yn Atodiad B;

 Penodi'r Cyng. E V Latham yn Ddirprwy 
Arweinydd y Cyngor a'r Aelod Cabinet dros y 
Strydlun a Pheirianneg.

 Y newidiadau i aelodaeth pwyllgorau fel y'u 
nodir yn Atodiad C;

 Cynrychiolaeth y cyngor ar gyrff allanol fel y'i 
nodir yn Atodiad D.

Tudalen11



- 38 -

Dydd Gwener, 14 Chwefror 2020

5. NEWIDIADAU I DREFNIADAU LLYWODRAETHU GWEITHREDOL 
PRIF GYNGHORAU - DOGFEN YMGYNGHORI LLYWODRAETH 
CYMRU 

PENDERFYNIAD: Bydd y ddogfen ymgynghori – "Newidiadaui 
Drefniadau Llywodraethu Gweithredol mewn Prif Gynghorau" fel y'i 
nodir yn yr adroddiad a ddosbarthwyd, yn cael ei nodi, ynghyd â'r 
dyddiad cau ar gyfer ymgynghori, sef 27 Chwefror 2020.

6. ADRODDIAD BLYNYDDOL PWYLLGOR Y GWASANAETHAU 
DEMOCRATAIDD 

Derbyniodd y cyngor gyflwyniad, gan y Cadeirydd, ar y gwaith a 
wnaed gan y Pwyllgor Gwasanaethau Democrataidd yn ystod 
2018/19.

PENDERFYNIAD: Bydd Adroddiad Blynyddol y Pwyllgor 
Gwasanaethau Democrataidd ar gyfer 2018/19 yn 
cael ei nodi.

CHAIRPERSON

Tudalen12



- 39 -

Dydd Mercher, 26 Chwefror 2020

CYNGOR

(CANOLFAN DDINESIG PORT TALBOT) 

Aelodau sy’n Bresennol: Dydd Mercher, 26 Chwefror 2020

Y Maer: Councillor  S.Jones

Y Dirprwy Faer Councillor J.Warman

Cynghorwyr: A.R.Aubrey, S.Bamsey, C.Clement-Williams, 
M.Crowley, S.apDafydd, A.P.H.Davies, 
N.J.E.Davies, O.S.Davies, R.Davies, 
C.Edwards, J.Evans, C.Galsworthy, 
W.F.Griffiths, J.Hale, S.Harris, M.Harvey, 
N.T.Hunt, S.K.Hunt, J.Hurley, C.James, 
C.J.Jones, D.Jones, J.Jones, L.Jones, 
D.Keogh, S.A.Knoyle, E.V.Latham, 
A.R.Lockyer, A.McGrath, J.Miller, S.Miller, 
R.Mizen, J.D.Morgan, S.Paddison, S.M.Penry, 
M.Protheroe, S.Pursey, P.A.Rees, 
S.H.Reynolds, A.J.Richards, P.D.Richards, 
M.Spooner, R.L.Taylor, D.Whitelock, 
C.Williams, A.Wingrave, R.W.Wood a/ac 
A.N.Woolcock

Swyddogion sy’n 
Bresennol:

S.Phillips,  A.Evans, A.Jarrett, C.Griffiths, 
S.Brennan, C.Furlow-Harris and A.Manchipp 

Cynrychiolwyr o’r 
Gwasanaeth 
Cyfieithu:

Cyflwyno

1. CYHOEDDIADAU'R MAER. 

Croesawodd y Maer y Cynghorydd Mike Harvey yn ôl i'r Cyngor ar ôl 
ei brofedigaeth ddiweddar.

Yn dilyn y difrod a'r llifogydd a achoswyd yn ddiweddar gan Storm 
Dennis, diolchodd Aelodau'r Cyngor i staff yr awdurdod a staff 
asiantaethau partner am eu gwaith caled i leihau'r tarfu a'r difrod. 
Mynegodd yr aelodau bryder hefyd ynghylch y bobl hynny yr oedd y 
storm wedi effeithio arnynt.

Tudalen13



- 40 -

Dydd Mercher, 26 Chwefror 2020

 
2. DATGANIADAU O FUDD 

Gwnaeth yr aelodau canlynol ddatganiadau o fudd ar ddechrau'r 
cyfarfod:

Y Cynghorydd M Harvey   Parthed Eitem 3 ar yr Agenda - cyflwyniad 
Comisiynydd yr Heddlu a 
Throseddu a'r Prif Gwnstabl gan ei 
fod yn cael ei gyflogi gan Heddlu 
De Cymru, a chadarnhaodd fod 
ganddo hawl i siarad a phleidleisio 
arno. 

Y Cynghorydd J Miller     Parthed Eitem 3 ar yr Agenda – cyflwyniad 
Comisiynydd yr Heddlu a 
Throseddu a'r Prif Gwnstabl gan ei 
fod yn aelod o Banel Gorllewin y 
Cynllun Ymweld â'r Ddalfa a 
chadarnhaodd fod ganddo hawl i 
siarad a phleidleisio arno. 

3. DERBYN CYFLWYNIADAU GAN Y COMISIYNYDD HEDDLU A 
THROSEDDU A PHRIF GWNSTABL HEDDLU DE CYMRU 

Croesawodd y Maer Alun Michael, Comisiynydd yr Heddlu a 
Throseddu, Matt Jukes, y Prif Gwnstabl a Gareth Morgan, yr Uwch-
arolygydd i'r cyfarfod blynyddol â'r cyngor. 

Derbyniodd yr Aelodau gyflwyniad gan Mr Michael ar ehangu 
plismona yn y gymdogaeth i dargedu ymyrryd yn gynnar ac atal. 
Byddai swyddogion ychwanegol yn cael eu recriwtio yn dilyn y 
cyhoeddiad diweddar, gan y prif weinidog, am adnoddau ychwanegol. 
Fodd bynnag, nodwyd na fyddai hyn yn digwydd ar unwaith gan y 
byddai'n cymryd amser i hyfforddi'r swyddogion heddlu newydd. Ni 
fyddai unrhyw adnoddau ychwanegol i dalu am bensiynau etc., a 
chytunwyd ar gynnydd o 5.9% yn eu praesept.

Mewn perthynas â VAWSVDA, roedd staff meddygon teulu wedi'u 
hyfforddi i nodi tystiolaeth o drais domestig etc., ac o ganlyniad roedd 
nifer yr achosion wedi cynyddu. Nodwyd bod Comisiynydd yr Heddlu 
a Throseddu wedi darparu arian ychwanegol i dalu am hyn am 
gyfnod cychwynnol o chwe mis ac y byddai'r Bwrdd Iechyd yn gyfrifol 
am y costau wedi hynny. 

Tudalen14



- 41 -

Dydd Mercher, 26 Chwefror 2020

Dosbarthwyd taflen i aelodau yn ystod y cyfarfod a oedd yn 
hyrwyddo'r prosiect DRIVE sy'n dangos 'ymagwedd flaengar at 
gyflawnwyr cam-drin domestig difrifol', a fyddai'n cael ei gyflwyno 
ledled y rhanbarth. Hefyd, dosbarthwyd dyfyniad o The Times, wedi'i 
ddyddio 16 Medi 2019, yn canmol y gwaith yn ne Cymru hefyd.

Yna, anerchodd y Prif Gwnstabl y cyngor a dywedodd fod perthynas 
gadarnhaol iawn rhwng yr heddlu a'r awdurdod, yn enwedig y tîm 
diogelwch cymunedol, y cyfarwyddwyr corfforaethol ac aelod y 
cabinet. Dywedodd fod trosiant uchel o swyddogion Cymorth 
Cymunedol yr Heddlu gan eu bod wedyn yn dod yn swyddogion yr 
heddlu. 

Nodwyd nad oedd 8 o bob 10 galwad a dderbyniwyd gan yr heddlu 
yn ymwneud â throseddu ac y gallent fod yn ymwneud ag unrhyw 
beth, o faterion gofal cymdeithasol i faterion iechyd meddwl. Roedd 
nyrsys seiciatrig cymunedol bellach wedi'u lleoli yn yr ystafell reoli er 
mwyn ceisio lleihau nifer yr achosion gwarchodaeth. 

Gweithiodd Cymorth i Ferched Cymru gyda'r heddlu hefyd ynghylch 
materion VAWSVDA ac roedd yn braf nodi mai Heddlu De Cymru 
oedd â'r gyfradd ganlyniadau orau o ran erlyn troseddwyr. 

Mewn perthynas â throseddau cyllell a Llinellau Sirol dyrannwyd 
llawer o adnoddau i fynd i'r afael â'r materion hyn gan fod y trais 
mwyaf difrifol yn gysylltiedig â chyffuriau. Mynegwyd pryder bod 
Abertawe’n ail yn y tabl sy'n ymwneud â marwolaethau sy'n 
gysylltiedig â chyffuriau, gyda Chastell-nedd Port Talbot yn 3ydd. Fodd 
bynnag, roedd nifer y troseddau, megis lladradau, yn lleihau.

Yn dilyn y cyflwyniadau cododd yr aelodau'r materion canlynol:

 Codwyd gwaith y Grŵp Digwyddiadau Tyngedfennol (GDT) 
mewn perthynas â Llinellau Sirol a'r strategaeth blismona 
ehangach. Nododd yr Aelodau fod gwaith y Rhaglen 
Ymyrraeth Gyffuriau bellach yn cynnwys alcohol a'i bod wedi'i 
hehangu i gynnwys y rheini mewn carchardai ac ar ôl eu 
rhyddhau. Cafodd y GDT ei raddio'n ail yn nhabl y gynghrair. 
Byddai tri phrif faes yn cael eu targedu – cyflenwad, galw a 
gorfodi. Roedd gwaith yn mynd rhagddo i darfu ar y gadwyn 
gyflenwi, gan gynnwys defnyddio pobl ddiamddiffyn i'w helpu 
i'w dosbarthu.

 Gofynnodd yr Aelodau sut y byddai'r Uned Lleihau Troseddau 
Treisgar a sefydlwyd yn ddiweddar yn effeithio ar droseddau 

Tudalen15



- 42 -

Dydd Mercher, 26 Chwefror 2020

difrifol iawn a throseddau treisgar. Ailddatganodd Mr Michael 
ei ymrwymiad i ymdrin â'r rhain a sefydlwyd strategaeth ar y 
cyd. Roedd angen i wasanaethau meddygon teulu, ysbytai ac 
ysgolion allu nodi risg bosib ac adrodd ar hyn. 

 Gofynnodd yr Aelodau beth oedd yn cael ei wneud i liniaru'r 
cynnydd mewn seiber-droseddu a throseddau sy'n cael eu 
galluogi gan systemau seiber, a nododd fod adnoddau 
ychwanegol wedi'u darparu gan yr heddlu, ond gallai hyn fod 
yn anodd gan fod rhai o'r tramgwyddwyr dramor. Bydd angen i 
unrhyw Strategaeth Cynhwysiad Digidol gynnwys elfen 
ddiogelwch ar gyfer pob grŵp oedran. Roedd gwaith yn mynd 
rhagddo gyda phrifysgolion i nodi'r datblygiadau sy'n cael eu 
gwneud yn y maes digidol a rhoddwyd Swyddogion Diogelu 
Ariannol ar waith. Cytunwyd y dylid rhoi pwysau ar ddarparwyr 
gwasanaethau i roi mesurau ar waith i leihau'r posibilrwydd o 
seiberfwlio a throseddau sy'n cael eu galluogi gan systemau 
seiber. Dylid annog defnyddwyr i gyrchu’r gwasanaeth Get 
Safe Online. 

 Gofynnodd yr Aelodau sut y byddai adnoddau'r heddlu'n newid 
dros y 12-18 mis nesaf, yng ngoleuni cyhoeddiad diweddar y 
Llywodraeth y byddai adnoddau'r heddlu'n cynyddu'n 
sylweddol. Mewn ymateb, nodwyd bod angen swyddogion ar 
yr heddlu a oedd yn barod yn weithredol ac yn cael effaith 
gadarnhaol ar amrywiaeth o fewn yr heddlu. Byddai'r dyraniad 
cyntaf o 136 o swyddogion ym mis Mawrth 2021. Nodwyd bod 
gan yr heddlu 4 prif faes sydd dan bwysau: 

Swyddogion yr Heddlu
Swyddogion nad ydynt wedi'u gwarantu e.e. Swyddogion 
Cymorth Cymunedol yr Heddlu
Swyddogion cefn
Cerbydau ac adeiladau

ac mai’r maes cyntaf yn unig oedd yn cael sylw gan fod yr 
adnoddau ychwanegol wedi'u clustnodi. Y gobaith oedd y 
byddai'r llywodraeth yn cynnal adolygiad cynhwysfawr o wariant 
i fynd i'r afael â pheth o'r pwysau.

 Codwyd materion yn ymwneud â Brexit a gallu'r heddlu i gynnal 
cydbwysedd priodol rhwng mynd i'r afael ag unrhyw densiynau 
cymunedol sy'n deillio o hynny a galwadau eraill. Rhoddwyd 
sicrwydd y byddai plismona yn y gymdogaeth yn parhau ac y 
byddai'r cynnydd mewn eithafiaeth adain dde yn cael ei 
dargedu.

Tudalen16



- 43 -

Dydd Mercher, 26 Chwefror 2020

 Gan mai atal troseddu oedd y dewis rhatach, gofynnwyd i  
Gomisiynydd yr Heddlu a Throseddu a fyddai'n ystyried 
cyfrannu at uwchraddio a chynnal adnoddau teledu cylch 
cyfyng yr awdurdod? Nodwyd bod Comisiynydd yr Heddlu a 
Throseddu wedi cytuno i wneud hyn yng ngogledd Cymru. 
Mewn ymateb, dywedodd Comisiynydd yr Heddlu a Throseddu 
ei fod yn edrych ar ffyrdd o gydweithio wrth symud ymlaen. 

 Ceisiwyd sicrwydd y byddai pob ethnigrwydd yn derbyn yr un 
gwasanaeth gan yr heddlu. Yn benodol, trafodwyd y digwyddiad 
diweddar yn Rhondda Cynon Taf a nododd yr Aelodau fod 
Gwasanaeth Erlyn y Goron wedi cynnal ymchwiliad 
cynhwysfawr i amgylchiadau'r achos. 

 Mynegodd yr Aelodau bryder ynghylch yr effaith y byddai 
ymdrin â phethau megis ecsbloetio plant yn ei chael ar 
swyddogion yr heddlu a'r rhai sy'n ymdrin â galwadau ac fe’u 
sicrhawyd fod mesurau ar waith i gefnogi staff.

 Mynegwyd pryder ynghylch y gostyngiad yn nifer yr unedau 
heddlu symudol sy'n patrolio'r traffyrdd. Dywedodd 
Comisiynydd yr Heddlu a Throseddu y byddai angen edrych ar 
adnoddau, gan eu bod yn swyddi arbenigol iawn.

 Gofynnodd yr Aelodau am adborth ar gyflwyno'r rhaglen Camau 
Cynnar gyda'n Gilydd yng Nghastell-nedd Port Talbot a nodwyd 
bod hon yn fenter ar y cyd ag Iechyd Cyhoeddus Cymru i ddeall 
goblygiadau profiadau niweidiol yn ystod plentyndod. 
Cyflwynwyd cynllun peilot ym Maesteg gyda chanlyniadau 
cadarnhaol.

  
Yna diolchodd y Maer iddynt am eu presenoldeb yng nghyfarfod 
heddiw a gwnaethant adael y cyfarfod.

4. DERBYN DATGANIAD GAN AELOD Y CABINET DROS 
DDIOGELWCH CYMUNEDOL A DIOGELU'R CYHOEDD AR YR 
ISAFBRIS UNED AM ALCOHOL 

PENDERFYNWYD: Nodi'r datganiad a wnaed gan aelod y cabinet   
dros Ddiogelwch Cymunedol a Diogelu'r 
Cyhoedd ar isafbris uned am alcohol.   

5. EITEMAU BRYS 

Oherwydd yr angen i ymdrin yn awr â'r materion a gynhwysir yng 
Nghofnodion 7 ac 8 isod, cytunodd y Maer y gellid eu trafod yng 

Tudalen17



- 44 -

Dydd Mercher, 26 Chwefror 2020

nghyfarfod heddiw fel eitemau brys yn unol ag Adran 100B (4) (b) o 
Ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972.

Rheswm:

Oherwydd yr elfen amser.

6. STORM DENNIS 

Gwnaeth y Dirprwy Arweinydd ac Aelod y Cabinet dros Strydlun a 
Pheirianneg ddatganiad mewn perthynas â'r difrod a achoswyd gan 
Storm Dennis. 

Diolchodd eto i staff yr awdurdod, asiantaethau eraill a'r 
gwasanaethau brys am eu hymdrechion. Nododd y cyngor fanylion y 
gwaith sy'n mynd rhagddo ar hyn o bryd i gynorthwyo'r rhai yr 
effeithiwyd arnynt ynghyd â gwaith i ddod o hyd i ffordd ymlaen, 
gydag asiantaethau eraill, er mwyn lleihau'r tebygolrwydd o hyn yn 
digwydd eto yn y dyfodol. 

Nodwyd mai oddeutu £500k oedd cost y gwaith glanhau hyd yma, ac 
nid oedd gwaith atgyweirio i'r isadeileddau yr effeithiwyd arnynt wedi'i 
fesur eto. Yn dilyn cyhoeddiadau Prif Weinidog Llywodraeth Cymru, 
rhoddwyd ymagweddau ar waith i sicrhau cyllid i dalu costau'r gwaith 
brys. 

7. Newidiadau i Aelodaeth y Pwyllgor Personél

PENDERFYNWYD:Am y rhesymau a amlinellwyd ar lafar yn y 
cyfarfod, bydd y Cynghorydd D Cawsey yn cymryd 
lle'r Cynghorydd S Paddison ar y Pwyllgor Personél 
a chaiff y Cynghorydd D Cawsey ei benodi'n Is-
gadeirydd.

CHAIRPERSON

Tudalen18



- 1 -

Dydd Gwener, 6 Mawrth 2020

CYNGOR

(CANOLFAN DDINESIG PORT TALBOT) 

Aelodau sy’n Bresennol: Dydd Gwener, 6 Mawrth 2020

Y Maer: Councillor  S.Jones

Y Dirprwy Faer Councillor J.Warman

Cynghorwyr: A.R.Aubrey, D.Cawsey, H.C.Clarke, C.Clement-
Williams, M.Crowley, A.P.H.Davies, 
N.J.E.Davies, O.S.Davies, R.Davies, 
C.Edwards, J.Evans, S.E.Freeguard, 
C.Galsworthy, W.F.Griffiths, J.Hale, N.T.Hunt, 
S.K.Hunt, J.Hurley, C.James, H.N.James, 
D.Jones, H.Jones, J.Jones, L.Jones, 
R.G.Jones, D.Keogh, S.A.Knoyle, E.V.Latham, 
D.Lewis, A.Llewelyn, A.R.Lockyer, A.McGrath, 
J.Miller, S.Miller, R.Mizen, J.D.Morgan, 
S.Paddison, S.M.Penry, D.M.Peters, R.Phillips, 
M.Protheroe, L.M.Purcell, S.Pursey, 
S.Rahaman, P.A.Rees, S.H.Reynolds, 
A.J.Richards, P.D.Richards, M.Spooner, 
A.J.Taylor, R.L.Taylor, D.Whitelock, C.Williams, 
R.W.Wood a/ac A.N.Woolcock

Swyddogion sy’n 
Bresennol:

C.Furlow-Harris, C.Griffiths, N.Headon, 
A.Jarrett, H.Jenkins, K.Jones, N.Pearce, 
S.Phillips a/ac J.Woodman-Ralph

Cynrychiolwyr o’r 
Gwasanaeth 
Cyfieithu:

Present

1. DATGANIADAU O FUDD 

Gwnaeth yr aelodau canlynol ddatganiadau o fudd ar ddechrau'r 
cyfarfod:
Y Cynghorydd S 
Freeguard

Parthed Cyllideb Refeniw 2020/2021 
gan ei bod hi'n aelod o Awdurdod 
Tân ac Achub Canolbarth a Gorllewin 
Cymru.

Tudalen19



- 2 -

Dydd Gwener, 6 Mawrth 2020

Y Cynghorydd A 
Llewelyn

Parthed Cyllideb Refeniw 2020/2021 
gan ei fod yn aelod o Awdurdod Tân 
ac Achub Canolbarth a Gorllewin 
Cymru.

Y Cynghorydd A N 
Woolcock

Parthed Cyllideb Refeniw 2020/2021 
gan ei fod yn aelod o Awdurdod Tân 
ac Achub Canolbarth a Gorllewin 
Cymru.

Y Cynghorydd C M 
Crowley

Parthed Cyllideb Refeniw 2020/2021 
gan ei fod yn aelod o Awdurdod Tân 
ac Achub Canolbarth a Gorllewin 
Cymru.

2. STRATEGAETH GYFALAF A RHAGLEN GYFALAF 2020/21 I 
2022/23 

Cyflwynwyd yr adroddiad gan yr Aelod Cabinet perthnasol lle nodwyd 
bod yr adroddiad wedi'i gymeradwyo i'r cyngor, gan y Cabinet ar 5 
Mawrth 2020.

PENDERFYNWYD: Cymeradwyo'r Rhaglen Gyfalaf ar gyfer 
2020/2021 i 2022/2023 fel y nodir yn Atodiad 1 
i'r adroddiad a ddosbarthwyd, ac y byddai'r 
rhaglen yn cael ei hadolygu a'i diweddaru'n 
barhaus dros y flwyddyn i ddod.

3. CYLLIDEB REFENIW 2020/21 

Cyflwynodd Aelod y Cabinet yr adroddiad uchod.  Er bod yr 
ymatebion i'r ymgynghoriad yn isel, tynnwyd sylw at y ffaith eu bod 
wedi'u cynnwys yn yr adroddiadau a oedd gerbron yr Aelodau heddiw 
a gofynnwyd i'r cyngor gefnogi'r argymhellion a gafwyd yn yr 
adroddiad.

Diolchodd yr Aelodau i swyddogion a'r Cabinet am y gwaith a wnaed i 
gyflawni sefyllfa'r gyllideb ac am lobïo Llywodraeth Cymru a 
arweiniodd at ffigur setliad gwell.  

Croesawyd hyn, fodd bynnag, cytunwyd bod angen rhagor o arian 
ychwanegol ar Gymru o hyd er mwyn gallu cynnal a gwella 
gwasanaethau. 

Tudalen20



- 3 -

Dydd Gwener, 6 Mawrth 2020

Yn ogystal, roedd yr Aelodau'n falch y gweithredwyd ar yr ymatebion 
i'r ymgynghoriad a gafwyd gan y cyhoedd a phwyllgorau craffu 
perthnasol mewn perthynas â Chanolfan Celfyddydau Pontardawe, 
cyllid Hamdden Celtaidd, y fformiwla ariannu ysgolion a diffygion 
glanhau ysgolion, a bod argymhellion wedi'u newid o ganlyniad.

Mynegodd rhai Aelodau bryder y byddai'r cynnydd arfaethedig o 3.7% 
yn Nhreth y Cyngor yn cael effaith negyddol ar deuluoedd sydd 
eisoes ar incwm isel ac y byddai'n arwain at gymunedau sydd eisoes 
wedi'u nodi fel ardaloedd o amddifadedd uchel, yn mynd yn fwy 
difreintiedig.  Castell-nedd Port Talbot oedd â'r treth y cyngor trydydd 
uchaf yng Nghymru o hyd.

Cafwyd trafodaeth ar y ddau gynnig a gyflwynwyd sef y dylid 
defnyddio cronfeydd wrth gefn i alluogi gostyngiad o naill ai 3.5% neu 
3% yn y cynnydd yn Nhreth y Cyngor er mwyn lliniaru'r effaith ar 
deuluoedd a chymunedau yng Nghastell-nedd Port Talbot.

Ymatebodd Arweinydd y Cyngor gan ddweud y byddai defnyddio 
cronfeydd wrth gefn y cyngor, fel yr awgrymwyd gan rai Aelodau, yn 
golygu na fyddai'r Cyngor yn gallu ariannu materion brys. Yn 2019/20 
darparodd y cronfeydd wrth gefn gyllid brys i gynorthwyo â phedwar 
tirlithriad yn Ystalyfera a llifogydd a ddifrododd ffyrdd a phontydd 
pwysig.  Roedd yn rhaid i'r cyngor sicrhau bod cronfeydd wrth gefn ar 
gael i barhau i gefnogi argyfyngau anghynlluniedig. Ni fyddai effaith 
lleihau Treth y Cyngor i naill ai 3% neu 3.5% yn cael fawr o effaith ar 
dalwyr Treth y Cyngor ond byddai'n effeithio ar allu'r cyngor i ymateb i 
argyfyngau anghynlluniedig.

Rhoddwyd y gwelliant cyntaf i'r cyngor fel a ganlyn:

Bydd yr hyn sy'n cyfateb i Fand D 2020/21 ar gyfer Cyngor 
Bwrdeistref Sirol Castell-nedd Port yn £1,603.30 a bydd cynnydd o 
3% yn Nhreth y Cyngor o'i gyferbynnu â chynnydd o 3.79% fel y nodir 
yn yr adroddiad, gyda'r bwlch o 0.79% yn cael ei ariannu o'r 
cronfeydd wrth gefn cyffredinol (sy'n cynrychioli swm ychwanegol o 
£592,000 ar gyfer 2020/2021).  Felly, cyfanswm y cronfeydd wrth 
gefn cyffredinol i gydbwyso'r gyllideb yw £2.242m h.y. £1.65m a 
£0.592m.

Methodd y gwelliant uchod, yna dilynodd yr ail welliant a gyflwynwyd 
i'r Cyngor, sef:

Bydd y swm cyfatebol ar gyfer Band D 2020/21 Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol 
Castell-nedd Port Talbot yn £1,611.07 a bydd cynnydd o 3.5% yn 

Tudalen21



- 4 -

Dydd Gwener, 6 Mawrth 2020

Nhreth y Cyngor o'i gyferbynnu â chynnydd o 3.79% fel y nodir yn yr 
adroddiad gyda'r bwlch o 0.29% yn cael ei ariannu o'r gronfa gyffredinol 
wrth gefn (sy'n cynrychioli swm ychwanegol o £217,000 ar gyfer 
2020/2021). Felly, cyfanswm y cronfeydd wrth gefn cyffredinol i 
gydbwyso'r gyllideb yw £1.867m h.y. £1.65m a £0.217m.

 Methodd y gwelliant uchod, ac o ganlyniad, ystyriwyd y prif argymhelliad 
a gafwyd yn yr adroddiad a ddosbarthwyd.

PENDERFYNWYD: Gan roi sylw dyladwy i'r Asesiad Effaith Integredig, 
fel y'i cynhwysir yn Atodiad 7 i'r adroddiad a 
ddosbarthwyd:

1. Y caiff y materion canlynol eu dirprwyo i'r 
Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol yn dilyn 
ymgynghoriad ag Arweinydd y Cyngor, yr Aelod 
Cabinet perthnasol a Chadeirydd y Pwyllgor 
Trosolwg a Chraffu perthnasol:-

 Ffïoedd a thaliadau sy'n berthnasol ar 
gyfer blwyddyn ariannol 2020/21

 Ffïoedd a thaliadau sy'n berthnasol ar 
gyfer unrhyw flwyddyn ariannol ddilynol 
ac, ym marn y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol 
perthnasol, y mae angen penderfynu 
arnynt cyn y flwyddyn ariannol am 
resymau gweithredol.

2. Y dylid cymeradwyo'r sefyllfa gyllidebol 
ddiwygiedig a'r trefniadau ar gyfer 2019/20.

3. Ar ôl ystyried effeithiau'r Asesiad Effaith 
Integredig a Throseddu ac Anhrefn, caiff 
gofyniad net y Gyllideb Refeniw ar gyfer 
2020/21, a'r cynlluniau gwasanaeth ar gyfer 
cyflwyno'r cyllidebau, y dylid cymeradwyo'r rhain 
ynghyd ag arbedion y gyllideb/blaengynllun 
ariannol, fel y'u cynhwysir yn Atodiad 4 i'r 

Tudalen22



- 5 -

Dydd Gwener, 6 Mawrth 2020

adroddiad a ddosbarthwyd.

4. Y bydd Cyfarwyddwyr Corfforaethol yn cael eu 
cyfarwyddo i fwrw ymlaen â'r arbedion a'r 
rhaglen wella ar gyfer yr awdurdod.

5. Dirprwyo ffïoedd a thaliadau ar gyfer 
swyddogaethau anweithredol i'r Cyfarwyddwr 
Corfforaethol priodol yn dilyn ymgynghoriad ag 
Arweinydd y Cyngor, y Dirprwy Arweinydd a 
Chadeirydd y Pwyllgor Anweithredol perthnasol.

 Ffioedd a thaliadau sy'n gymwys yn 2020/21

 Ffïoedd a thaliadau sy'n gymwys ar gyfer 
unrhyw flwyddyn ariannol ddilynol ac, ym 
marn y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol, y mae 
angen penderfynu arnynt cyn y flwyddyn 
ariannol am resymau gweithredol.

6. Mai'r swm cyfatebol ar gyfer Band D 2020/21 
Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Castell-nedd Port Talbot 
fydd £1,611.07

Tudalen23



- 6 -

Dydd Gwener, 6 Mawrth 2020

 
4. STRATEGAETH RHEOLI'R TRYSORLYS, STRATEGAETH 

FUDDSODDI FLYNYDDOL A PHOLISI DARPARIAETH ISAFSWM 
REFENIW 2020/21 

PENDERFYNWYD Y bydd y Strategaethau a'r Polisïau canlynol fel 
y'u nodir yn yr adroddiad a ddosbarthwyd yn 
cael eu cymeradwyo

 Strategaeth Rheoli'r Trysorlys

 Strategaeth Buddsoddi Flynyddol

 Polisi Darpariaeth Isafswm Refeniw

 Dangosyddion Darbodus

5. TRETH Y CYNGOR 2020/21 

PENDERFYNWYD 1. Y bydd unrhyw dreuliau a ysgwyddir gan 
Gyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Castell-nedd Port 
Talbot wrth berfformio, yn rhan o'i ardal, 
swyddogaeth a gyflawnir gan Gyngor 
Cymuned, mewn man arall yn ei ardal, yn cael 
eu trin fel treuliau cyffredinol yr awdurdod.

2. Bod ardoll Awdurdod Iechyd Porthladd Bae 
Abertawe yn cael ei thrin fel cost gyffredinol.

3. Bod y symiau canlynol yn cael eu cyfrifo'n unol 
ag Adran 32 i 36 o Ddeddf Cyllid Llywodraeth 
Leol 1992.

Tudalen24



- 7 -

Dydd Gwener, 6 Mawrth 2020

Swm 
Cyfanswm yr eitemau a 
amcangyfrifwyd o dan 
Adran 32 (2) - gwariant

£447,240,825

Cyfanswm yr eitemau a 
amcangyfrifwyd o dan 
adran 32 (3) - incwm

£140,892,410

Swm a gyfrifwyd yn unol ag 
adran 32(4) – gofyniad 
cyllidebol

£306,348,415

Y cyfanswm sy'n daladwy 
mewn perthynas â'r Ardreth 
Annomestig Genedlaethol 
a'r Grant Cynnal Refeniw a 
ailddosbarthwyd, yn cael ei 
leihau'n unol ag Adran 33 
(3B) o'r Ddeddf.

£226,374,905

Swm sylfaenol Treth y 
Cyngor yn unol ag Adran 34 
(1) o'r Ddeddf.

£1,662.72

Cyfanswm yr holl eitemau 
arbennig y cyfeiriwyd atynt 
yn adran 34(1) o'r Ddeddf.

£2,266,798

Swm sylfaenol Treth y 
Cyngor ar gyfer anheddau 
yn y rhannau hynny o'i ardal 
nad oes unrhyw eitem 
arbennig yn ymwneud â 
nhw, yn unol ag Adran 34 
(2) o'r Ddeddf.

£1,615.59

Symiau sylfaenol Treth y 
Cyngor ar gyfer anheddau 
yn y rhannau hynny o'i ardal 
y mae bandiau eitemau 
arbennig yn ymwneud â 
hwy, a gyfrifir yn unol ag 
adran 34(3) o'r Ddeddf.

Yn unol ag 
Atodiad 1

Symiau i'w hystyried mewn 
perthynas â chategorïau o 
anheddau a restrir mewn 
prisiad gwahanol, a gyfrifir 
yn unol ag Adran 36(1) o'r 

Yn unol ag 
Atodiad 2

Tudalen25



- 8 -

Dydd Gwener, 6 Mawrth 2020

Ddeddf.

4. Bod Comisiynydd yr Heddlu a Throseddu De 
Cymru wedi datgan y symiau canlynol mewn 
praesept a roddwyd i'r Cyngor, yn unol ag 
Adran 40 o'r Ddeddf.

Band A £181.81
Band B £212.11
Band C £242.41
Band D £272.72
Band E £333.32
Band F £393.92
Band G £454.53
Band H £545.43
Band I £636.34

Cyfanswm y praesept sy'n daladwy yw 
£13,117,062.

5. Ar ôl cyfrifo'r cyfansymiau ym mhob achos 
uchod, mae'r cyngor, yn unol ag adran 30(2) 
o'r Ddeddf drwy hyn yn pennu'r symiau a 
ddangosir yn Atodiad 3 fel Treth y Cyngor ar 
gyfer 2020/21 ar gyfer pob un o'r categorïau 
o anheddau a ddangosir.

CHAIRPERSON

Tudalen26



1

. 
Basic Amount of Council Tax (Band D) Appendix 1

Community 
Council 
Precept

Town or Community 
Council

Community 
Council 
Precept

Council 
Tax Base 
(band D)

Community 
Council Tax

NPTCBC 
Council 

Tax
Total

2019/20  2020/21 2020/21 2020/21 2020/21 2020/21
£36,530.00 Blaengwrach £38,721.00 371.78 £104.15 £1,615.59 £1,719.74

£220,143.00 Blaenhonddan £230,000.00 4,591.25 £50.10 £1,615.59 £1,665.69
£147,800.00 Briton Ferry £152,400.00 1,877.11 £81.19 £1,615.59 £1,696.78

£99,000.00 Cilybebyll £100,000.00 1,953.37 £51.19 £1,615.59 £1,666.78
£21,321.00 Clyne and Melincourt £22,333.75 261.36 £85.45 £1,615.59 £1,701.04

£379,681.00 Coedffranc £398,709.00 3,620.28 £110.13 £1,615.59 £1,725.72
£48,126.00 Crynant £50,550.00 676.79 £74.69 £1,615.59 £1,690.28
£39,000.00 Cwmllynfell £40,000.00 387.41 £103.25 £1,615.59 £1,718.84
£48,913.00 Dyffryn Clydach £49,891.00 1,101.14 £45.31 £1,615.59 £1,660.90

£148,223.29 Glynneath £236,060.00 1,381.55 £170.87 £1,615.59 £1,786.46
£83,590.00 Gwauncaegurwen £85,983.00 1,339.52 £64.19 £1,615.59 £1,679.78

£330,000.00 Neath £400,000.00 6,515.01 £61.40 £1,615.59 £1,676.99
£22,746.00 Onllwyn £23,883.00 374.93 £63.70 £1,615.59 £1,679.29
£38,765.00 Pelenna £39,961.00 403.79 £98.96 £1,615.59 £1,714.55

£183,000.00 Pontardawe £183,000.00 2,532.78 £72.25 £1,615.59 £1,687.84
£52,138.00 Resolven £54,933.00 734.88 £74.75 £1,615.59 £1,690.34
£48,650.00 Seven Sisters £49,623.00 634.91 £78.16 £1,615.59 £1,693.75
£29,000.00 Tonna £38,000.00 955.85 £39.76 £1,615.59 £1,655.35
£67,750.00 Ystalyfera £72,750.00 1,599.88 £45.47 £1,615.59 £1,661.06

£2,044,376.29 Total £2,266,797.75 31,313.59    

T
udalen9

E
item

 y C
ofnodion6

T
udalen27



2

Appendix 2

Amount of Council Tax - NPT plus Community Council

Community Band A Band B Band C Band D Band E Band F Band G Band H Band I
          
Blaengwrach 1,146.49 1,337.58 1,528.66 1,719.74 2,101.90 2,484.07 2,866.23 3,439.48 4,012.73
Blaenhonddan 1,110.46 1,295.54 1,480.61 1,665.69 2,035.84 2,406.00 2,776.15 3,331.38 3,886.61
Briton Ferry 1,131.19 1,319.72 1,508.25 1,696.78 2,073.84 2,450.90 2,827.97 3,393.56 3,959.15
Cilybebyll 1,111.19 1,296.38 1,481.58 1,666.78 2,037.18 2,407.57 2,777.97 3,333.56 3,889.15
Clyne and Melincourt 1,134.03 1,323.03 1,512.04 1,701.04 2,079.05 2,457.06 2,835.07 3,402.08 3,969.09
Coedffranc 1,150.48 1,342.23 1,533.97 1,725.72 2,109.21 2,492.71 2,876.20 3,451.44 4,026.68
Crynant 1,126.85 1,314.66 1,502.47 1,690.28 2,065.90 2,441.52 2,817.13 3,380.56 3,943.99
Cwmllynfell 1,145.89 1,336.88 1,527.86 1,718.84 2,100.80 2,482.77 2,864.73 3,437.68 4,010.63
Dyffryn Clydach 1,107.27 1,291.81 1,476.36 1,660.90 2,029.99 2,399.08 2,768.17 3,321.80 3,875.43
Glynneath 1,190.97 1,389.47 1,587.96 1,786.46 2,183.45 2,580.44 2,977.43 3,572.92 4,168.41
Gwauncaegurwen 1,119.85 1,306.50 1,493.14 1,679.78 2,053.06 2,426.35 2,799.63 3,359.56 3,919.49
Neath 1,117.99 1,304.33 1,490.66 1,676.99 2,049.65 2,422.32 2,794.98 3,353.98 3,912.98
Onllwyn 1,117.99 1,304.33 1,490.66 1,676.99 2,049.65 2,422.32 2,794.98 3,353.98 3,912.98
Pelenna 1,119.53 1,306.11 1,492.70 1,679.29 2,052.47 2,425.64 2,798.82 3,358.58 3,918.34
Pontardawe 1,143.03 1,333.54 1,524.04 1,714.55 2,095.56 2,476.57 2,857.58 3,429.10 4,000.62
Resolven 1,125.23 1,312.76 1,500.30 1,687.84 2,062.92 2,437.99 2,813.07 3,375.68 3,938.29
Seven Sisters 1,126.89 1,314.71 1,502.52 1,690.34 2,065.97 2,441.60 2,817.23 3,380.68 3,944.13
Tonna 1,129.17 1,317.36 1,505.56 1,693.75 2,070.14 2,446.53 2,822.92 3,387.50 3,952.08
Ystalyfera 1,103.57 1,287.49 1,471.42 1,655.35 2,023.21 2,391.06 2,758.92 3,310.70 3,862.48
Blaengwrach 1,107.37 1,291.94 1,476.50 1,661.06 2,030.18 2,399.31 2,768.43 3,322.12 3,875.81
All Other 1,077.06 1,256.57 1,436.08 1,615.59 1,974.61 2,333.63 2,692.65 3,231.18 3,769.71

T
udalen10

T
udalen28



- 55 -

Dydd Iau, 28 Mai 2020

CYNGOR

(CANOLFAN DDINESIG PORT TALBOT) 

Aelodau sy’n Bresennol: Dydd Iau, 28 Mai 2020

Y Maer: Councillor  S.Jones

Y Dirprwy Faer Councillor J.Warman

Cynghorwyr: A.R.Aubrey, S.Bamsey, D.Cawsey, H.C.Clarke, 
C.Clement-Williams, M.Crowley, S.apDafydd, 
O.S.Davies, R.Davies, C.Edwards, J.Evans, 
S.E.Freeguard, W.F.Griffiths, J.Hale, M.Harvey, 
N.T.Hunt, S.K.Hunt, C.James, H.N.James, 
C.J.Jones, D.Jones, H.Jones, J.Jones, L.Jones, 
R.G.Jones, D.Keogh, S.A.Knoyle, E.V.Latham, 
A.Llewelyn, A.R.Lockyer, J.Miller, S.Miller, 
R.Mizen, J.D.Morgan, S.Paddison, S.M.Penry, 
R.Phillips, M.Protheroe, L.M.Purcell, S.Pursey, 
S.Rahaman, P.A.Rees, S.Renkes, 
S.H.Reynolds, A.J.Richards, P.D.Richards, 
M.Spooner, A.J.Taylor, R.L.Taylor, D.Whitelock, 
A.Wingrave, R.W.Wood a/ac A.N.Woolcock

Swyddogion sy’n 
Bresennol:

S.Phillips,S.Blewett, C.Davies, T.Davies, 
A.Evans, C.Furlow-Harris, C.Griffiths, A.Jarrett, 
H.Jenkins, K.Jones, A.Manchipp, N.Pearce, 
S.Phillips, C.Plowman a/ac S.Rees,  C.Furlow-
Harris, A.Manchipp, T.Davies, C.Plowman, 
C.Davies and S.Blewett

Cynrychiolwyr o’r 
Gwasanaeth 
Cyfieithu:

Present

1. CYHOEDDIADAU'R MAER. 

Gyda thristwch mawr dywedodd y Maer wrth y cyngor am farwolaeth 
y cyn-Gynghorydd Hywel Parry.

Fel arwydd o barch cynhaliodd y Cyngor funud o ddistawrwydd.
Tudalen29



- 56 -

Dydd Iau, 28 Mai 2020

2. PANEL AELODAU - CAM ADFER CORONAFEIRWS 

Gwnaed gwelliant llafar gan y Prif Weithredwr Cynorthwyol a'r Prif 
Swyddog Digidol i'r adroddiad a ddosbarthwyd fel a 
ganlyn:

Amlder Cyfarfodydd

Bob 4 wythnos oni chytunir fel arall gan y Panel drwy benderfyniad y 
mwyafrif.

PENDERFYNWYD:  Bod sefydlu Panel Aelod – Cyfnod Adfer 
Coronafeirws - yn cael ei gymeradwyo ar y telerau 
a'r amodau fel y'u cynhwysir yn Atodiad 1 i'r 
adroddiad a ddosbarthwyd a'r gwelliant llafar uchod, 
ac y dylid penodi'r aelodau canlynol iddo:

Cadeirydd:  Arweinydd y Cyngor - Y Cynghorydd R 
G Jones

Aelodau'r Cabinet:  Y Cyng. E V Latham a'r Cyng. C 
Clement-Williams

Grŵp Llafur: (5 aelod) Y Cyng. M Harvey, Y Cyng. S 
M Penry, Y Cyng. S Reynolds, Y Cyng. D Cawsey 
a'r Cyng. M Protheroe

Grwp Plaid Cymru: (3 aelod) Y Cyng. A Llewelyn, Y 
Cyng. L Purcell a'r Cyng. J D Morgan

Grŵp Annibynnol: (2 aelod) Y Cyng. S K Hunt a'r 
Cyng. H C Clarke.

3. CYNRYCHIOLAETH CYRFF ALLANOL 

PENDERFYNWYD: Y dylai'r cyngor nodi bod cyn Gyngor Iechyd 
Cymunedol Abertawe Bro Morgannwg wedi 
newid ei enw i Gyngor Iechyd Cymunedol Bae 
Abertawe ac y byddai'r Cynghorydd Aubrey a'r 
Cynghorydd Edwards yn cael eu hailbenodi iddo

Tudalen30



- 57 -

Dydd Iau, 28 Mai 2020

4. PENODI PRIF WEITHREDWR 

(Ar y pwynt hwn yn y cyfarfod, gwnaeth y swyddogion canlynol
 ydatganiadau o fuddiant canlynol,  gan adael yr ystafell am weddill y 
cyfarfod: 
                          Y Cyfarwyddwr Cyllid a Gwasanaethau 

Corfforaethol, Cyfarwyddwr yr Amgylchedd ac 
Adfywio, Y Cyfarwyddwr Addysg, Hamdden a 
Dysgu Gydol Oes, Y Cyfarwyddwr Gofal 
Cymdeithasol, Iechyd a Thai, Y Prif Weithredwr 
Cynorthwyol a'r Prif Swyddog Digidol a Phennaeth y 
Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol).

PENDERFYNWYD: Bod y trefniadau i recriwtio Prif Weithredwr, fel    
y'u nodir yn yr adroddiad a ddosbarthwyd, gan 
gynnwys awdurdod dirprwyedig i'r Pennaeth 
Adnoddau Dynol i bennu'r amserlen recriwtio, mewn 
ymgynghoriad â'r Prif Weithredwr, yr Arweinydd ac 
Aelod y Cabinet dros Gydraddoldeb ac Adnoddau 
Corfforaethol, yn cael eu cymeradwyo.

5. EITEM FRYS 

Estynnwyd diolch i'r Maer a'r Dirprwy Faer am gytuno i ymestyn eu 
cyfnod yn y swydd yn ystod y cyfnod hwn.  Yn ogystal, diolchwyd i'r 
gweithlu hefyd am eu hymrwymiad i ddarparu gwasanaethau.

CHAIRPERSON

Tudalen31



Mae’r dudalen hon yn fwriadol wag

Tudalen32



- 58 -

Dydd Iau, 2 Gorffennaf 2020

CYNGOR

(CANOLFAN DDINESIG PORT TALBOT) 

Aelodau sy’n Bresennol: Dydd Iau, 2 Gorffennaf 2020

Y Maer: Councillor  S.Jones

Y Dirprwy Faer Councillor J.Warman

Cynghorwyr: A.R.Aubrey, S.Bamsey, D.Cawsey, H.C.Clarke, 
C.Clement-Williams, M.Crowley, S.apDafydd, 
A.P.H.Davies, N.J.E.Davies, O.S.Davies, 
R.Davies, C.Edwards, J.Evans, S.E.Freeguard, 
C.Galsworthy, W.F.Griffiths, J.Hale, S.Harris, 
M.Harvey, N.T.Hunt, S.K.Hunt, J.Hurley, 
H.N.James, C.J.Jones, D.Jones, H.Jones, 
J.Jones, L.Jones, R.G.Jones, D.Keogh, 
S.A.Knoyle, E.V.Latham, D.Lewis, A.Llewelyn, 
A.R.Lockyer, A.McGrath, J.Miller, S.Miller, 
R.Mizen, J.D.Morgan, S.Paddison, S.M.Penry, 
D.M.Peters, R.Phillips, L.M.Purcell, S.Pursey, 
S.Rahaman, P.A.Rees, S.Renkes, 
S.H.Reynolds, A.J.Richards, P.D.Richards, 
M.Spooner, A.J.Taylor, R.L.Taylor, D.Whitelock, 
R.W.Wood a/ac A.N.Woolcock

Swyddogion sy’n 
Bresennol:

S.Phillips, H.Jenkins, A.Evans, A.Jarrett,
N.Pearce, K.Jones, C.Griffiths, S.Rees,
C.Morris, C.Furlow-Harris, A.Manchipp,
S.Curran, T.Davies, C.Davies, C.Plowman, and
J.Woodman-Ralph

1. DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANNAU 

Dywedodd y Prif Weithredwr wrth y cyngor y byddai ef, 
Cyfarwyddwyr, y Prif Weithredwr Cynorthwyol a Phenaethiaid 
Gwasanaeth yn datgan eu buddiannau yn adroddiad y Pennaeth 
Adnoddau Dynol ar Ddatganiad Polisi Tâl 2020/2021 ac yn gadael y 
cyfarfod yn ystod y drafodaeth a'r bleidlais ar ôl hynny.

Tudalen33



- 59 -

Dydd Iau, 2 Gorffennaf 2020

2. MYNEDIAD AELODAU I GYFARFODYDD 

Mynegwyd pryder bod rhai aelodau o’r cyngor yn cael anhawster wrth 
gael mynediad i gyfarfodydd o bell drwy Microsoft Teams ac y gallai 
hyn effeithio ar bresenoldeb aelodau yn unol â’r rheol chwe mis sy'n 
gynwysedig yng Nghyfansoddiad yr Awdurdod.  Byddai swyddogion 
yn ystyried hyn yn y dyfodol ac yn parhau i ddarparu cymorth i 
aelodau.

3. TREFNIADAU PLEIDLEISIO O GANLYNIAD I BRESENOLDEB O 
BELL 

PENDERFYNWYD:Cymeradwyo'r protocol ar gyfer pleidleisio, fel y 
nodir isod, am y cyfnod y cynhelir cyfarfodydd 
Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Castell-nedd Port Talbot o 
bell a rhoi caniatâd i Bennaeth y Gwasanaethau 
Cyfreithiol ddiwygio'r cyfansoddiad yn briodol i 
gynnwys hyn:

 Bydd y Cadeirydd yn darllen yr argymhellion o flaen yr aelodau 
(neu'n cyfeirio at rif tudalen yr adroddiad lle mae'r argymhelliad 
i'w gael).

 Bydd y Cadeirydd yn gofyn i'r aelodau a oes unrhyw aelodau 
sydd am wrthwynebu'r argymhelliad, gan ddarparu cyfnod o 
oedi addas i ganiatáu i aelodau ymateb yn briodol - gallant 
wneud hynny naill ai trwy gyfleu'r gwrthwynebiad ar lafar, gan 
ddefnyddio'r cyfleuster ‘codi llaw’ ar Microsoft TEAMS neu drwy 
ddefnyddio'r cyfleuster sgwrsio ar Microsoft TEAMS.

 Bydd y Cadeirydd yn gofyn i'r aelodau a oes unrhyw aelodau 
sydd am ymatal ar yr argymhelliad, gan ddarparu cyfnod o oedi 
addas i ganiatáu i aelodau ymateb yn briodol - gallant wneud 
hynny naill ai trwy gyfleu'r gwrthwynebiad ar lafar, gan 
ddefnyddio'r cyfleuster ‘codi llaw’ ar Microsoft TEAMS neu drwy 
ddefnyddio'r cyfleuster sgwrsio ar Microsoft TEAMS.

 Yn dilyn hyn, tybir bod unrhyw aelodau nad ydynt wedi nodi i'r 
gwrthwyneb, o blaid yr argymhelliad.

 Yna, bydd y Cadeirydd yn cadarnhau a yw'r argymhelliad wedi'i 
gymeradwyo ai peidio.

 Os na all y Cadeirydd gadarnhau bod modd clywed pob aelod 
neu ei fod o'r farn bod angen galw rhestr enwau i sicrhau y 
cydymffurfir â'r broses ddemocrataidd, bydd gan y Cadeirydd yr 
hawl i alw rhestr enwau yr holl aelodau i gadarnhau eu pleidlais.

Tudalen34



- 60 -

Dydd Iau, 2 Gorffennaf 2020

 Os bydd y Prif Weithredwr, Pennaeth y Gwasanaethau 
Democrataidd neu'r Swyddog Monitro o'r farn nad yw'r aelodau 
wedi cael eu clywed, byddant yn cynghori'r Cadeirydd y dylid 
galw rhestr enwau o'r holl aelodau i gadarnhau eu pleidlais. 
Bydd y disgresiwn terfynol ynghylch a ddylid galw rhestr enwau 
o'r fath yn parhau i fod yn ôl disgresiwn y Cadeirydd.

 I osgoi amheuaeth, ni fyddai'r protocol diwygiedig hwn yn 
berthnasol i gyfarfodydd y Pwyllgorau Trwyddedu neu Gynllunio 
(nac unrhyw is-bwyllgorau) oherwydd yr angen i fynd i'r afael â 
materion ychwanegol fel rhan o brosesau gwneud 
penderfyniadau yn y cyfarfodydd hynny (h.y. yr angen i sefydlu 
bod aelod wedi clywed pob elfen o'r ddadl cyn dod i 
benderfyniad).
Dylid nodi y bydd aelodau hefyd yn gallu gofyn am bleidlais 
gofnodedig yn unol â gofynion cyfansoddiad y cyngor.

4. GWEDDARLLEDU A NEWIDIADAU CYFANSODDIADOL 

Esboniodd Cadeirydd Pwyllgor y Gwasanaethau Democrataidd 
gefndir y gwaith a wnaed gan y pwyllgor cyn cychwyniad COVID-19. 
Addaswyd y gwaith hwn o ganlyniad i'r cyfyngiadau symud a 
gofynnwyd i'r aelodau ystyried y newidiadau sy'n gynwysedig yn yr 
adroddiad a ddosbarthwyd. 

PENDERFYNWYD:   1. Nodi'r gwaith a wnaed gan Bwyllgor y   
Gwasanaethau Democrataidd i ddatblygu'r 
gwaith a roddwyd iddo ym mis Gorffennaf 
2019 - i gyflwyno gweddarlledu o 
gyfarfodydd y cyngor a gwella cyfranogiad y 
cyhoedd yn y broses ddemocrataidd;

  2.    Nodi effaith sefyllfa frys COVID-19 ar yr 
argymhellion a baratowyd gan Bwyllgor y 
Gwasanaethau Democrataidd mewn 
perthynas â gweddarlledu cyfarfodydd y 
cyngor ac, fel sefyllfa dros dro, y dylid nodi'r 
newidiadau i'r rheolau sefydlog sy'n 
gynwysedig yng nghyfansoddiad y cyngor i 
ganiatáu recordio cyfarfodydd y cyngor, 
cyhoeddi'r recordiadau hynny a ffrydio 
cyfarfodydd yn fyw;

Tudalen35



- 61 -

Dydd Iau, 2 Gorffennaf 2020

    3.      Rhoi caniatâd i Bennaeth y Gwasanaethau 
Cyfreithiol i wneud y newidiadau sy'n 
angenrheidiol i'r cyfansoddiad sy'n codi o 
gymeradwyo argymhellion 1 a 2 fel y nodir 
yn Atodiad 1 i'r adroddiad a ddosbarthwyd.

5. CYNLLUN DATBLYGU LLEOL CASTELL-NEDD PORT TALBOT 
2011-2026 

Derbyniodd y cyngor adroddiad Cyfarwyddwr yr Amgylchedd ac 
Adfywio mewn perthynas â Chynllun Datblygu Lleol yr Awdurdod. 
Nodwyd bod yr adroddiad wedi'i argymell i'r cyngor gan y Cabinet ar 
25 Mehefin 2020.

Mynegwyd pryder bod y tywydd gwael ar ddechrau'r flwyddyn a 
chyfyngiadau symud COVID- 19 wedi atal aelodau, y cyhoedd a 
rhanddeiliaid rhag cyfrannu at y broses ymgynghori. Byddai 
pwysigrwydd mewnbwn aelodau i’r broses yn cael ei amlygu 
yn y Cytundeb Cyflawni. Nodwyd y byddai'r broses i ddatblygu 
CDLl newydd yn cymryd tair blynedd a hanner ac y byddai'r 
CDLl cyfredol yn parhau i fod yn ei le nes bod y fersiwn newydd wedi'i 
mabwysiadu.

Mewn perthynas â chyfyngiadau symud COVID-19, teimlwyd bod hyn 
wedi amlygu pwysigrwydd lleoliaeth, ysbryd cymunedol, gwella 
hygyrchedd i'r cymoedd ar gyfer y cyhoedd a'r amgylchedd.  
Cytunodd aelodau fod angen i'r cynllun fod yn hyblyg a nodwyd y 
byddai hyblygrwydd y cynllun yn cael ei asesu 
fel rhan o'r profion cadernid.

Derbyniodd yr aelodau sicrwydd y byddai polisïau mewn perthynas â 
Thai Amlbreswyl (HMO’s) yn cael eu cynnwys yn y cynllun. Mewn 
perthynas â datblygiadau tai bach, nodwyd nad oedd rhai 
datblygiadau wedi ymddangos eto a bod hyn efallai oherwydd 
materion dichonoldeb. Cynhelir adolygiad o nifer yr aneddiadau a'u 
ffiniau hefyd. Nodwyd bod y gallu i gyflwyno hefyd yn brawf o 
gadernid y cynllun.

Mae cyfyngiadau symud COVID-19 wedi arwain at lawer o bobl yn 
gweithio gartref a'r gobaith oedd y gallai hyn barhau ar ôl y 
cyfyngiadau symud gan arwain at fwy o gyflogaeth yn ardaloedd y 
cymoedd.

Tudalen36



- 62 -

Dydd Iau, 2 Gorffennaf 2020

PENDERFYNWYD:       Cymeradwyo'r ymatebion a'r
                                       argymhellion i'r sylwadau a 
                                       dderbyniwyd, fel y nodir yn Atodiad 1 i'r  
                                       adroddiad a ddosbarthwyd, a bod yr
                                       Adroddiad Adolygu terfynol, fel y nodir 
                                       yn Atodiad 2 i'r adroddiad a 
                                       ddosbarthwyd, yn cael ei gymeradwyo.

6. DATGANIAD POLISI TÂL 

(Ailddatganodd y Prif Weithredwr, y Cyfarwyddwr Cyllid a 
Gwasanaethau Corfforaethol, y Cyfarwyddwr Addysg, Hamdden a 
Dysgu Gydol Oes, y Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol, 
Iechyd a Thai, Cyfarwyddwr yr Amgylchedd ac Adfywio, y Prif 
Weithredwr Cynorthwyol a'r Prif Swyddog Digidol, Pennaeth y 
Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a'r Pennaeth Cynllunio a Diogelu'r 
Cyhoedd eu buddiannau yn yr eitem hon, gan adael y cyfarfod ar 
gyfer y drafodaeth a'r bleidlais ar ôl hynny).

PENDERFYNWYD:     Cymeradwyo'r Datganiad Polisi Tâl ar
                                     gyfer 2020/2021, fel y'i nodir yn yr
                                     adroddiad a ddosbarthwyd, i'w gyhoeddi
                                     ar wefan y cyngor.  

7. EITEMAU BRYS 

Gwnaeth Arweinydd y Cyngor ddau ddatganiad fel a ganlyn:

Mae Bywydau Du o Bwys

Mae llofruddiaeth greulon George Floyd ar 25 Mai 2020 wedi achosi 
protestiadau rhyngwladol, a hynny'n iawn.

Dwi'n siŵr bod y digwyddiad hwn wedi brawychu holl aelodau'r 
cyngor ac y byddwch i gyd yn ymuno â mi i gondemnio'r hyn a 
ddigwyddodd. 

Mae llofruddiaeth George Floyd, sgandal Windrush ynghyd â 
digwyddiadau eraill yn ein hanes diweddar yn dangos, er gwaetha'r 
holl ymrwymiadau a wnaed i gyflawni cydraddoldeb hiliol ar draws 
cymdeithas, mae agweddau ac ymddygiad hirsefydlog tuag at bobl o 
gymunedau Du, Asiaidd a lleiafrifoedd ethnig yn bodoli o hyd, ac ni all 
hyn barhau. 

Tudalen37



- 63 -

Dydd Iau, 2 Gorffennaf 2020

Mae hyn yn arbennig o amlwg ar hyn o bryd pan fod pobl o 
gefndiroedd du, asiaidd a lleiafrifoedd ethnig yn chwarae rôl hanfodol 
mewn ymateb i argyfwng COVID-19 - yn aml ar y rheng flaen - ac ar 
yr un pryd, yn cael eu heffeithio'n anghymesur gan y clefyd, sy'n 
destun pryder. 

Hoffwn achub ar y cyfle hwn heddiw i gyflwyno gogwydd newydd ar 
sut rydym yn gweithio gyda'n cymunedau du, asiaidd a lleiafrifoedd 
ethnig yng Nghastell-nedd Port Talbot i gyflawni cydraddoldeb, ecwiti 
a chydlyniant cymdeithasol.

Fel cynghorwyr etholedig, rhaid i ni ddangos arweiniad wrth 
gyflwyno’r newid cymdeithasol sydd ei angen, a dangos bod bywydau 
du o bwys.

Digwyddiad ym Mlaendulais

Talodd yr Arweinydd deyrnged i'r gwasanaethau brys, staff y cyngor 
ac aelodau'r gymuned a helpodd i achub mam a'i dau blentyn o'u 
cartref yn dilyn y ffrwydrad nwy dinistriol ym Mlaendulais.

Eiliwyd hyn gan aelod ward yr ardal.

CHAIRPERSON

Tudalen38



NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

Council
9th September 2020

Report of the Head of Legal Services – Craig Griffiths

Matter for Decision

Wards Affected: All

Licensing Act 2003 - Review of Licensing Policy

Purpose of the Report 

1. To consider the draft revised Licensing Policy prior to consultation and 
approve a period of consultation for the aforementioned policy.

Executive Summary

2. The Council, as the Licensing Authority under the provisions of the 
Licensing Act 2003, are required to review its Licensing Policy every 5 
years.

3. Prior to adopting a revised Licensing Policy, the Licensing Authority must 
undertake a mandatory consultation exercise.

4. Council is being asked to consider whether any amendments are required 
to be made to the draft revised Licensing Policy prior to commencing the 
consultation exercise.  

Background 

5. The objective of the Licensing Act 2003 is to provide a clear, transparent 
framework for making decisions about applications by individuals or 

Tudalen39

Eitem yr Agenda4



businesses wishing to sell or supply alcohol, or provide certain types of 
regulated entertainment and late night refreshment.

6. The Council, as the Licensing Authority under the provisions of the 
Licensing Act 2003 is required to prepare a Licensing Policy which sets 
out how licensable activities will be regulated and how licensing functions 
will be exercised in their areas, as well as expectations of licence holders 
and operators.

7. The Licensing Policy sets out how licensees can contribute to creating the 
evening and night-time economy that the Council envisages, offering 
vibrant and varied town centres, which are safe, attractive places for all to 
enjoy.  The Policy covers areas such as 

a. Application processes

b. The types of regulated entertainment

c. The licensing objectives

i. Prevention of crime and disorder

ii. Public safety

iii. Prevention of public nuisance

iv. Protection of children from harm

d. Operating schedules and expectations of licence 
holders

e. Licence reviews, enforcement and the role of the 
responsible authorities.

8. The Council is required to review its Licensing Policy at least every 5 
years.  The existing Policy was published on the 31st January 2016 and 
therefore a revised Policy must be in place by the 31st January 2021. 

9. Prior to publishing a revised Licensing Policy, the Council must undertake 
a mandatory consultation exercise before formal approval by Council.  
The Policy must be published at least 4 weeks before it comes into effect.

Tudalen40



Officer Report

10. A copy of the draft revised Licensing Policy is attached at Appendix 1 to 
this report.

11. The structure of the policy has been amended significantly to reflect a 
template policy which has been shared across Wales, however 
fundamentally, the content has mainly been updated to reflect changes to 
guidance and various references to other policies and legislation that has 
come into force since 2015, the most significant being the Wellbeing of 
Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015.

12. Before a revised Licensing Policy can take effect, the Licensing Authority 
must carry out a mandatory consultation exercise.  The Licensing Act 
2003 specifies statutory consultees, however it is proposed that in 
addition to these, the consultation be as wide reaching as possible to 
include a range of interested parties, trade bodies, disability groups, drug 
and alcohol misuse groups and the general public. 

13. It is considered that the consultation process be for a minimum of 6 
weeks to allow time for responses to be submitted, following which 
comments will be brought back to a meeting of Council in December 2020 
for consideration.

14. An informal consultation with various partner agencies has already taken 
place and resulted in only a few minor changes.

15. The Licensing and Gambling Acts Committee also considered the draft 
revised Licensing Policy on the 25th August 2020 and suggested a 
glossary of terms be included in the policy; this is currently being 
developed and will be included in the document prior to consultation.

16. Council is being asked to consider whether any additional amendments 
are required prior to approval to commence the consultation exercise.

Financial Impact

17. Not applicable

Integrated Impact Assessment

18. A first stage impact assessment has been undertaken to assist the 
Council in discharging its legislative duties (under the Equality Act 2010, 

Tudalen41



the Welsh Language Standards (No.1) Regulations 2015, the Well-being 
of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 and the Environment (Wales) Act 
2016 

The first stage assessment has indicated that a more in-depth 
assessment is not required.  

Legal Impacts

19. The Council, as the Licensing Authority under the provisions of the 
Licensing Act 2003 are required to review its Licensing Policy every 5 
years.

Risk Management

20. Not applicable

Consultation 

21. Approval to commence the consultation process is required from Council

Recommendation 

22. It is recommended that delegated authority be granted to the Head of 
Legal Services to embark on a consultation exercise in respect of the 
proposed Licensing Act 2003 Policy, subject to any amendments 
proposed at Council and that a report be brought before Council in 
December 2020 for approval to adopt a Licensing Act 2003 policy, taking 
into account issues raised during the aforementioned consultation 
exercise.

Reasons for Proposed Decision 

23. In order to comply with the legal requirements as set out in the Licensing 
Act 2003

Implementation of Decision

24. The decision is for immediate implementation.

Tudalen42



Appendices 

25. Appendix 1 - Revised Draft Licensing Act Policy 2021. 

List of Background Papers

26. Section 182 Licensing Act 2003 guidance

27. Neath Port Talbot Licensing Policy 2016

28. Integrated Impact Assessment - First Stage Assessment

Officer Contact

29. Craig Griffiths
Head of Legal Services
Tel (01639) 763767
Email c.griffiths2@npt.gov.uk 

30. Neil Chapple
Licensing Manager
Tel (01639) 763050
Email n.chapple@npt.gov.uk

Tudalen43

mailto:c.griffiths2@npt.gov.uk
mailto:n.chapple@npt.gov.uk


Mae’r dudalen hon yn fwriadol wag



Licensing Act 2003
Draft Licensing Policy 2021

Further information can be obtained from:
Licensing Section
Civic Centre
Port Talbot
SA13 1PJ
Tel:  01639 763050 
Email: licensing@npt.gov.uk
Website:  www.npt.gov.uk/licensing

Tudalen45

mailto:licensing@npt.gov.uk
http://www.npt.gov.uk/licensing


1

Contents
Page

1.  Introduction .......................................................................................4

2. Profile of the County.........................................................................6

3. Licensing Committee........................................................................6

4. Fundamental Principles ...................................................................8

5. Zoning and licensing hours .............................................................8
Drinking up time/cooling down time ..................................................10

6. Commercial demand.......................................................................10

7. Alcohol Harm...................................................................................11

8. Drugs................................................................................................12

9. Licensing Objectives ......................................................................13

10. Prevention of crime and disorder..................................................14

11. Prevention of public nuisance.......................................................16
The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015,
Noise & Soundscape Management ..................................................18

12. Public Safety ...................................................................................18

13. Protection of children from harm ..................................................21

14. Rights of representation ................................................................23

15. Responsible authorities .................................................................24

16. Other persons .................................................................................25

17. Integrating strategies .....................................................................25
Crime and Disorder Act 1998............................................................26
The Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 .................26
Immigration Act 2016 ........................................................................26
Human Rights Act 1998 ....................................................................27

Tudalen46



2

Equality Act 2010 ..............................................................................27
Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 ........................27
Relationship with Planning Process..................................................29

18. Personal alcohol licence ................................................................30

19. Premises Licence............................................................................31

20. Club premises certificate ...............................................................32

21. Temporary Event Notices...............................................................33

22. Sale and supply of alcohol.............................................................34

23. Regulated entertainment................................................................35
Public Audience ................................................................................36
Overview of circumstances in which entertainment activities are
not licensable ....................................................................................36
Deregulatory changes where a licence is not required .....................37
Circumstances in which entertainment activities are no longer
licensable 
Local authorities, hospital healthcare providers and school
proprietors: cross entertainment activity exemption..........................39
Local authority, hospital and school premises: third party
music entertainment..........................................................................40
Community premises: music entertainment ......................................41
Community premises: exhibition of film ............................................41
Travelling Circuses ...........................................................................42
Live Music .........................................................................................42
Key terms used in relation to live music............................................43
Recorded Music ................................................................................44
Plays and Dance ...............................................................................44
Indoor Sport ......................................................................................44
Licence conditions
Live Music or Recorded Music ..........................................................45
Beer Gardens....................................................................................46
Plays, dance and indoor sport ..........................................................46
Boxing or wrestling entertainment and conditions relating to
combined fighting sports ...................................................................47
Conditions relating to other non-licensable activities ........................48
Incidental music ................................................................................48
Removing licence conditions ............................................................49
Busking .............................................................................................50

Tudalen47



3

Incidental Film...................................................................................50
Entertainment activity provided as part of childcare .........................51
Child performers ...............................................................................51

24. Administration.................................................................................52

25. Application procedures..................................................................52

26. Operating schedule ........................................................................55

27. Conditions .......................................................................................56

28. Applications where representations are received .......................57

29. Exercise and delegation of functions ...........................................61

30. Reviews of licences ........................................................................64

31. Cumulative Impact Assessment....................................................65

32. Early morning restriction orders ...................................................66

33. Hearings...........................................................................................66

34. Appeals ............................................................................................67

35. Implementing the determination of the Magistrates Court .........68

36. Enforcement ....................................................................................68

37. Fees generally .................................................................................69

38. Annual Fees for Premises Licences and Club Premises
Certificates ......................................................................................69

39. Licence suspension for non-payment of annual fees .................69

40. Late night levies..............................................................................70

41. Further information.........................................................................70

42. Glossary………….………………………………………………………71

Tudalen48



4

43.1. Introduction

1.1 The Licensing Act 2003 (“the 2003 Act”) requires the Council, in fulfilling its role 
as the Licensing Authority, to publish a “Licensing Policy” that sets out the 
policies the council will generally apply to promote the licensing objectives when 
making decisions on applications made under the 2003 Act.  This is that 
statement of policy prepared in accordance with the provisions of the 2003 Act 
and the latest version of Home Office Guidance issued under section 182 of the 
2003 Act

1.2 Neath Port Talbot Council (“the Council”) is the Licensing Authority under the 
Licensing Act 2003 and is responsible for granting premises licences, club 
premises certificates, and personal licences in respect of the sale and/or supply 
of alcohol and the provision of regulated entertainment and late night 
refreshment. Throughout the document, the Council will be referred to as the 
Licensing Authority, where appropriate to prevent confusion between this role 
and the other functions carried out by the Council.

1.3 This policy sets out how applications for licences, which are required by the 2003 
Act, will be considered by the Licensing Authority.

1.4 In developing this licensing policy, the advice of bodies such as Local 
Government (LG), the Welsh Local Government Association (WLGA) and 
various trade associations have been taken into account wherever possible.  
Where appropriate, the Licensing Policies of other Welsh authorities have also 
been taken into account, in order to achieve uniformity wherever possible and 
to help ensure the integration of the various policies over a wider geographical 
area. Other Corporate policies adopted by the Council have also been taken into 
account, and these will be referred to throughout this document as appropriate.

1.5 The Equalities Act 2010 introduced measures to tackle discrimination 
encountered by disabled people in certain areas including employment, and 
access to goods, facilities and services.  The applicant shall have regard to this 
legislation. However, the Licensing Authority will not use licensing to pursue 
such issues, other than where supported by legislation and accepted good 
practice.

1.6 Neath Port Talbot Council has a legal obligation to comply with all legislation 
that promotes equality it has a policy in place to promote equality to all.  The 
Planning and Public Protection Service Area has its own equalities framework 
which is available for inspection on our website. Licensing of persons and 

Tudalen49



5

premises under the Licensing Act 2003 will actively promote equality of service 
and enforcement to all members of the community.

1.7 The Human Rights Act 1998 incorporates the European Convention on Human 
Rights and makes it unlawful for a local authority to act in a way that is 
incompatible with such a right.  The Licensing Authority will have regard to the 
Human Rights Act when considering any licensing issues, and particularly in 
respect of the way in which applications are considered and enforcement 
activities are carried out.

1.8 Each application will be considered on its individual merits, and in the light of 
this Policy

1.9 The Licensing Authority acknowledges that it may need to depart from this Policy 
and from the guidance issued under the Act in individual and exceptional 
circumstances, and where the case merits such a decision in the interests of the 
promotion of the licensing objectives. Any such decision will be taken in 
consultation with the appropriate legal advisors for the Licensing Authority, and 
the reasons for any such departure will be fully recorded.

1.10 The licensing policy will not seek to regulate matters which are provided for in 
any other legislation and will seek to complement such regimes e.g. planning, 
health and safety, employment rights, fire safety, etc.

1.11 The Licensing Authority wishes to encourage licensees to provide a wide range 
of entertainment activities in Neath Port Talbot throughout their opening hours 
and to promote live music, dance, theatre, etc. for the wider cultural benefit of 
the community.

1.12 This Licensing Authority will update and publish a new Licensing Policy 
whenever necessary but in any case within five years of the date of this Policy, 
and will fully consult with partners, trade associations and residents groups as 
appropriate at that time, any representations received will be considered at that 
time.  However where updates are required due to changes in national 
legislation, statutory guidance or contact details the council reserves the right to 
amend this policy without consultation where it is necessary to ensure the policy 
reflects national legislation or statutory guidance.

1.13 This policy revision will take into account the following matters in its re-drafting.
 The amendment’s to the Licensing Act 2003 made by:

 The Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011
 The Live Music Act 2012

Tudalen50



6

 The Deregulation Act 2015
 Statutory instruments laid
 Revised Guidance issued under S182 of the Licensing Act 2003
 Immigration

2.2. Profile of Neath Port Talbot

2.1 Neath Port Talbot Council has a geographical area of 442km and is the eleventh 
largest council in Wales with a population of 139,880 (the 8th highest population 
density)  

The Council has adopted a Corporate Plan (2019-2022) and the Neath Port 
Talbot Public Services Board Well-being Plan (2018-2023).

The Council’s Corporate Plan sets out the Council’s well-being objectives which 
have been set so as to maximise the Council’s contribution to the seven national 
well-being goals whilst also discharging its duty to improve the economic 
environmental, social and cultural well-being of people in Neath, Port Talbot and 
Pontardawe and to carry out sustainable development.  The plan also sets 
priorities for improvement and describes how the Council is changing the way it 
does things to meet the needs of its communities. 

The Neath Port Talbot Public Services Board Well-being Plan sets out the Public 
Services Board’s long term vision for the area as well as priorities for action over 
the next 5 years.  The Plan contains well-being objectives identified by the Public 
Services Board and describes the practical steps that the Board will take to 
deliver objectives.

The Licensing Authority expects that those who operate or wish to operate 
licensed premises within Neath Port Talbot are familiar with both the Council’s 
Corporate Plan and the Public Services Board Well-being Plan and have regard 
to the well-being objectives that the Council and the Board are trying to achieve.  
            

3.3. Licensing Committee

3.1 The Council will appoint a Licensing Committee in accordance with its 
constitution. 

3.2 A Licensing Committee shall establish a Sub-Committee consisting of three 
Members of the Committee, to consider applications where representations 
have been received from any person and/or Responsible Authorities (see 
Section 15).

Tudalen51



7

3.3 In the interests of good governance, where a Councillor who is a Member of a 
Licensing Committee or a Licensing Sub-Committee has had a direct or indirect 
pecuniary or personal interest (as considered in their Code of Conduct) in any 
matter before them they will be disqualified from any involvement in the decision-
making process affecting the premises licence.  A Councillor will not sit on a 
Sub-Committee to consider an application within their ‘Ward’.

3.4 The Licensing Sub-Committee will refer to the Licensing Committee any matter 
it is unable to deal with because less than three members are able to consider 
the matter before the Sub-Committee. 

3.5 The Licensing Committee shall refer to the ‘Licensing Authority’ [the Council], 
any matter it is unable to deal with because less than the quorum of three 
Members are able to consider the matter before the Committee. 

3.6 Every determination of a licensing decision by the Licensing Committee or 
Licensing Sub-Committee shall be accompanied with reasons for the decision. 
A summary of the decision is notified to the parties to the hearing, a target time 
of three days, to be displayed on the Council’s website, or as soon as possible 
thereafter, where it will form part of the statutory licensing register.

3.7 The Council’s Licensing Officers will deal with all licence applications where no 
relevant representations have been received.  Where representations are 
received and amendments are made to the application and/or conditions added, 
to the satisfaction of all parties, final determination of the application must be 
made by the Licensing Sub-Committee; it is not usually necessary for any parties 
to attend this hearing. 

3.8 The Council will ensure that members and relevant officers are appropriately 
trained to carry out their duties under the Act.

3.9 Matters in respect of the Licensing Act 2003 are to be dealt with as specified in 
the Council’s scheme of delegation under its Constitution www.npt.gov.uk/1129.
 

Tudalen52

http://www.npt.gov.uk/1129


8

4.4. Fundamental principles

4.1 Licensing is about the control of licensed premises, qualifying clubs and 
temporary events within the terms of the 2003 Act, and conditions may be 
attached to licences, certificates and permissions that will cover matters which 
are within the control of individual licensees.

4.2 When considering these conditions, the Licensing Authority will primarily focus 
on the direct impact of the activities taking place at licensed premises on 
members of the public living, working or engaged in normal activity in the area 
concerned.

4.3 In this respect, the Licensing Authority recognises that, apart from the licensing 
function, there are a number of other mechanisms available for addressing 
issues that can occur away from the licensed premises, including:

 Planning controls;
 On-going measures to create a safe and clean environment in these 

areas in partnership with local businesses, transport operators and other 
Council departments;

 Designation of parts of the County of Neath Port Talbot as places where 
alcohol may not be consumed publicly;

 Regular liaison with Police on law enforcement issues regarding disorder 
and antisocial behaviour, including the issue of fixed penalty notices, 
prosecution of those selling alcohol to people who are drunk, confiscation 
of alcohol from adults and children in designated areas and instantly 
closing down licensed premises or temporary events on the grounds of 
disorder, or likelihood of disorder or excessive noise from the premises;

 The power of the Police, other responsible authority or interested party to 
seek a review of the licence or certificate.

5.5. Zoning and licensing hours

5.1 Paragraph 10.13 of the Government’s current Section 182 Guidance states that:
“The 2003 Act gives the Licensing Authority power to make decisions about the 
hours during which premises can conduct licensable activities as part of the 
implementation of its licensing policy statement.  Licensing authorities are best 
placed to make decisions about appropriate opening hours in their areas based 
on their local knowledge and in consultation with responsible authorities.  

Tudalen53



9

However, licensing authorities must always consider each application and must 
not impose predetermined licensed opening hours, without giving individual 
consideration to the merits of each application”

5.2 Paragraph 13.41 of the Government’s current Section 182 Guidance goes on to 
state that:
“As part of its licensing policy, the Licensing Authority may also wish to consider 
the use of alternative measures such as fixed closing times and zoning within its 
area, providing such mechanisms are justified on the basis of the licensing 
objectives and are only presumptive, with final decisions continuing to be made 
in relation to the individual premises on a case by case basis in accordance with 
what is appropriate to promote the licensing objectives.  The Licensing Authority 
would be expected to include its intention to use such measures in its statement 
of licensing policy and justify doing so in order to orchestrate closing times so 
as to manage problems in the night-time economy based on the promotion of 
the licensing objectives.  As with the creation of a cumulative impact policies, 
the use of such mechanisms would create a rebuttable presumption and would 
apply in the event of representation being received”

5.3 When dealing with licensing hours, the Licensing Authority recognises the 
requirement that each application will be dealt with on its individual merits.  
Nonetheless, whilst the Licensing Authority does not wish to unduly inhibit the 
continuing development of a thriving and safe evening and night time local 
economy, the Authority considers that it is vital to create an appropriate balance 
between the economic needs of licensed premises and the rights of local 
residents to be able to enjoy a reasonable degree of peace and quiet at noise-
sensitive times. To this end, the Licensing Authority is prepared to consider 
identifying zones in its area where hours of operation for licensable activities will 
be fixed.  This will be applied in the event of representations being made upon 
an application unless the Licensing Sub-Committee is persuaded that it would 
not be appropriate to apply them in the circumstances of the application. 

5.4 The Licensing Authority notes that the Government’s Section 182 Guidance 
states “Shops, stores and supermarkets should normally be free to provide sales 
of alcohol for consumption off the premises at any times when the retail outlet is 
open for shopping unless there are good reasons, based on the licensing 
objectives, for restricting those hours”.  However, because of the problems 
experienced in some local communities in Neath Port Talbot arising from the 
availability of alcohol for sale at local shops for consumption off the premises 
this Licensing Authority has decided that it will not adopt this general position 
but instead will expect applicants and licence-holders to trade alcohol at hours 
which are appropriate to their particular local environment.  Therefore applicants 
should very carefully consider the hours they seek when devising their operating 

Tudalen54



10

schedule and it is recommended to discuss such application with the appropriate 
Responsible Authorities.

5.5 In the event that applications are submitted which have not demonstrated that 
appropriate alcohol trading hours have been properly considered, it is likely that 
representations will be made by the relevant responsible authorities and the 
public. This will delay the determination of the application and result in it being 
referred to a Licensing Sub-Committee for determination.

5.6 Once an application, or an existing licence in the case of a review, is referred to 
a Sub-Committee it can be expected that the Sub-Committee will scrutinise the 
application or licence very carefully and arrive at a decision regarding hours. 
Appropriate hours will be considered to promote the licensing objectives and 
may even result in the refusal of the application or the revocation of a licence.

5.7 For example, in local areas where there may be a concentration of problematic 
drinkers or where it is known that groups of people congregated and have 
caused anti-social behaviour.  Applicants should very carefully consider the 
appropriateness of selling alcohol during early morning or late evening hours.

5.8 Drinking up time / cooling down time

Even though the traditional drinking up time was not carried over into the 2003 
Act, the Council recommends that applicants of premises licensed for the on-
sale of alcohol should consider a drinking up / cooling down period. During this 
time music volume may be reduced, customers may finish their drinks and make 
arrangements for transportation from the premises.  The Council considers that 
a 30-minute drinking up time will assist in the gradual dispersal of customers 
and consequently reduce any potential negative impact on the area. 

6.6. Commercial demand

6.1 The commercial demand for additional premises licences (as distinct from 
cumulative impact) will not be a matter for the Licensing Authority. These matters 
would be a specific consideration for the Local Planning Authority taking into 
account the demands of the licensed trade and market demands.

Tudalen55



11

7.7. Alcohol Harm

7.1 The evidence base for the impact of alcohol use on health and well-being is 
strong.  Alcohol use contributes to over 60 different health conditions including 
liver disease, foetal alcohol syndrome and several cancers.  Research shows 
that as well as being a contributor to a wide range of diseases and conditions, 
alcohol use can result in injuries and can contribute to, trigger and/or exacerbate 
mental health conditions. In addition, alcohol is a major cause of death and 
illness in Wales with around 1,500 deaths attribute to alcohol each year, (1 in 20 
of all deaths). 

7.2 Research has repeatedly shown that the economic, geographical and temporal 
availability of alcohol has a significant effect on the level of alcohol related 
harms, including health harms.  Research and real-life experiments have shown 
that the range of times and days alcohol is available for sale has a significant 
impact on the harms caused by alcohol.  The geographical ease of access also 
has an impact, as shown by a large body of research into outlet density.  
Research conducted in 2017 demonstrated that actively enforced Licensing 
policies lead to a reduction in alcohol-related hospital admissions.  These are all 
factors that are influenced by local licensing frameworks and operational and 
enforcement approaches to licensing. 

7.3 Research has demonstrated that the most effective and cost-effective approach 
to tackle the harms from alcohol misuse is to reduce the affordability, availability 
of and access to alcohol. The World Health Organisation and Public Health 
Wales have identified reducing the availability of and access to alcohol as key 
to reducing alcohol related health harms.

7.4 The intent of the 2003 Act is to regulate the supply of alcohol.  Licensing is 
therefore the key mechanism by which the availability of alcohol can be 
regulated, through regulating the times and days of the week alcohol can be 
sold, premises which can supply alcohol and the conditions of sale.

7.5 Within the context of promoting the four licensing objectives, the Licensing 
Authority expects applicants to propose licensing conditions to mitigate the 
impact their premises may have on the health and well-being of their customers, 
the neighbourhood and the wider community. For examples of licensing 
conditions that can promote health and wellbeing reference can be made to 
Neath Port Talbot Council’s ‘Model Pool of Conditions’.

Tudalen56



12

7.6 In addition, the Licensing Authority expects applicants to consider the impact 
their premises may have on people vulnerable to alcohol misuse, in particular 
children and young people and problematic drinkers.  Commissioned alcohol 
treatment services are set within the communities they serve.  The availability of 
alcohol in near proximity to treatment services can create specific issues for 
treatment providers.  The Licensing Authority expects applicants to consider and 
mitigate the harm by including licensing conditions when their premises is close 
to the location of treatment services, and areas where children and young people 
may congregate, such as schools, youth clubs and parks.

8.8. Drugs

8.1 The harms from drug misuse are numerous, and not restricted to health harms.  
Welsh drug death levels were at their highest ever level in 2018-19 with deaths 
from drug poisoning having increased by 78% over the last 10 years.  Drug 
deaths appear to be increasingly occurring in people using drugs on a 
recreational basis.  

8.2 The UK’s drug market is rapidly evolving, with common street drugs continuing 
to increase in strength and purity, and an ever-widening array of substances in 
circulation.  Licensing has a role in reducing the harms from drug misuse in the 
Night Time Economy and our licensed premises.

8.3 Where there are issues of concern the Licensing Authority will expect to see 
evidence that the drug policy has been implemented and reviewed.

8.4 Within the context of promoting the licensing objectives for preventing crime and 
disorder and ensuring public safety, the Licensing Authority expects applicants 
and licensees to:

 Take all reasonable steps to prevent the entry of drugs into licensed 
premises

 Take all reasonable steps to prevent drugs changing hands within the 
premises

 Train staff to recognise understand the signs of drug misuse in people so 
that practical steps can be taken to deal with instances that occur

 Have appropriately trained staff to deal with drug related incidents
 Display appropriate drug safety awareness information to customers
 Provide a first aid room and first aid equipment, including a defibrillator in 

larger venues
 Deploy staff trained to assist with medical incidents

Tudalen57



13

 Implement an appropriate banning policy

8.5 At the request of South Wales Police, licensed premises would be required to 
seize, retain and document any drugs found, with a clear audit trail and a 
process for surrender in compliance with South Wales Police written policy. 
Furthermore, in the interest of Crime and Disorder, South Wales Police would 
also require licensed premises to allow the use of the ION Track machine on 
their premises to assist with identifying the areas where illegal drugs may be 
used at the venue.

8.6 The Licensing Authority recognises that drug misuse is not something that is 
relevant to all licensed premises. However, it is committed to the reduction and 
eradication where possible of drugs from licensed premises as part of its role in 
promoting the crime and disorder licensing objective. The Licensing Authority 
expects all licence holders to actively support this aim in the way that they plan, 
manage and operate premises.

8.7 If relevant representations are received to an application for grant or variation of 
a licence, special conditions may be imposed to support the prevention of the 
illegal supply or use of controlled drugs.  Advice on conditions will be sought 
from the Police or any other relevant organisation involved in the control of 
controlled drugs or the support and/or treatment of drug users.

8.8 In premises where drug misuse is problematic and where any responsible 
authority or other person apply for a review of the licence, the Licensing Authority 
will consider this as being very serious and will give appropriate consideration 
to the full range of options available, including suspension and revocation of the 
licence in accordance with the statutory guidance issued by the secretary of 
state.  The Licensing Authority recognises that each case is individual and will 
be decided on its own facts and specific merits

9.9. Licensing Objectives

9.1 The Licensing Authority has a duty under the 2003 Act to carry out its functions with a 
view to promoting the licensing objectives.  The licensing objectives (of which each one 
is of equal importance) are:

 The prevention of crime and disorder;
 Public safety;
 The prevention of public nuisance;
 The protection of children from harm.

9.2 It is recognised that the licensing function is not the primary method of securing the 
delivery of these objectives.  The Licensing Authority will therefore continue to work in 

Tudalen58



14

partnership with its neighbouring authorities, the Police, Health Board, Immigration, 
Safer Neath Port Talbot, local businesses, licensees and local people towards the 
promotion of the objectives.

10.10. Prevention of crime and disorder

10.1 Licensed premises, especially those offering late night/early morning 
entertainment, alcohol and refreshment for large numbers of people, can be a 
source of crime and disorder problems.

10.2 The Licensing Authority will expect operating schedules (see section 27) to 
satisfactorily address these issues from the design of the premises through to 
the day-to-day operation of the business.

10.3 Applicants are recommended to seek advice from the Licensing Authority’s 
licensing officers and the Police, as well as taking into account, as appropriate, 
local planning and transport policies, tourism, cultural and crime prevention 
strategies, when preparing their plans and operating schedules.

10.4 The Licensee/applicant should also use their own experience and knowledge of 
their customers and locations when drafting their operating schedule, which 
subsequently becomes the basis of conditions on the licence.  Failure to do this 
may lead to a representation from the Authority, a responsible authority or other 
person.  Applicants may wish to consider the following and are advised to refer 
to the Authority’s ‘Model Pool of Conditions’ when considering an application.
 Is there CCTV, and, if so what are the areas covered, does it have the ability 

to see clear full face recording of patrons entering? Does it record the patron 
search area at the entrance?  What is the retention period of recordings? 
How easy it to access, produce copies or download images if requested by 
Police and Licensing?

 Are Security Industry Authority (SIA) door staff employed and what checks 
are made to the validity of the SIA licence? What records are kept of SIA 
checks, search policy, entrance policy, restriction of patrons using outside 
areas, such as smoking areas, employment times of SIA and their training?

 Is there ID scanning on entry to the premises?  Will there be ‘No ID No Entry’ 
policy in place?

 Is there a clear drug and weapon policy? Is there a regular documented 
training of this policy carried out with staff when drugs/weapons are seized 
or stored? Are areas or surfaces designed to prevent the likelihood of drug 
use at the premises?

Tudalen59



15

 Has the use of plastic or toughened glass for serving of alcohol been 
considered? Will glass bottles be handed over the bar? Are there restrictions 
of drinks being taken outside?

 Is there a proof of age scheme? Do the premises have a challenge 25 
policy? Are staff trained regularly on this policy and is it documented? 

10.5 The Licensing Authority acknowledges that although South Wales Police and 
other criminal justice services suffer the greatest resource burden from 
preventable alcohol related crime and disorder; the health system is also 
impacted.  Preventable alcohol-related attendances and admissions have a 
negative impact on limited NHS resources, staff and other patients.  Physical 
injury and the psychological impacts from violent incidents directly affect the 
health and well-being of individuals, their family, friends and work colleagues, 
our public service staff and licensed premises staff who deal with these 
incidents, and the local community.  Responsible Authorities will work together, 
sharing all available local data, and will use NHS sources of data to promote this 
licensing objective.

10.6 The Council, in general, will endeavour to reduce crime and disorder throughout 
the County in accordance with its statutory duty under s.17 of the Crime and 
Disorder Act 1998.

10.7

 10.8

The Council, through agencies working together and sharing information aim to 
identify and prevent sexual exploitation, modern slavery and human trafficking. 
Licence holders can help as they may become aware or come into contact with 
such victims. This may be in hotels, bars and restaurants, late night takeaways, 
off licences or other licensed premises.  Licence holders, and staff employed in 
licensed premises, are in an ideal position to help protect people.

Modern slavery and human trafficking is a crime and a violation of fundamental 
human rights and can take various forms such as slavery, servitude and 
compulsory labour.  The licence holder and staff who work in licensed premises 
should look for and ask themselves the following;

 Has the person got any physical signs of abuse or neglect? Deprived of 
food, water, sleep, medical care or other life necessities?

 You see worrying behaviour towards someone.
 Is the victim in possession of a passport, identification or travel 

documents? Are these documents in possession of someone else?
 Does the victim act as if they were instructed or coached by someone 

else? Do they allow others to speak when spoken directly?

Tudalen60



16

 Was the victim recruited for one purpose and forced to engage in some 
other job? Was their transport paid for by facilitators, whom they must pay 
back through providing services?

 Does the victim receive little or no payment for their work? Is someone 
else in control of their earnings?

 Was the victim forced to perform sexual acts?
 Does the victim have freedom of movement? Can they freely contact 

friends and family? Do they have limited social interaction?
 Has the victim or family been threatened with harm if the victim attempts 

to escape?
 Is the victim bonded by debt, or in a situation of dependence?

If there are concerns, the licence holder are to report the matter to Modern Day 
Slavery helpline on 08000 121 700 or visit the website 
https://www.modernslaveryhelpline.org/report.  If someone is in immediate 
danger to call the Police on 999.  

In addition, all staff who are employed in the UK must have the right to work in 
the UK.  Employing someone illegally without carrying out the prescribed checks 
can lead to robust sanctions against the licence holder. 

11.11. Prevention of public nuisance

11.1 Licensed premises have significant potential to impact adversely on persons 
living and working (including those carrying on business) in the area around the 
premises, and also further afield through public nuisances that arise from their 
operation. It is therefore important that in considering the promotion of this 
licensing objective, Licensing Authorities and Responsible Authorities focus on 
the effect of the licensable activities at the specific premises on these parties 
which may be disproportionate and unreasonable

11.2 The definition of what may be considered as a potential or actual ‘public 
nuisance’ is to be interpreted in line with its broad common law meaning 
established through relevant case law. This is the interpretation which the 
Licensing Authority will apply when considering such matters. Matters giving rise 
to ‘public nuisance’ are mainly accepted to include issues relating to noise, light 
pollution, odour and litter. It may also arise as a result of the adverse effects of 
dust, insects, accumulations or any other matter which is determined to have an 
adverse impact on the living and working environment of other persons living 
and working in the area of the licenced premises.  

Tudalen61

https://www.modernslaveryhelpline.org/report


17

11.3

11.4

The Licensing Authority recognise that limiting the public nuisance that may be 
associated with licensed premises and their operation is an important factor for 
health and well-being.

The Licensing Authority acknowledges the key links to health and well-being from 
public nuisance in terms of disturbed sleep, stress caused by nuisance and 
pollution. Disturbed sleep and stress can add to residents’ mental and physical 
health issues, and their wider wellbeing. Lack of sleep can have an impact on the 
immune system and can contribute to heart disease and diabetes.  Lack of sleep 
can also contribute to anxiety and depression. Stress can contribute to anxiety 
and depression, and cardio-vascular diseases.  Applicants should consider the 
potential impact their premises may have on public nuisance particularly from 
noise and put in place mitigating measures. 

11.5 The Licensing Authority expects applicants for premises licences and club 
premises certificates to have made relevant enquiries and considerations about 
the local area before submitting their application. The purpose of this is to enable 
the applicant to consider the most appropriate controls for potential inclusion in 
the operating schedule with a view to ensuring their activities do not undermine 
the licensing objective, with regard to the prevention of public nuisance. It is 
important to recognise that the impacts of licensed activity are not contained 
within a building. Inevitably there is a wider impact as people travel to and from 
the premises or congregate outside whilst it is in operation. Nuisance is best 
managed by careful consideration of the suitability of the selected site and any 
necessary mitigation at an early stage.

11.6 Applicants will be encouraged to demonstrate in their Operating Schedule that 
suitable and sufficient measures have been identified and will be implemented 
and maintained to prevent public nuisance. When a suitable site is identified, 
operating schedules should be prepared on the basis of a risk assessment of 
the potential sources of nuisance posed by the premises operation to those 
who may be impacted by their activities. The operating schedule should 
demonstrate an understanding of the level of risk of nuisance and include 
positive measures to manage any potential risks.

11.7 The Licensing Authority recommends that licensees apply a high standard of 
control to minimise the potential for any public nuisance that may arise from their 
operation of the premises, particularly where:

• they are situated in a residential or noise sensitive area; or

• extended opening hours are proposed.

Tudalen62



18

11.8 The Licensing Authority recognises that beyond the immediate area surrounding 
the licensed premises the control that a licence-holder can exert over its patrons 
diminishes and individuals who engage in anti-social behaviour are accountable 
in their own right. However, applicants are encouraged to consider the actions 
they may take as a responsible licence-holder to mitigate the potential adverse 
impact of patrons. The operating schedule should again be used to demonstrate 
an understanding of the potential risks and the positive measures that may be 
implemented to manage such issues.

11.9 Applicants are encouraged to engage with the Licensing Authority and other 
relevant Responsible Authorities (such as Environmental Health) at an early 
stage and prior to the submission of an application, wherever reasonably 
practicable. These Authorities will be able to provide advice in respect of 
appropriate control measures that may be put in place, and included in the 
operating schedule, to mitigate the potential risks of public nuisance occurring.

11.10 The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015, Noise & 
Soundscape Management. 

The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 (hereinafter referred to 
as the WFG Act 2015) places a duty on Local Authorities including the Licensing 
Authority to embody sustainable development principles aimed at achieving 
seven prescribed well-being goals as part of its fundamental operation; this 
includes the delivery of its Licensing function. One of the cornerstone areas of 
consideration is the management of noise and its impact on health and well-
being. 

11.11 The Statutory Licensing guidance issued under Section 182 of the 2003 Act does 
not currently provide any reference to how operationally Licensing Authorities are 
to have regard to the requirements of the WFG Act 2015 specifically as it may 
relate to the promotion of the Licensing Objective, the Prevention of Public 
Nuisance. It is clear however in the Welsh Government’s ‘Noise and Soundscape 
Action Plan 2018-2023’ that there is recognition of the impact of noise.  The 
Licensing Authority will have regard to this action plan when determining 
applications.  The action plan is available on the Welsh Government website at 
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-04/noise-and-soundscape-
action-plan.pdf.

12.12. Public safety

12.1 The Council is committed to ensuring that the safety of any person visiting or 
working in licensed premises is not compromised.  Applicants will be expected 
to demonstrate in their Operating Schedule that suitable and sufficient measures 

Tudalen63

https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-04/noise-and-soundscape-action-plan.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-04/noise-and-soundscape-action-plan.pdf


19

have been identified and will be implemented and maintained to ensure public 
safety, relevant to the individual style and characteristics of their premises and 
events.  Applicants are advised to seek advice from various organisations, such 
as the Neath Port Talbot health and safety enforcement officers, South Wales 
Fire and Rescue Service etc., before preparing their plans and schedules, 
particularly where regulated entertainment is to be provided.

12.2 The Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005 introduced a requirement that 
any person responsible for the management of a premises must make a suitable 
and sufficient assessment of the risks, to which persons may be exposed for the 
purpose of identifying the general fire precautions, which need to be taken.  
Therefore no conditions may be imposed on an authorisation where it directly 
relates to fire safety. It is expected therefore that authorisation holders will 
conduct a thorough risk assessment which is regularly reviewed and updated.  
The risk assessment should be retained at the premises and be available upon 
request by any authorised officer of the Council.

12.3 Where an applicant identifies an issue with regard to public safety, which is not 
covered by existing legislation, the applicant should indicate in the operating 
schedule the steps which will be taken to ensure public safety.  

Depending on the individual style and characteristics of the premises and/or 
events, the following issues may be relevant:

 The number of people attending the premises/safe capacity levels, 
(factors may include access and egress, flow around premises, comfort 
levels, seating provisions, dance areas, accessibility to bars, etc);

 The age, condition, design and layout of the premises, including the 
means of escape in case of an emergency;

 The nature of the activities to be provided, in particular the sale or supply 
of alcohol and/or the provision of music and dancing and including 
whether those activities are of a temporary or permanent nature;

 The hours of operation, differentiating between the hours of opening from 
the hours when the licensable activities will be provided;

 Customer profile (e.g. age, disability etc.);
 The use of special effects such as lasers, pyrotechnics, smoke machines, 

foam machines etc.
 Electrics and heating as part of the risk assessment.

12.4 The following examples of control measures are considered to be important and 
should be taken into account by applicants in their Operating Schedule, having 
regard to the particular type of premises and/or activities -

 Suitable and sufficient risk assessments;

Tudalen64



20

 Effective and responsible management of premises;
 Provision of a sufficient number of people employed or engaged to secure 

the safety of everyone attending the premises or event;
 Appropriate instruction, training and supervision of those employed or 

engaged to secure the safety of everyone attending the premises;
 Adoption of best practice guidance (Assistance can be obtained by 

contacting such Environmental Health, Fire Safety and HSE).
 Provision of effective CCTV in and around premises;
 Implementation of crowd management measures;
 Regular testing (and certification where appropriate) of procedures, 

appliances, systems etc. pertinent to safety.
 Appropriate First Aid facilities and staff training on when to administer/ not 

administer First Aid.

12.5 The authority recommends that specialists, e.g. qualified safety officer, should 
be consulted to assist with an assessment of public safety issues, (excluding fire 
safety as such a risk assessment is a mandatory requirement).

12.6 South Wales Police promotes the use of polycarbonate drinking vessels to 
reduce injuries caused either deliberately or accidentally from glass drinking 
vessels.  The Licensing Authority supports this initiative and would advise any 
applicant or authorisation holder, that toughened glass often lose their tempering 
through repeated use, and should consider the introduction of solely 
polycarbonate or plastic drinking vessels. Where premises are associated with 
crime and disorder, the Council may also advocate that open glass bottles for 
consumption on the premises should not be permitted and that contents are 
decanted before serving to customers, the purpose being to reduce any 
incidents where bottles may be used as weapons.

12.7 

12.8

The Licensing Authority acknowledges that there are links between public safety 
and health, for example injuries suffered in licensed premises that need medical 
treatment.  Falls are a contributor to alcohol related hospital attendances and 
admissions.

Considering and noting issues relating to public safety in responses to a 
licensing application can be an effective way of addressing these issues through 
conditions being placed on a licence, or, in more extreme cases a licence not 
being granted.  The Health Board, as a Responsible Authority, may be able to 
provide evidence of prevalence, costs and impacts of public safety issues as 
appropriate.

Tudalen65



21

13.13. Protection of children from harm

13.1 Nothing in this statement of policy shall limit or require access of children to 
premises unless there is an overriding requirement of necessity to prevent harm 
to children.  Areas that will give rise to particular concern are highlighted 
elsewhere in this policy.

13.2 With the exception of the restrictions specified in Section 145, the 2003 Act does 
not prohibit children from having free access to any licensed premises.  
However, the Licensing Authority recognises that limitations may have to be 
considered where it appears necessary to protect children from harm.

13.3 The Licensing Authority will not impose any condition that specifically requires 
access for children to be provided at any premises.  Where no restriction or 
limitation is imposed the issue of access will remain a matter for the discretion 
of the individual premises or club.

13.4 The 2003 Act details a number of offences designed to protect children in 
licensed premises and the Licensing Authority will work closely with the Police 
to ensure the appropriate enforcement of the law, especially relating to the sale 
and supply of alcohol to children.

13.5 The Director Social Services Health and Housing for the authority will be 
consulted on issues relating to protecting children from harm.

13.6

13.7

Safeguarding children is everyone’s responsibility. Child sexual exploitation is a 
crime that can affect any child, anytime, anywhere – regardless of their social or 
ethnic background. Child sexual exploitation involves perpetrators grooming 
youngsters and using their powers and it can take many forms, whether it occurs 
through a seemingly ‘consensual’ relationship with an older partner, having sex 
in return for attention, gifts, money, alcohol and cigarettes. Violence, coercion 
and intimidation are common forms of exploitation, with some vulnerable 
children being given drugs or made to sell drugs and/or are forced to be part of 
county lines network. 

Hotels, bars and restaurants, late night takeaways, off licences or other licensed 
premises may come into contact with such children. This Authority encourages 
those premises to look out for signs of possible exploitation.  Licence holders 
and staff should look for and ask themselves the following -

 Does a child appear to be in a relationship with an older person?
 Does the child appear to be under the influence of alcohol or drugs?

Tudalen66



22

13.8

13.9

 Is the hotel booking done by an adult, who is trying to conceal they are 
with a young person?

 Numerous adults and young people coming to a hotel who do not 
appear to have a reason for being there, or high levels of visitors to a 
guest room. With guests moving in and out of the premises at unusual 
times.

 Guests arriving and asking for specific rooms number without knowing 
the name of the person the room is booked under.

For safeguarding children, the Council do not support contactless check in 
systems (virtual reception) whereby no members of staff will have interaction 
with the customers at a hotel.  

If there are concerns, the licence holder and staff are to report the matter to 
either Neath Port Talbot Safeguarding on 01639 686868 or Police Safeguarding 
on 101.   If someone is in immediate danger to call the Police on 999.

13.10

13.11

The Licensing Authority acknowledges that compared to adults, children and 
young people are at higher risk of harm in relation to alcohol use and 
consumption, and the health impacts can be higher where they happen.  
Children and young people are also more vulnerable to certain harms in licensed 
settings. Furthermore, earlier take up of regular drinking increases lifetime risks 
of alcohol-related harms.

Children and young people have multiple vulnerabilities related to the impact that 
alcohol can have on their health and development.  They have higher levels of 
vulnerability and risk associated with being on licensed premises that need to be 
considered and appropriately addressed in licensing policies, practices and 
processes.  A significant impact from a child or young person suffering illness, 
injury or dependence as a result of access to alcohol and licensed premises is 
likely to fall to the Health Board. 

The Licensing Authority also acknowledges the serious impact of parental alcohol 
misuse on children at every age, and the long-term consequences (i.e. adverse 
childhood experiences). There is potential for lower levels of harmful parental 
alcohol consumption having a beneficial impact on reducing childhood adversity 
in the home environment (e.g. reductions in violence, in particular domestic 
abuse).

13.12 Evidence demonstrates that young people are more vulnerable than adults to 
the adverse effects of alcohol due to a range of physical and psycho-social 
factors.  As such, initiatives to prevent the sale and supply of alcohol to children 
are supported.

Tudalen67



23

14.13.13    The Authority expects age verification measures to be operated by licensed 
premises involved in the sale and supply of alcohol to ensure the licensing 
objective for the protection of children is met.  To support the age-verification 
process the Authority strongly recommended that premises have the following 
measures in place to ensure age verification for sales -

 That ‘Challenge 25’ is supported as part of the age verification scheme 
established.  The scheme should require the production of evidence of 
age from any person appearing to staff engaged in selling or supplying 
alcohol to be under the age of 25 and who is attempting to buy alcohol.

 That evidence of the scheme (in the form of documented procedures) is 
maintained and made available for inspection by authorised officers.

 That all staff involved in the sale of alcohol shall be trained in age 
verification schemes and proxy sales, where a person attempts to buy 
alcohol for a person under 18.  Records of such training shall be retained 
on the premises and made available for inspection by authorised officers.

 That an incident log be maintained, and details of all age-related refusals 
recorded.  This book shall be reviewed monthly by the DPS and actions 
taken recorded in the book and signed off by the DPS.  The log shall be 
retained on the premises and made available for inspection by authorised 
officers.

 That a personal licence holder shall be on the premises at all times that 
alcohol is supplied.

 That the DPS shall ensure that, as far as is reasonably practical, alcohol 
is displayed in an area which can be constantly monitored or supervised 
by staff, separate from goods likely to be purchased by persons under 18.

14. Rights of representations

14.1 The Licensing Authority will expect applicants to address the licensing objectives 
in their operating schedule having regard to the type of premises, the licensable 
activities to be provided, the operational procedures, the nature of the location 
and the needs of the local community. In this way, those with a right to make 
representations or objections are able to fully assess the factors that may affect 
them.

14.2 Relevant representations may be made by a responsible authority, other 
persons or organisations representing them, but they should state whether they 
are making a representation on their own behalf or on behalf of another person.
 

14.3 Amendments to the 2003 Act have inserted the term ‘other person’ to replace 
‘interested party’ as someone who can make representations, it also removed 
the vicinity test for residents and the specific term of councillor.  This opens up 

Tudalen68



24

the range of persons who may make representation and includes for example 
the following:-

 Residents living near the premises
 Persons with an interest in the premises or locality
 Local councillors
 Businesses with an interest in the premises or locality.
 Organisations with an interest in the locality, premises or licensable 

activities.

The Council will have to decide if the representation is relevant and/or 
reasonable, and in making that assessment will assess the person or 
organisation making the representation and their relationship to the premises 
and or vicinity.

14.4 Relevant representations will be taken as those that relate to the fundamental 
principles of the Licensing Act, any organisation or individual wishing to object 
to any application will therefore need to state whether they are doing so on the 
grounds of:
 

 The prevention of crime and disorder;
 Public safety;
 The prevention of public nuisance;
 The protection of children from harm.

14.5 Unreasonable, frivolous and vexatious representations will be disregarded. 
Representations that have been made and considered elsewhere, for example 
as an objection to a planning application, may also be disregarded where 
consideration of such representations would be duplication.

14.6 Petitions may be accepted if the Licensing Authority believes all those that 
signed the petition understood the implications of what they were signing.  
Please refer to 29.24 below for further guidance.

15.15. Responsible authorities

15.1 The Licensing Act 2003 as amended specifies who is responsible authorities 
that may make representations on applications or apply for the review of a 
premises licence or club premises certificate,  and they are:

 The Chief Officer of Police
 The Fire Authority

Tudalen69



25

 The enforcing authority for Health and Safety at Work
 The Local Planning Authority
 The local authority responsible for minimising or preventing the risk of 

pollution of the environment or of harm to human health
 The local weights and measures authority
 The Director of Social Services and the body representing matters 

relating to the protection of children from harm, currently the Local
 Western Bay Children Safeguarding Board
 In relation to a vessel, a navigation authority, the Environment Agency, 

or the British Waterways Board
 The Local Health Board 
 The Licensing Authority
 Immigration (Home Office Immigration Enforcement)

16.16. Other persons

16.1 Changes to the Licensing Act 2003 by virtue of the Police Reform and Social 
Responsibility Act 2011 have now removed the test of “vicinity” from the 2003 
Act and consequently, the categories of “interested party” no longer exist. 

16.2 Therefore, any person is able to make representations in relation to certain types 
of applications as an “Other Person” However; all representations must relate to 
the licensing objectives and may not be frivolous or vexatious. 

17.17. Integrating strategies

17.1 The ‘Secretary of State’s Guidance to the Licensing Act 2003’ states that the 
Licensing Authority should outline how it will secure proper integration between 
its licensing policy with policies and strategies concerned with local crime 
prevention, planning, transport, tourism, equality schemes, cultural strategies 
and any other policy or plan introduced for the management of town centres and 
night time economies. The Licensing Authority agree that such co-ordination and 
integration is crucial to achieve the Council’s aims for a safe and vibrant night 
time economy.  Other pieces of legislation may influence directly or indirectly on 
the licensing regime.  The Licensing Authority must have regard to the following 
when it discharges its responsibilities under the 2003 Act an in relation to the 
promotion of the four licensing objectives:

Tudalen70



26

17.2

17.3

17.4

Crime and Disorder Act 1998

The Crime and Disorder Act 1998 requires local authorities and other bodies to 
consider crime and disorder reduction.  Section 17 of the Act states that it shall 
be the duty of each authority, to exercise its various functions with due regard to 
the likely effect the exercise of those functions on, and the need to do all that it 
reasonably can to prevent, crime and disorder in its area (including anti-social 
and other behaviour adversely affecting the local environment).  This links 
specifically with the licensing objective of prevention of crime and disorder and 
the Licensing Authority will take into account all reasonable measures that 
actively promote this licensing objective.

The Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014

The Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 gives a wide range of 
powers to local authorities and the Police to tackle incidents of crime, disorder 
and nuisance that may be impacting on residents.  The Act introduced public 
spaces protection orders which allows the local authority to designate areas 
where anti-social behaviour such as street drinking will be prohibited.  This Act 
also gives powers to the local authority and Police to close licensed premises 
where nuisance and anti-social behaviour is taking place.  This Act therefore 
clearly supports and actively promotes the licensing objectives contained within 
the 2003 Act.

Immigration Act 2016

Section 36 and Schedule 4 of the Immigration Act 2016 amended the 2003 Act 
and made Home Office Immigration Enforcement a Responsible Authority 
concerned with the licensing objective of prevention of crime and disorder. They 
will exercise their power both in respect of being a consultee on new licence 
applications and having right of entry to licensed premises with a view to seeing 
whether an offence under any of the Immigration Acts is being committed on a 
licensed premises.  This will primarily involve the detection and prevention of 
illegal working on premises that have an alcohol licence or a late night 
refreshment licence. The offence of employing people at licensed premises who 
have no right to work in the UK is also now listed in the Secretary of State’s 
guidance under Section 11.27 which covers criminal activity deemed to be 
particularly serious and where a Licensing Authority should consider revoking a 
premises licence even in the first instance.  This Act clearly supports and actively 
promotes the licensing objective of preventing crime and disorder and the 
Licensing Authority will work with colleagues in the Immigration service and 
South Wales Police to enforce this.

Tudalen71



27

17.5

17.6

17.7

Human Rights Act 1998

The Council has a duty under the European Convention on Human Rights to 
protect both the rights of resident to privacy and family life (Article 8), and the 
rights of a licence holder to operate their business without undue interference 
(Article 1 of the First Protocol). This promotes the need for the Licensing 
Authority to reach a balance between these two principles when making 
decisions.

Equality Act 2010

The Act places a legal obligation on public authorities to have regard to the need 
to eliminate unlawful discrimination, to advance equality of opportunity and to 
foster good relations between persons who shared a protected characteristic 
and those that do not. Protected characteristics include age, disability, race, 
religion and sexual orientation. When making a decision, the Licensing Authority 
will have regard to this due to the goal of ensuring that the night time economy 
is safe and accessible to all. 

Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015

This Act requires Local Authorities in Wales to think about the long-term impact 
of their decisions, to work better with people, communities and each other, and 
to prevent persistent problems, such as poverty, health inequalities and climate 
change. The Act clearly supports and actively promotes the licensing 
objectives. This Act links specifically to the prevention of crime and disorder 
and public nuisance. The Licensing Authority will consider the five ways of 
working contained under this Act namely:

Long Term (how we support the long term well-being of people) – The 
Licensing Authority recognises the need for people to be able to enjoy their 
leisure time and socialise with friends and family in a diverse and vibrant 
environment.  This has to be balanced however against the need to ensure 
that the daytime and night-time economy is safe with low levels of anti-social 
behaviour and crime and disorder.

Integration (impacts upon our wellbeing objectives) – The Licensing Authority 
will ensure that children and young people are protected, particularly in the 
night-time economy.  Premises that offer alcohol for sale and / or provide 
entertainment will be expected to have given proper consideration in operating 
schedules as to how they will protect children on their premises.  Likewise, 
operating schedules will be expected to have given consideration to ensuring 

Tudalen72



28

17.8 that their business does not impact negatively on those that live in the vicinity 
of the premises.
  
Involvement (how people have been involved) – The Licensing Authority has 
undertaken an extensive, far reaching consultation exercise in developing this 
policy.

Collaboration (Working with other services / organisations) – The Licensing 
Authority works with other Local Authorities and partner agencies across 
Wales to develop consistent policies and processes.  Membership of the 
Institute of Licensing and representation on the All Wales Licensing Expert 
Panel enables the Licensing Authority to work with other local authorities, 
partner agencies and trade bodies across Wales to develop consistent policies 
and process in order to achieve its objectives.

Prevention (how problems will be prevented from occurring or getting worse) – 
The Licensing Authority will carefully consider all applications to ensure the 
licensing objectives set-out in the Act are promoted at all times.  Where 
premises are found to not be operating in a safe and responsible manner, the 
Licensing Authority will work with its partners to take remedial action, including 
formal enforcement to swiftly resolve any issues.   
  

The Licensing Authority will also have cognisance to the following legislation 
when it decides to discharge its responsibilities under the 2003 Act. This list is 
not exhaustive:-

 Environmental Protection Act 1990 which deals with noise and nuisance
 Regulatory Reform Order 2005 which deals with fire safety
 Highways Act 1980 which deals with pavement café licences.

17.9 The Licensing Authority will as far as possible seek to avoid duplication with 
other regulatory regimes when dealing with the licensing function. If other 
existing law already places certain statutory responsibilities on an employer or 
operator of premises, it cannot be appropriate or proportionate to impose the 
same or similar duties on the premises licence holder or club. Once the 
discretion of the Licensing Authority is engaged, it is only where additional and 
supplementary measures are appropriate to promote the licensing objectives 
that appropriate and proportionate conditions will be attached to a licence.

17.10 Other Local Authority and Government policies, strategies, responsibilities, and 
guidance documents may also refer to the licensing function, and the Licensing 
Authority may liaise with the relevant authorities or its directorates with regard 

Tudalen73



29

to these. Whilst some of these may not be directly related to the promotion of 
the four licensing objectives, they can indirectly impact upon them.  

17.11 It is the Local Authority’s intention that it will, through its Licensing Committee 
monitor how these matters, set above, impact on the Authority’s licensing and 
other functions, in order that it may seek to co-ordinate and integrate its licensing 
function with other relevant strategies.

17.12 In respect of cultural strategies the Licensing Authority will, for example through 
periodic consultation with local Leisure and Cultural Services officers, consider 
whether the provision of live music and cultural activities and entertainments are 
being deterred by local licensing requirements. Where there is any indication 
that this is the case, the Licensing Authority may consider investigating how the 
situation might be reversed, and may if necessary in the light of such 
investigations consider a revision to the Statement of Licensing Policy.

Relationship with Planning Process

17.13 Applications for premises licences for permanent commercial premises should 
normally be from businesses with planning consent for the property concerned. 
However, applications for licences may be made before any relevant planning 
permission has been sought or granted by the Local Planning Authority.

17.14 It is strongly recommended that prospective licence applicants contact the Local 
Planning Authority in advance of making a licence application in order to check, 
or seek advice on, any planning consents or any conditions relevant to the use 
of the premises. It clearly makes operational sense to ensure that planning and 
licensing are compatible.

17.15 The Licensing Authority wishes to emphasise that the granting by the Licensing 
& Regulatory Committee of any variation of a licence which involves a material 
alteration to a building would not relieve the applicant of the need to apply for 
planning permission or building control consent where appropriate.

17.16 The Council will aim to properly separate planning, building control and licensing 
regimes in order to avoid duplication and inefficiency. The Licensing and 
Planning regimes involve consideration of different (albeit related) matters.

17.17 The Licensing Authority will avoid treating licensing applications as a re-run of 
planning applications, and will not normally:

 cut-across decisions taken by the Local Authority Planning Committee or 
following appeals decisions taken by that Committee; or

Tudalen74



30

 impose licensing conditions where the same or similar conditions have 
been imposed on a planning consent.

17.18 The Licensing Authority is not bound by decisions made by the Planning 
Committee and vice versa.

17.19 Where, as a condition of planning permission, a terminal hour has been set for 
the use of premises for commercial purposes that is different to the licensing 
hours, the licensee must observe the earlier closing time in order to avoid any 
breach of their planning permission - for which they may be liable to prosecution 
under planning law (and vice versa where the licensing hours finish earlier than 
the planning permission).

18.18. Personal alcohol licence

18.1 The Licensing Authority recognises it has very little discretion in the granting of 
a personal licence. In general provided an applicant is aged 18 or over, is entitled 
to work in the UK, has an approved qualification, has not had a personal licence 
forfeited within 5 years of this application and does not have relevant criminal 
convictions or civil penalty received after 6 April 2017 for immigration matters, 
the application must be granted.

18.2 Individuals applying for a personal licence must be entitled to work in the UK.  
Licences must not be issued to people who are illegally present in the UK who 
are not permitted to work, or who are permitted to work but are subject to a 
condition that prohibits them from doing work relating the carrying on of a 
licensable activity. 

18.3 Where an applicant’s immigration permission to live and work in the UK is time-
limited, a personal licence may be issued but will become invalid when the 
immigration permission expires.  In the event that the Home Office cuts short or 
ends a person’s immigration permission, any personal licence issued in respect 
of an application made on or after 6 April 2017 will automatically lapse.

18.4 If an applicant declares that they have been issued with an immigration penalty 
or convicted of an immigration offence or foreign offence comparable to an 
immigration offence, the Licensing Authority is required to notify the Secretary 
of State for the Home Department (through Home Office Immigration 
Enforcement).

Tudalen75



31

18.5 If an applicant has a relevant conviction the Police can oppose the application.  
If an applicant has been issued with an immigration penalty or convicted of a 
relevant immigration offence on or after 6 April 2017, the Home Office may 
object to the application. When an objection is lodged a hearing must be held. 

18.6 Applicants with unspent convictions for relevant offence as set out in the 
Regulations made under the Act are encouraged to first discuss their application 
with the Council’s Licensing Officer and/or the Police.

18.7 At a hearing in respect of an objection to the granting of a personal licence, or 
the revocation of an existing licence, the Council will consider carefully whether 
the grant of, or continuation of, the licence will be in the interests of the crime 
prevention objective. It will consider the seriousness and relevance of any 
conviction(s), the period that has elapsed since the offence(s) was/were 
committed and any mitigating circumstances. The Council will only grant the 
application, if it is satisfied that doing so will promote this objective.

18.8 Prevention of crime is both an objective of the Licensing Act 2003 and a 
responsibility of the Council under the Crime and Disorder Act 1998. A person 
holding a personal licence should be a person who is not only properly qualified 
but a person who will assist in the prevention of crime. Granting a licence to a 
person with a relevant criminal record could undermine rather than promote the 
crime prevention objective.

18.9 From 6 April 2017 the Policing and Crime Act 2017 gives licensing authorities 
the power to revoke or suspend personal licences. This is a discretionary power 
and may be undertaken when a Licensing Authority becomes aware that the 
licence holder has been convicted of a relevant offence or foreign offence or 
been required to pay an immigration penalty on or after 6 April 2017. The 
decision must be made by the Licensing Committee or sub-committee and they 
may revoke the licence or suspend it for a period up to 6 months.

19.19. Premises licence

19.1 A premises licence is granted in respect of any premises, other than a private 
members club or similar type premises, authorised for one or more licensable 
activities, such as the supply of alcohol, late night refreshment or regulated 
entertainment.

19.2 There are some exemptions for the requirement of a licence and they include 
the exhibition of films for educational or promotional reasons, films shown as 
part of an exhibition, amplified live and recorded music to audiences of less than 

Tudalen76



32

500 people between the hours of 8.00 am and 11.00 pm.  Applicants are advised 
to contact the Licensing Authority on other exemptions for further guidance.

19.3 Where alcohol is supplied, a Designated Premises Supervisor, who must be the 
holder of a personal licence, must be nominated to authorise the sale of alcohol 
at the premises.

19.4 Premises licences are issued to individuals over the age of 18 years who carry 
on, or propose to carry on, a business which involves the use of the premises 
for licensed activities. In addition, charities, health service bodies, educational 
institutions and persons of other prescribed descriptions may apply for a 
premises licence.  

19.5 A licence may be issued subject to conditions, which must be complied with at 
all times whilst the premises is being used for licensable activities during the 
times specified in the licence.  Failure to comply with the terms and conditions 
of a licence or if licensable activities are carried out without a premises licence, 
may result in a fine, which is unlimited or a term of imprisonment of up to 6 
months, or both.

19.6 Fees for licences are based on the rateable value of a premises and although 
licences are usually issued for an indefinite period, an annual fee is payable.

19.7 It is an expectation that the premises licence holder and designated premises 
supervisor will be aware of their permitted licensable activity types, permitted 
hours and conditions of licence.  Failure to demonstrate or have a lack of regard 
could result in a lack of confidence in management by a Responsible Authority.

20.

20. Club premises certificate

20.1 A qualifying club, industrial and provident society, friendly society and miners 
welfare institute that satisfies the criteria specified in part 4 of the Licensing Act 
2003 may provide licensable activities for its members and guests of a member 
that are authorisation by a club premises certificate (CPC).   

20.2 A CPC only authorises the use of a premises for the benefit of its members and 
their guests and cannot be used to provide licensable activities to non-members.  
If the premises are to be used to provide licensable activities for non-members 
an additional authorisation will be required.  This may be a premises licence (PL) 
or a temporary event notice (TEN).  

Tudalen77



33

20.3 A premises operating under the authorisation of a CPC enjoy special privileges.  
If a club premises operate under the authorisation of a PL or TEN the privileges 
do not apply.  The privileges include; restricted rights of entry, no need to have 
a qualified person authorising sales of alcohol.  Other considerations would be 
different taxation rules, advice should be sought from HMRC.

20.4 It is an expectation that the CPC holder will be aware of their permitted 
licensable activity types, permitted hours and conditions of licence. Failure to 
demonstrate or have a lack of regard could result in a lack of confidence in 
management by a Responsible Authority

21.21. Temporary Event Notices

21.1 Temporary Event Notices (“TENs”) can be used to allow licensable activities to 
be carried out on a one-off or occasional basis. They are the most appropriate 
type of authorisation for small-scale, one-off events, such as community, school 
and charity fundraising events, at which it is intended to:
• sell or supply alcohol;
• provide regulated entertainment; or
• sell hot food/drink between 11 pm and 5 am.

21.2 Unless sent electronically, a TEN must be sent to the relevant Licensing 
Authority, to the Police and the local authority exercising Environmental Health 
functions at least ten working days before the event.  A premises user may also 
give a limited number of “Late TENs” to the Licensing Authority less than 10 
working days before the event, but certain restrictions apply. 

21.3 The Police or authority exercising Environmental Health functions may intervene 
to restrict the event or prevent the event taking place. They may agree a 
modification of the TEN directly with the TEN user.  When giving a TEN, the 
premises user should consider the promotion of the four licensing objectives.

21.4 There are two types of TEN, a standard TEN and a late TEN.  A standard notice 
is given no later than ten working days before the event to which it relates and 
a late notice is given not before nine and not later than five working days before 
the event.  The period excludes the day the notice is received and the first day 
of the event.  Late TENs are intended to assist premises users who are required 
to submit a notification at short notice for reasons outside their control.

Tudalen78



34

21.5 The Police and authority exercising Environmental Health functions have a 
period of three working days from when they are given the notice to object to it 
on the basis on any of the four licensing objectives.

21.6 If an objection notice is received in relation to a standard TEN the Licensing 
Authority must hold a hearing to consider the objection, unless all parties agree 
that a hearing is unnecessary.

21.7 If an objection notice is received in relation to a late TEN, the notice will not be 
valid and the event will not be permitted to go ahead as there is no scope for a 
hearing or for any existing licence conditions to be applied to the notice.

21.8 A number of limitations are imposed on the use of TENs by the Licensing Act 
2003. Notice givers are advised to contact the Licensing Authority for further 
advice.

21.9 The Licensing Authority recommends that anyone wishing to submit a TEN, 
particularly where this involves the provision of regulated entertainment, gives 
as much notice to the Authority as possible, to ensure that proper advice can be 
given and any anticipated issues resolved in a planned and timely manner.  
Whilst notices can legally be submitted with 10 working days or a late notice in 
5 working days prior to the event taking place, a period of 12 weeks is 
recommended for larger events.

21.10 The Licensing Authority may notify the Council’s Safety Advisory Group (SAG) 
of any TEN involving the provision of regulated entertainment.  This group brings 
together the various enforcement bodies that may be responsible for 
enforcement in respect of an event, along with any applicants and other 
organisers, and allows agreement to be reached regarding the way that the 
event will be organised etc.  

21.11 External areas and outdoor events will normally be restricted to 08.00 – 22.00hrs 
unless the applicant can demonstrate the comprehensive control measures 
have been implemented that ensure the promotion of the licensable objectives, 
in particular the public nuisance objective.

22.22.  Sale and supply of alcohol

22.1 Shops, stores and supermarkets should generally be permitted to sell alcohol 
for consumption off the premises during the normal hours they intend to open 
for shopping purposes.  However, in the case of individual premises, which are 
known to be a focus or cause of disorder and disturbance then, subject to 

Tudalen79



35

representations from the Police and other responsible authorities, a limitation on 
licensing hours may be appropriate.

22.2 Licensed premises authorised under the 2003 Act for the sale and/or supply of 
alcohol must consider their responsibilities with regard to who they supply with 
alcoholic drinks, in particular:

 The sale to persons under the age of 18 years
 The sale to persons who are delivering to persons under the age of 18 

years
 The sale to persons who are drunk

22.3 The Licensing Authority actively encourages that the sale or supply of alcohol 
should terminate at least thirty minutes before the closing time of the premises.  
This provides a suitable ‘wind down’ period and a slower dispersal of customers.

22.4 The council recommend that any licensed premises that is authorised to sell or 
supply alcohol have a policy that sets out how the sale or supply is controlled 
and must include staff training requirements.   Records should be kept of all 
training provided and any incidents e.g. a refusal to sell and reasons.

23.23. Regulated entertainment

23.1

23.2

Schedule 1 to the 2003 act sets out what activities are regarded as the provision 
of regulated entertainment and when they are licensable and those activities, 
which are not and therefore exempt from the regulated entertainment regime.  
(Applicants are strongly advised to review Home Office Section 182 Guidance 
of the Licensing Act 2003 regarding Regulated Entertainment).

The descriptions of entertainment activities licensable under the 2003 Act are:

 A performance of a play;
 An exhibition of a film;
 An indoor sporting event;
 A boxing or wrestling entertainment;
 A performance of live music;
 Any playing of recorded music;
 A performance of dance; and
 Entertainment of a similar description to a performance of live music, any 

playing of recorded music or performance of dance.

Tudalen80



36

To be licensable, on or more of these activities needs to be provided for the 
purpose (at least partly) of entertaining an audience; has to be held on premises 
made available for the purpose of enabling that activity; and must also either:
 Take place in the presence of a public audience, or
 Where that activity takes place in private, be the subject of a charge made 

with a view to profit.

23.3 Public Audience

For the purpose of regulated entertainment, the term “audience” refers to any 
person for whose entertainment (at least in part) any licensable activities are 
provided. An audience member need not be, or want to be, entertained: what 
matters is that an audience is present and that the purpose of the licensable 
activity is (at least in part) intended to entertain any person present.  The 
audience will not include performers, together with any person who contributes 
technical skills in substantial support of a performer (for example, a sound 
engineer or stage technician), during any associated activities. This includes 
setting up before the entertainment, reasonable breaks (including intervals) 
between activities and packing up thereafter. Similarly, security staff and bar 
workers will not form part of the audience while undertaking their duties.

More than one entertainment activity (or single activity, more than one 
performance or event) can be held concurrently, provided that the audience for 
each such performance or event does not exceed the threshold at which such a 
performance or event does not exceed the threshold at which such a 
performance or event becomes licensable. In some circumstances, there will be 
a clear distinction between performances or events; for example, their taking 
place in separate rooms or on separate floors. However, organisers will have to 
ensure that audiences do not grow or migrate, so that the audience exceeds the 
relevant limit for any one performance or event at any time.  If there is the 
possibility of audience migration, it might be easier and more flexible to secure 
an appropriate authorisation.

23.4 Overview of circumstances in which entertainment activities are not 
licensable

There are a number of exemptions that mean that a licence (or other 
authorisation) under the 2003 is not required.  This Policy cannot give examples 
of every eventuality or possible entertainment activity that is not licensable.  
However, the following activities are examples of entertainment which are not 
licensable:

Tudalen81



37

 Activities which involve participation as acts of worship in a religious context;
 Activities in places of public religious worship;
 Education – teaching students to perform music or to dance;
 The demonstration of a product – for example, a guitar – in a music shop;
 The rehearsal of a play or performance of music for a private audience where 

no charge is made with a view to make a profit;
 Morris dancing (or similar);
 Incidental music – the performance of live music or the playing of recorded 

music if it is incidental to some other activity;
 A spontaneous performance of music, singing or dancing;
 Garden fetes – or similar if not being promoted or held for purposes of private 

gain;
 Films for advertisement, information, education or in museums or art 

galleries;
 Television or radio broadcasts – as long as the programme is live and 

simultaneous;
 Vehicles in motion – at a time when the vehicle is not permanently or 

temporarily parked;
 Games played in pubs, youth clubs etc. (e.g. pool, darts and table tennis);
 Stand-up comedy; and 
 Provision of entertainment facilities (e.g. dance floors)

23.5 Deregulatory changes where a licence is not required

As a result of deregulatory changes that have amended the 2003 Act, no licence 
is required for the following activities:

 Plays: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on 
any day, if the audience do not exceed 500.

 Dance: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on 
any day, if the audience do not exceed 500.

 Films: no licence is required for ‘not-for-profit’ film exhibition held in 
community premises between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the 
audience does not exceed 500 and the organiser (a) gets the consent to the 
screening from a person who is responsible for the premises and (b) ensures 
that such screening abides by age classification ratings.

 Indoor sporting events: no licence is required for an event between 08.00 
and 23.00 on any day, if the audience do not exceed 1000.

 Boxing or wrestling entertainment: no licence is required for a contest 
exhibition or display of Greco-Roman wrestling, or freestyle between 08.00 
and 23.00 on any day, if the audience do not exceed 1000.

Tudalen82



38

 Live unamplified music: No licence is required for a performance of 
unamplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, on any 
premises.

 Live amplified music: No licence is required for a performance of amplified 
live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day 
- on premises authorised to sell alcohol for consumption on the premises, 

if the audience do not exceed 500.
- In a workplace that does not have a licence, if the audience do not 

exceed 500.
- In a church hall, village hall, community hall, or other similar community 

premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell alcohol, 
provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the 
organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant premises 
from (i) the local authority concerned, or (ii) the school or (iii) the health 
care provider for the hospital.

 Recorded music: No licence is required for any playing of recorded music 
between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day
- On premises authorised to sell alcohol for consumption on the premises, 

if the audience do not exceed 500.
- In a church hall, village hall, community hall, or other similar community 

premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell alcohol, 
provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the 
organiser gets consent for the performance from a person who is 
responsible for the premises.

- At the non-residential premises of (i) a local authority, or (ii) a school, or 
(iii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience do not exceed 500, and (b) 
the organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant premises 
from: (i) the local authority concerned, or (ii) the school proprietor or (iii) 
the health care provider for the hospital.

 Cross Activity Exemptions: No licence is required between 08.00 and 
23.00 on any day, with no limit on audience size for:
- Any entertainment taking place on the premises of the local authority 

where the entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the local authority;
- Any entertainment taking place on the hospital premises of the health 

care provider where the entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the 
health care provider.

- Any entertainment taking place on the premises of the school were the 
entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the school and

- Any entertainment (excluding films and a boxing or wrestling 
entertainment) taking place at a travelling circus, provided that (a) it 
takes place within a moveable structure that accommodates the 

Tudalen83



39

audience, and (b) that the travelling circus has not been located on the 
same site for more than 28 consecutive days.

If organisers are uncertain as to audience size or if audience migration is likely, 
it might be easier and more flexible to secure an appropriate authorisation.

Examples of where a TEN could still be required include if the activity is the 
playing of recorded music or the exhibition of a film that required an 
authorisation; or if the entertainment is not authorised by an existing licence or 
certificate and its conditions.

Of course, anyone involved in the organisation or provision of entertainment 
activities – whether or not any such activity is licensable under the 2003 Act – 
must comply with any applicable duties that may be imposed by other legislation 
relevant to the event (e.g. in areas such as crime and disorder, fire, health and 
safety, noise, nuisance and planning).  Any such person should take steps to be 
aware of relevant best practice, and may find responsible authorities a useful 
source of expert support and advice.

23.6 Circumstances in which entertainment activities are no longer licensable

Local Authorities, hospital healthcare providers and school proprietors: cross 
entertainment activity exemption
No licence is required for any entertainment provided by or on behalf of a local 
authority, health care provider, or school proprietor to the extent that it takes 
place on defined premises, between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day provided that:

 For entertainment provided by, or on behalf of, a local authority it takes 
place on premises in which that authority has relevant property interest, 
or is in lawful occupation.

 For entertainment provided by, or on behalf of, a health care provider, 
providing it takes place on any premises forming part of a hospital in 
which the provider has a relevant property interest, or is in lawful 
occupation; and

 For entertainment provided by, or on behalf of, a school proprietor it takes 
place on the premises of the school.

The policy cannot give examples of every eventuality where entertainment is not 
licensable under this exemption through being provided “by or on behalf of”.  It 
will depend on the facts in each case.

However, the following are examples of activities that are not usually considered 
to be licensable under this exemption:

Tudalen84



40

23.7

 Any entertainment activity hosted by a local authority on their own 
premises where there is a significant relationship between the local 
authority and the provider of the entertainment (e.g. principal and agent);

 Any entertainment activity organised on a local authority’s behalf on that 
local authority’s premises by a cultural trust in discharge of a local 
authority’s discretionary power to arrange entertainment provision and 
support for the arts, including festivals and celebrations.

 Any entertainment activity organised by a healthcare provider on their 
own hospital premises in partnership with a hospital charity.

 Any entertainment event on school premises organised by the Parent 
Teacher Association (PTA) to benefit the school.

It is for the local authority, health care provider or school proprietor to determine 
whether, and on what basis, they can (or wish) to provide entertainment activity 
under this exemption, including consideration of issues around fundraising, profit 
making, governance or use of public funds.  However a pure hire of premises by 
a third party does not constitute the provision of an entertainment event “on 
behalf of” a local authority, healthcare provider, or school proprietor and nor 
does commercial entertainment which the local authority merely facilitates 
through providing a public space.

All the terms used in this exemption such as “local authority”, “health care”, 
“health care provider”, “hospital”, “school”, “school premises”, “school 
proprietor”, domestic premises” and “relevant property interest” are defined in 
the 2014 Order. 

Local authority, hospital and school premises: third party music 
entertainment

No licence is required for a performance of live music or the playing of recorded 
music on local authority, hospital or school premises, that are not domestic 
premises, between 08.00-23.00 on any day provided that;

 It is performed in front of an audience of no more than 500 people; and
 A person concerned in the organisation or management of the music 

entertainment has obtained the prior written consent of the local 
authority, health care provider or school proprietor (as appropriate) for 
that entertainment to take place. It is for these “trusted providers” to 
determine whether, or not, they wish to make their premises available for 
music entertainment by a 3rd party and on what terms they deem it 
appropriate.

Tudalen85



41

23.8

23.9

Community premises: music entertainment

No licence is required for a performance of live music or the playing of recorded 
music on community premises, between 08.00-23.00 on any day provided that;

 The community premises are not authorised, by a premises licence or 
club premises certificate, to be used for the supply of alcohol for 
consumption on the premises; 

  The music entertainment is in the presence of an audience of no more 
than 500 people and

 A person concerned in the organisation or management of the music 
entertainment has obtained the prior written consent of the management 
committee of the premises, or if there is no management committee, a 
person who has control of the premises in connection with the carrying 
on by that person of a trade, business or other undertaking, or failing that 
a person with a relevant property interest in the premises.

Community premises: exhibition of film

No licence is required for an exhibition of a film on community premises between 
08.00-23.00 on any day providing that 

 The film entertainment is not provided with a view to a profit
 The film entertainment is in the presence of an audience of no more than 

500 people
 The admission of children is subject to such restrictions as are necessary 

to comply with the recommendation issued by BBFC or relevant 
Licensing Authority regarding the admission of children and

 A person concerned in the organisation or management of the exhibition 
of the film has obtained the prior written consent of the management 
committee of the premises, or if there is no management committee, a 
person who has control of the premises in connection with the carrying 
on by that person of a trade, business or other undertaking, or failing that 
a person with a relevant property interest in the premises

Under this exemption, one condition is that the film entertainment is not being 
provided with a view to profit. An entry charge does not of itself make the film 
entertainment licensable; it is whether the organiser intended to make a profit 
(that includes raising money for charity). A charge or contribution that is made 
solely to cover the costs of the film screening is consistent with ‘not being 
provided with a view to profit’. The ‘not with a view to profit’ condition applies 
solely to the activity of exhibiting the film under this exemption. A charge with a 
view to making a profit may legitimately be levied for any other activity or event 

Tudalen86



42

23.10

23.11

that is distinct from film admission, such as the provision of refreshments, film 
talks, or a social event.

This community film exemption is also conditional on those responsible having 
in place operating arrangements that ensure that the age rating for the film is 
implemented by means of a suitable child admission policy. How this is achieved 
is a matter for the organisation or social group exhibiting the film. For example, 
they may operate a membership subscription scheme which pays for entry to all 
titles in a season and is limited to adults. It could be a children’s film club with a 
policy of only showing films that are suitable for all by being rated ‘U’ by the 
BBFC. Alternatively, the organisers could sell tickets to the public and ensure 
that children are only permitted to attend in accordance with any age rating for 
the film – i.e. a door admissions policy linked to proof of age.

Travelling Circuses

Where types of entertainment are present in a performance by a travelling circus 
they will not be licensable provided that certain qualifying conditions are met. 
The qualifying conditions are;

 The entertainment is not an exhibition of a film or a boxing or wrestling 
entertainment;

 The entertainment takes place between 08.00hrs and 23.00hrs on the 
same day;

 The entertainment takes place wholly within a moveable structure and 
the audience present is accommodated wholly inside that moveable 
structure; and

 The travelling circus has not been located on the same site for more than 
28 consecutive days.

Live Music

Live music is licensable -
 Where a performance of live music – whether amplified or unamplified – 

takes place before 08.00 or after 23.00 on any day;
 Where a performance of amplified live music does not take place either 

on relevant licensed premises, or at a workplace that is not licensed other 
than for the provision of late night refreshment;

 Where a performance of  amplified live music takes place at a time when 
the relevant licensed premises are not open for the purposes of being 
used for the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises;

Tudalen87



43

23.12

 Where a performance of amplified live music takes place at relevant 
licensed premises, or workplaces, in the presence of an audience of 
more than 500 people; or 

 Where a Licensing Authority intentionally removes the effect of the 
deregulation provided for by the 2003 Act when imposing a condition on 
a premises licence or club premises certificate as a result of a licence 
review.

In any of the above circumstances, unless the performance of live music is 
appropriately authorised by a premises licence, club premises certificate or TEN, 
allowing it to take place could lead to enforcement action and, where relevant, a 
review of the alcohol licence or certificate.

 A public performance of live unamplified music that takes place between 08.00 
and 23.00 on the same day no longer requires a licence under the 2003 Act in 
any location. An exception to this is where a specific condition related to live 
music is included following a review of the premises licence or club premises 
certificate in respect of relevant licensed premises.

Key terms used in relation to live music

Under the live music provisions, “music” includes vocal or instrumental music or 
any combination of the two. “Live music” is a performance of live music in the 
presence of an audience which it is intended to entertain. While a performance 
of live music can include the playing of some recorded music, ‘live’ music 
requires that the performance does not consist entirely of the playing of recorded 
music without any additional (substantial and continual) creative contribution 
being made.  So, for example, a drum machine or backing track being used to 
accompany a vocalist or a band would be part of the performance of amplified 
live music. The performance of a DJ who is merely playing tracks would not be 
classified as live music, but it might if he or she was performing a set which 
largely consisted of mixing recorded music in a live performance to create new 
sounds. There will inevitably be a degree of judgement as to whether a 
performance is live music (or recorded music) and organisers of events should 
check with their Licensing Authority if this consideration is relevant to whether 
the activity is authorised by a licence or certificate. In the event of a dispute 
about whether a performance is live music or not, it will be for the Licensing 
Authority initially and ultimately, for the courts to decide in the individual 
circumstances of any case.

A “workplace” is as defined in regulation 2(1) of the Workplace (Health, Safety 
and Welfare) Regulations 1992 and is anywhere that is made available to any 

Tudalen88



44

23.13

23.14

23.15

person as a place of work. It is a very wide term which can include outdoor 
spaces, as well as the means of entry and exit.

A “relevant licensed premises” for the purposes of this chapter is one which is 
authorised to sell or supply alcohol for consumption on the premises by a 
premises licence or club premises certificate. Premises cannot benefit from the 
deregulation introduced by the 2012 Act by virtue of holding an authorisation for 
the sale or supply of alcohol under a TEN.

Recorded Music

No licence is required for recorded music where it takes place on premises which 
are authorised by a premises licence or club premises certificate to be used for 
the supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises.  However, recorded 
music remains licensable 

 Where the playing of recorded music takes place before 08.00 or after 
23.00 on any day;

 Where the playing of recorded music takes place at a time when the 
relevant licensed premises are not open for the purposes of being used 
for the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises;

 Where the playing of recorded music takes place at a relevant licensed 
premises in the presence of an audience of more than 500 people; and 

 Where a Licensing Authority intentionally removes the effect of the 
deregulation provided for by the 2003 Act (as amended).

Plays and Dance

No licence is required for a performance of a play or dance to the extent that 
certain qualifying conditions are satisfied.  However a performance of a play or 
dance remains licensable;

 Where the performance takes place before 08.00 or after 23.00 on any 
day; or

 Where the performance takes place in the presence of an audience of 
more than 500 people.

Indoor Sport

No licence is required for an indoor sporting event to the extent that certain 
qualifying conditions are satisfied.  However an indoor sporting event remains 
licensable;
 Where the performance takes place before 08.00 or after 23.00 on any day; 

or

Tudalen89



45

 Where the event takes place in the presence of more than 1000 spectators.

23.16

23.17

Licence Conditions

Live Music or Recorded Music

Any existing licence conditions (or conditions added on a determination of an 
application for a premises licence or club premises certificate which relate to live 
music or recorded music remain in place, but are suspended between the hours 
of 08.00 and 23.00 on the same day where the following conditions are met:
 At the time of the music entertainment, the premises are open for the 

purposes of being used for the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on 
the premises;

 If the music is amplified, it takes place before an audience of no more than 
500 people; and

 The music takes place between 08.00 and 23.00 on the same day.

Whether a licence condition relates to live or recorded music will be a matter of 
fact in each case. In some instances, it will be obvious that a condition relates 
to music and will be suspended, for example “during performances of live music 
all doors and windows must remain closed”. In other instances, it might not be 
so obvious: for example, a condition stating “during performances of regulated 
entertainment all doors and windows must remain closed” would be suspended 
insofar as it relates to music between 08.00 and 23.00 on the same day to an 
audience of up to 500, but the condition would continue to apply if there was 
regulated entertainment after 23.00.

More general licence conditions (e.g. those relating to overall management of 
potential noise nuisance) that are not specifically related to the provision of 
entertainment (e.g. signage asking patrons to leave quietly) will continue to have 
effect) 

These conditions will, in effect, be suspended between 08.00 and 23.00 if a 
performance of live music or the playing of recorded music takes place before 
an audience of 500 people or fewer, but will remain on the face of the licence for 
when these activities may take place under other circumstances.

Where a performance of live music or the playing of recorded music on relevant 
licensed premises is not licensable, it remains possible for anyone to apply for 
a review of a licence or certificate, if there are appropriate grounds to do so.

Tudalen90



46

23.18

23.19

Beer Gardens

Beer gardens are often included as part of a premises licence or club premises 
certificate. Live amplified music that takes place in a beer garden is exempt from 
licensing requirements, provided the beer garden is included in the licence or 
certificate applying to the relevant licensed premises, and the performance takes 
place between 08.00 and 23.00 on the same day before an audience of 500 
people or fewer. 

Where a beer garden does not form part of the relevant licensed premises and 
so is not included in plans attached to a premises licence or club premises 
certificate, it is nevertheless very likely that it will be a workplace.

Paragraph 12B of Schedule 1 to the 2003 Act says that a performance of live 
music in a workplace that does not have a licence (except to provide late night 
refreshment) is not regulated entertainment if it takes place between 08.00 and 
23.00 on the same day in front of an audience of no more than 500 people.  Note 
that the exemption in paragraph 12B does not apply to the playing of recorded 
music.

However, a Licensing Authority may, where justified, impose a licence condition 
that relates to the performance of live music in an unlicensed beer garden being 
served by any associated premises licence or club premises certificate. 
Provided such a condition is lawfully imposed, it takes effect in accordance with 
its terms.

Plays, dance and indoor sport

Where qualifying conditions are satisfied, any current licence condition that 
relates to a performance of a play or dance, or an indoor sporting event for which 
a licence is no longer required will (except in the circumstances described in the 
next paragraph) have no effect.

Where, however, these non-licensable activities take place at the same time as 
other activities for which a licence is required (e.g. the sale or supply of alcohol 
for consumption on the premises), conditions included in a licence may 
nevertheless apply to the non-licensable activities in the circumstances set out 
above.

Dance that is sufficiently sexual in nature continues to be regulated. 
Performances of dance which are “relevant entertainment” within the meaning 

Tudalen91



47

23.20

of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 (“the 1982 Act”) 
are not deregulated, regardless of the size of the audience or the time of day. 
“Relevant entertainment” is defined in the 1982 Act as a live performance or live 
display of nudity that, ignoring financial gain, can be assumed to be provided 
solely or principally for the purpose of sexually stimulating any member of the 
audience.

In almost all cases where a performance of dance is potentially licensable as 
both the provision of relevant entertainment (under the 1982 Act) and regulated 
entertainment (under the 2003 Act), the 1982 Act disapplies the entertainment 
licensing regime in the 2003 Act in favour of its stricter regime for the control of 
sex establishments. However, an authorisation under the 2003 Act rather than 
the 1982 Act will continue to be required where:
 The premises are not licensed as a sex entertainment venue under the 1982 

Act, and
 Relevant entertainment has been provided at those premises on no more 

than 11 occasions in any 12 month period, with none of those occasions 
lasting longer than 24 hours or taking place within a month of any such 
occasion.

Boxing or wrestling entertainment and conditions relating to combined 
fighting sports

An indoor boxing or wrestling entertainment cannot also be an indoor sporting 
event, and any contest, exhibition or display that combines boxing or wrestling 
with one or more martial arts (‘combined fighting sports’) is – whether indoors or 
not – a boxing or wrestling entertainment. 

Where a premises licence or club premises certificate purports to authorise a 
boxing or wrestling entertainment or combined fighting sports as an ‘indoor 
sporting event’, the 2013 Order provides that the authorisation will be treated as 
having authorised those activities as a boxing or wrestling entertainment. Those 
activities will continue to be subject to any relevant conditions attached to that 
authorisation. 

A contest, exhibition or display of Greco-Roman wrestling, or of freestyle 
wrestling, between two participants (regardless of their sex) does not require a 
licence provided that certain qualifying conditions are met. They are that:
 It takes place in the presence of no more than 1,000 spectators;
 It takes place between 08.00 and 23.00 on the same day; and
 It takes place wholly inside a building and the spectators present at that 

entertainment are accommodated wholly inside that building.

Tudalen92



48

23.21 Conditions relating to other non-licensable activities

If appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives, and if there is a link 
to remaining licensable activities, conditions that relate to non-licensable 
activities can be added to or altered on that premises licence or club premises 
certificate at review following problems occurring at the premises. This has been 
a feature of licence conditions since the 2003 Act came into force. A relevant 
example could be the use of conditions relating to large screen broadcasts of 
certain sporting events which, combined with alcohol consumption, could create 
a genuine risk to the promotion of the licensing objectives. It is also not 
uncommon for licence conditions relating to the sale of alcohol to restrict access 
to outside areas, such as unlicensed beer gardens, after a certain time. 

Similarly, while karaoke no longer needs licensing as the provision of 
entertainment facilities (and will generally be classed as a performance of live 
music) it might, for example, be possible on review to limit the use or volume of 
a microphone made available for customers on an ‘open-mic’ night (which 
encompasses more than just live music), if a problem had occurred because of 
customers purchasing alcohol for consumption on the premises becoming 
louder and less aware of causing noise nuisance later in the evening. Another 
example might be a condition restricting access to a dance floor at certain times, 
where the presence of customers in close proximity who had been consuming 
alcohol on the premises had led to serious disorder. In the first instance it is for 
the Licensing Authority to satisfy itself that a particular condition is appropriate 
and lawful in each case.

23.22 Incidental music

The performance of live music or playing of recorded music is not regulated 
entertainment under the 2003 Act if it is ‘incidental’ to another activity “which is 
not itself a description of entertainment falling within paragraph 2” of Schedule 
1 to the 2003 Act. 16.58 The incidental music exemption can apply to an indoor 
sporting event or a performance of a play or dance for which no licence is 
required, as it takes place between 08.00 and 23.00 on the same day and before 
an audience which does not exceed the relevant limit. This is because such an 
activity is no longer a description of entertainment within the meaning of 
paragraph 2 of Schedule 1 to the 2003 Act. This means that, while a 
performance of live music or the playing of recorded music cannot be incidental 
to a boxing or wrestling entertainment, such music may be within the scope of 
the incidental music exemption for an indoor sporting event or performance of a 
play or dance for which no licence is required.

Tudalen93



49

Whether or not music is “incidental” to another activity will depend on the facts 
of each case. In considering whether or not live or recorded music is incidental, 
one relevant factor could be whether, against a background of the other activities 
already taking place, the addition of music will create the potential to undermine 
the promotion of one or more of the four licensing objectives of the 2003 Act. 
Other factors might include some or all of the following:
 Is the music the main, or one of the main, reasons for people attending the 

premises and being charged?
 Is the music advertised as the main attraction?
 Does the volume or the music disrupt or predominate over other activities, 

or could it be described as ‘background’ music.

Conversely, factors which would not normally be relevant in themselves include:
 The number of musicians, e.g. an orchestra providing incidental music at a 

large exhibition;
 Whether musicians are paid;
 Whether the performance is pre-arranged; and
 Whether a charge is made for admission to the premises.

In any disputed case, it will be for the Licensing Authority initially and, ultimately, 
for the courts to consider whether music is “incidental” in the individual 
circumstances of any case.

23.23 Removing licence conditions

On a review of a premises licence or club premises certificate, section 177A(3) 
of the 2003 Act permits a Licensing Authority to lift the suspension and give 
renewed effect to an existing condition relating to music. Similarly, under section 
177A(4), a Licensing Authority may add a condition relating to music as if music 
were regulated entertainment, and as if that premises licence or club premises 
certificate licensed the music. In both instances the condition should include a 
statement that Section 177A does not apply to the condition.

An application for a review in relation to relevant premises can be made by a 
Licensing Authority, any responsible authority or any other person. Applications 
for review must still be relevant to one or more of the licensing objectives and 
meet a number of further requirements.

Tudalen94



50

23.24 Busking

Busking or street performance is the practice of performing in public spaces for 
money.  Performances are not limited to music or singing and can take the form 
of a wide range of activities that people find entertaining.

Busking is generally not licensable under the 2003 Act as
 It often occurs in a place that is not a premises made available (at least in 

part) for the purposes of providing entertainment.
 The entertainment is usually incidental to another activity, such as shopping 

or sightseeing, as there are few circumstances in which anyone would go 
out specifically to watch buskers; and

 Any unamplified live music is not licensable between 08.00 and 23.00.

23.25 Incidental Film

An exhibition of a film within the meaning of paragraph 15 of Schedule 1 to the 
2003 Act is not regulated entertainment if it is ‘incidental’ to another activity 
“which is not itself a description of entertainment falling within paragraph 2” of 
Schedule 1 to the 2003 Act. 

The incidental film exemption can apply to an indoor sporting event or a 
performance of a play or dance for which no licence is required as it takes place 
between 08.00 and 23.00 on the same day before an audience that does not 
exceed the relevant limit. Such activities would no longer be a description of 
entertainment within the meaning of paragraph 2 of Schedule 1 to the 2003 Act

This means that, while any exhibition of moving pictures cannot be incidental to 
a boxing or wrestling entertainment, such film displays may be within the scope 
of the incidental film exemption for an indoor sporting event or performance of a 
play or dance for which no licence is required.

Whether or not an exhibition of moving pictures is “incidental” to another activity 
will depend on the facts of each case. In considering whether or not film is 
incidental, one relevant factor could be whether, against a background of the 
other activities already taking place, the addition of an exhibition of moving 
images will create the potential to undermine the promotion of one or more of 
the four licensing objectives of the 2003 Act. This would mean that if the BBFC 
or the relevant Licensing Authority has given an age rating to a film, video, or 
music video, then to qualify for the “incidental film” licensing exemption, the 
admission of children to the premises will need to be restricted in accordance 

Tudalen95



51

with the appropriate age rating. But that is one aspect of one relevant factor. 
Other factors to consider in assessing whether film is incidental might include 
some or all of the following:
 Is the film the main, or one of the main, reasons for people attending the 

premises and being charged? 
 Is the film advertised as the main attraction?
 Does the screening of the film predominate over other activities, or could it 

be described as ‘background’ images?
 Does the appearance of moving pictures within another entertainment 

activity, for which no licence is required (e.g. a performance of a play or 
dance), undermine the promotion of the licensing objectives?

23.26 Entertainment activity provided as part of childcare

Entertainment activity that is provided as part of childcare will generally not be 
licensable. This includes entertainment activity in a nursery or private home. In 
addition, paragraph 5 of Schedule 1 to the 2003 Act includes a licensing 
exemption for an exhibition of a film where the main purpose is to provide 
education. Education will generally include all forms of pre-school child and day 
care. Furthermore, an exhibition of a film, or the playing of live or recorded 
music, will generally be incidental to the activity of childcare and so the incidental 
music and film exemption in paragraph 7 of Schedule 1 will also apply. This will 
generally be the case for any entertainment activity organised as part of 
wraparound childcare, including breakfast clubs, after school clubs or holiday 
clubs linked to the child’s school or based in the local community.

23.27 Child Performers

Child performance legislation requires that a licence must be obtained from a 
child’s home local authority before a child can take part in certain types of 
performance and activities. A licence may be required whether or not any 
payment is made for the child to perform. The deregulation of entertainment 
licensing does not alter the regulations on when children can take part in 
performances. For further information on the licence for Child Performers 
contact the Education Welfare Officer of the Council.

Tudalen96



52

24.24.   Administration

The Council’s licensing team administer all aspects of the Licensing Act 2003, 
including applications, representations and requests for assistance and advice.  
The council’s website has information on all of the services it offers for licensees, 
applicants, complainants and all other enquiries. Application information and 
forms can be downloaded from our website.  The licensing teams can be 
contacted by any of the following means:-

Licensing Section
Neath Port Talbot Council 
Civic Centre
Port Talbot 
SA13 1PJ

E-mail:        licensing@npt.gov.uk
Tel:             01639 763050 
Web:           www.npt.gov.uk/licensing 

25.25.    Application procedures

25.1 Prospective applicants are strongly recommended to seek pre-application 
advice. Advice on the application process will be given, but at no stage will the 
Licensing Authority complete the application form on behalf of an applicant. The 
Council’s website has information on all of the services it offers for licensees, 
applicants, complainants and all other enquiries.  In addition the website 
contains the public register of all existing licences to view activities, times and 
conditions and is available at www.npt.gov.uk/licensing     

25.2 In accordance with the Provision of Services Regulations 2009, electronic 
application facilities for premises licences are available and may be found on 
GOV.UK or www.npt.gov.uk/licensing. Electronic applications for other 
categories of licence and authorisations are also available on these sites. 
Applications made in electronic form or via GOV.UK will be sent to the 
responsible authorities by the Licensing Authority.  If the applicant submits their 
application in writing, they will remain responsible for copying it to the 
responsible authorities.

25.3 Details of applications are available via the Neath Port Talbot Council website 
at www.npt.gov.uk/licensing 

Tudalen97

mailto:licensing@
http://www.npt.gov.uk/licensing
http://www.npt.gov.uk/licensing
http://www.npt.gov.uk/licensing
http://www.npt.gov.uk/licensing


53

25.4 Applications for all licences and authorisations available under the 2003 Act 
must be made on the relevant form prescribed under secondary regulations.  
Applications will not be progressed until the form has been completed in full and 
received, together with the relevant fee(s) and all other required information, by 
the Licensing Authority and the relevant responsible authorities.

25.5 Where electronic applications are made, the application will be taken to be 
‘given’ when the applicant has submitted a complete application form and 
submitted the fee.

25.6 The contact details of all the Responsible Authorities under the Licensing Act 
2003 are available on the Neath Port Talbot Council website at 
www.npt.gov.uk/licensing 

25.7 The steps for consideration of a licensing application, a licensing variation and 
a club premises certificate are:

a) If no representations are made to an application, the Licensing Authority 
must grant it in full..

b) When an application is made, and relevant representations are made to the 
Authority (and not withdrawn) it must hold a hearing of the Licensing Sub-
Committee (Where an application has been amended or conditions agreed 
to the satisfaction of all parties, final determination of the application must 
be made by the Licensing Sub-Committee; it is not usually necessary for any 
parties to attend the hearing). 

c) The Licensing Sub-Committee will consider the evidence provided by 
applicants and by those making representations, the legislation and 
accompanying Guidance, the Statement of Licensing Policy and any other 
relevant data.

d) The Licensing Sub-Committee will determine the application and will take 
any steps it considers appropriate for the promotion of the licensing 
objectives.

e) Conditions on the licence, additional to those voluntarily offered by the 
applicant, may be considered.  Appropriate conditions will focus on matters 
which are within the control of individual licensees and which also relate to 
the premises or places being used for licensable activities and the impact of 
those activities in the vicinity. If situations arise where the licensing 
objectives are compromised but cannot be dealt with by the use of 
appropriate conditions the Licensing Authority will consider whether it is 

Tudalen98

http://www.npt.gov.uk/licensing


54

appropriate for a licence to be issued or for the premises to continue in 
operation.

25.8 Conditions on a licence:
 Must be appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives;
 Must be precise and enforceable;
 Must be unambiguous and clear in what they intend to achieve;
 Should not duplicate other statutory requirements or other duties or 

responsibilities placed on the employer by other legislation;
 Must be tailored to the individual type, location and characteristics of the 

premises and events concerned;
 Should not be standardised and may be unlawful when it cannot be 

demonstrated that they are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing 
objectives in an individual case;

 Should not replicate offences set out in the 2003 Act or other legislation;
 Should be proportionate, justifiable and capable of being met;
 Cannot seek to manage the behaviour of customers once they are beyond 

the direct management of the licence holder and their staff, but may impact 
on the behaviour of customers in the immediate vicinity of the premises or 
as they enter or leave; and 

 Should be written in a prescriptive format.

25.9 Individuals applying for a personal licence must be entitled to work in the UK.  
The Immigration Act 2016 amended the 2003 Act with effect from 6 April 2017 
so that an application made on or after that date by someone who is not entitled 
to work in the UK must be rejected.  Licences must not be issued to people who 
are illegally present in the UK, who are not permitted to work, or who are 
permitted to work but are subject  to a condition that prohibits them from doing 
work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity. In order to discharge this 
duty, the Authority must be satisfied that an applicant has the right to work in the 
UK, to demonstrate that the applicant has permission to be in the UK and that 
they are permitted to undertake work in a licensable activity.  This also applies 
to individuals who apply for premises licences.  The purpose of this is to prevent 
illegal working in the UK.

25.10 A person is also disqualified from holding a licence if they are subject to a 
condition on their permission to be in the UK preventing them from holding a 
licence, for example if they are subject to an immigration restriction that does 
not permit them to work.

Tudalen99



55

26.26.    Operating schedule

26.1 All new and variation applications should incorporate an ‘operating schedule’ 
which outlines how the premises will be operated. This should include details of 
how the applicant will promote the four licensing objectives and reduce any 
potential negative impact from the operation of their business on the local 
community, depending on the type of premises, location and profile of 
customers. The proposals contained in the operating schedule will form the main 
body of the conditions to be applied to the licence, together with any applicable 
mandatory conditions, any conditions agreed with responsible authorities during 
the application process and any conditions imposed by a Licensing Sub-
Committee where representations have been made.

26.2 In completing an operating schedule, applicants are expected to have regard to 
this statement of licensing policy and to demonstrate suitable knowledge of their 
local area when describing the steps that they propose to take in order to 
promote the Licensing Objectives.

26.3 The Licensing Authority will provide general advice on the drafting of operating 
schedules and applicants are strongly recommended to discuss their operating 
schedules with the Licensing Authority and other Responsible Authorities prior 
to submitting them.

26.4 The complexity and detail required in the operating schedule will depend upon 
the nature and use of the premises concerned. For premises such as a public 
house where regulated entertainment is not provided, only a relatively simple 
document may be required. However for an operating schedule accompanying 
an application for a major  entertainment venue or event, it will be expected that 
issues such as public safety and  the prevention of crime and disorder will be 
addressed in detail

26.5 The operating schedule must be set out on the prescribed form and include a 
statement of the following:- 

 Full details of the licensable activities to be carried on at and the 
intended use of the premises;

 The times during which the licensable activities will take place;
 Any other times when the premises are to be open to the public;
 Where the licence is only required for a limited period, that period;

Tudalen100



56

 Where the licensable activities include the supply of alcohol, the name 
and address of the individual to be specified as the designated premises 
supervisor;

 Whether alcohol will be supplied for consumption on or off the premises 
or both;

 The steps which the applicant proposes to promote the Licensing 
Objectives.

26.6 For some premises, it is possible that no measures will be appropriate to 
promote one or more of the Licensing Objectives, for example, because they are 
adequately covered by other existing legislation. It is however important that all 
operating schedules should be:

 Precise and enforceable
 Be unambiguous 
 Not to duplicate other statutory provisions
 Be clear in what they intend to achieve, and
 Be appropriate, proportionate and justifiable. 

27.27.   Conditions

27.1 The 2003 Act, as amended, imposes a number of mandatory conditions on 
licences.  The council has the power to impose additional conditions if they 
consider that they are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives.

27.2 Conditions attached to licences or certificates will be tailored to the individual 
style and characteristics of the particular premises, activities and/or events 
provided at the premises.  The policy does not provide for any standard, general 
or blanket conditions, and will not impose disproportionate and burdensome 
requirements.

27.3 Applicants may offer conditions in the operating schedule as part of their 
application; the Council may remove or reword any of these conditions if they 
are considered to be unclear, ambiguous or unenforceable, with the agreement 
of the applicant.  This will ensure that all parties fully understand their 
responsibilities to promote the licensing objectives.  

27.4 The Council recognise that they can only impose conditions were relevant 
representations are received and it is considered appropriate for the promotion 

Tudalen101



57

of the licensing objectives.  Where a responsible authority gives evidence that it 
is appropriate to impose specific conditions, the request will be considered by 
the council who may suggest the wording of the condition to ensure that it is 
clear, relevant and enforceable.

27.5 When attaching conditions, the Council will also be aware of the need to avoid 
measures that might deter live music, dancing or theatre by imposing costs of a 
substantial nature, that are not in proportion to the risks.

28.28.    Applications where representations are received

28.1 When an application is made for the grant, variation or review of a premises 
licence or club premises certificate, representations about the application can be 
made by responsible authorities or other persons. However the Licensing 
Authority will usually give greater weight to representations that are made by 
people who can demonstrate that they would be directly affected by the carrying 
on of licensable activities at the premises concerned.

28.2 Representations must be made to the Licensing Authority within the statutory 
period of 28 days beginning on the day after the relevant application is received 
by the Licensing Authority. Representations must be made in writing.

28.3 Representations can be made either in support of an application or to express 
objections to an application being granted. However the Licensing Authority can 
only accept “relevant representations.” A representation is “relevant” if it relates 
to the likely effect of the grant of the licence on the promotion of at least one of 
the Licensing Objectives

28.4 An example of a representation that would not be relevant would be a 
representation from a local business person about the commercial damage that 
competition from a new licensed premises would do to their own business. On 
the other hand, a representation by a business person that nuisance caused by 
new premises would deter customers from entering the local area, and the steps 
proposed by the applicant to prevent that nuisance were inadequate, would be 
a relevant representation.

28.5 In other words, representations should relate to the impact of licensable activities 
carried on from premises on the Licensing Objectives (See Section 9

28.6 For representations in relation to variations to be relevant, they should be 
confined to the subject matter of the variation.

Tudalen102



58

28.7 Whilst the Licensing Authority expects representations to be evidence based, 
there is no requirement for a Responsible Authority or other person to produce 
a recorded history of problems at premises to support their representations, and 
it is recognised that in fact this would not be possible for new premises.

28.8 Responsible authorities are a group of public bodies that must be fully notified 
of applications and that are entitled to make representations to the Licensing 
Authority in relation to the application for the grant, variation or review of a 
premises licence or club premises certificate. A full list of contact details for the 
responsible authorities is provided on the Neath Port Talbot Council’s website at 
www.npt.gov.uk/licensing.

28.9 Whilst all responsible authorities may make representations regarding 
applications for licences and club premises certificates and full variation 
applications, it is the responsibility of each Responsible Authority to determine 
when they have appropriate grounds to do so.

28.10 The Licensing Authority recognises that every Responsible Authority can make 
representations relating to any of the four Licensing Objectives. However the 
Licensing Authority would normally expect representations about the promotion 
of individual Licensing Objectives to come from the most relevant Responsible 
Authority with expertise in that particular area. For example the Licensing 
Authority would expect representations about the prevention of crime and 
disorder to come primarily from the Police and representations about the 
prevention of public nuisance to come primarily from Environmental Health.

28.11 The Licensing Authority acknowledges that the Police should be its main source 
or advice on matters relating to the promotion of the crime and disorder licensing 
objective, but also may be able to make relevant representations with regards to 
the other Licensing Objectives if they have evidence to support such 
representations.

28.12 The Licensing Authority will accept all reasonable and proportionate 
representations made by the Police unless it has evidence that do so would not 
be appropriate for the promotion of the Licensing Objectives. However the 
Licensing Authority will still expect any Police representations to be evidence 
based and able to withstand scrutiny at a hearing.

28.13 The Licensing Authority recognises the Western Bay Safeguarding Children 
Board as being the body that is competent to advise it on the licensing objective 
of the protection of children from harm.

Tudalen103

http://www.npt.gov.uk/licensing


59

28.14 The Licensing Authority acknowledges that, although public health is not a 
licensing objective, health bodies may hold information which other responsible 
authorities do not, but which would assist the Licensing Authority in exercising 
its functions.

28.15 For example, drunkenness can lead to accidents and injuries from violence, 
resulting in attendances at emergency departments and the use of ambulance 
services. Some of these incidents will be reported to the Police, but many will 
not. Such information might be relevant to the public safety objective and in 
some cases the crime and disorder objective.

28.16 As a result of the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011, the 
Licensing Authority is also now a Responsible Authority and can therefore make 
representations if it deems it appropriate to do so.

28.17 However the Licensing Authority will not normally act as a Responsible Authority 
on behalf of other parties (for example, local residents, local councillors or 
community groups) although there are occasions where the authority may 
decide to do so.

28.18 Such parties can make relevant representations to the Licensing Authority in 
their own right, and the Licensing Authority expects them to make 
representations themselves where they are reasonably able to do so.

28.19 The Licensing Authority also expects that other responsible authorities should 
intervene where the basis for the intervention falls within the remit of that other 
Responsible Authority. Each Responsible Authority has equal standing under 
the 2003 Act and may act independently without waiting for representations from 
any other Responsible Authority.

28.20 In cases where a Licensing Authority is also acting as Responsible Authority in 
relation to the same process, the Licensing Authority will seek to achieve a 
separation of responsibilities within the authority to ensure procedural fairness 
and eliminate conflicts of interest. This will be achieved by allocating the role of 
responsibility authority to the Senior Licensing Officer to ensure a proper 
separation of responsibilities.

28.21 Relevant representations about applications can also be made by any other 
person, regardless of their geographical position in relation to the relevant 
premises. However the Licensing Authority will usually give greater weight to 
representations that are made by people who can demonstrate that they would 
be directly affected by the carrying on of licensable activities at the premises 
concerned.

Tudalen104



60

28.22 The Licensing Authority will also reject as invalid, any representations from other 
persons that are deemed to be frivolous or vexatious. A representation might be 
considered to be vexatious if it appears to be intended to cause aggravation or 
annoyance, whether to a competitor or other person, without reasonable cause. 
Frivolous representations are essentially categorised by a lack of seriousness. 
Frivolous representations would concern issues which, at most, are minor and 
in relation to which no remedial steps would be warranted or proportionate.

28.23 Decisions as to the validity of representations will normally be made by officers 
of the Licensing Authority. In borderline cases, the benefit of the doubt about any 
aspect of a representation will be given to the person making that representation. 
The subsequent hearing would then provide an opportunity for the person or 
body making the representation to amplify and clarify it.

28.24 The Licensing Authority will accept petitions, but there are some important 
factors to consider before organising a petition:
 We ask that the organiser of the petition identify himself or herself as a 

central point of contact. We may need to make contact in order to verify 
certain matters if we are unable to do this it could invalidate the petition.

 Each page of the petition should contain information as to the purpose of the 
petition so that all persons know what they are signing.

 Full names and addresses must be supplied
 All signatories must be made aware that a copy of the petition will be 

supplied to the applicant and a copy will be contained within the committee 
papers, so their personal details will become public knowledge.

We will not write to each signatory separately, but instead assume that the 
organiser will advise each signatory of the hearing date and the final outcome 
of the application.  It is expected that the organiser will represent the signatories 
at the hearing and to speak for them. When making a decision, the Licensing 
Authority will give appropriate weight to a petition. Those wishing to make 
representations should appreciate that the quality of the representations we 
receive is an important consideration when making a decision.

28.25 Any person who is aggrieved by a rejection of their representations on either of 
these grounds may lodge a complaint through the authority’s corporate 
complaints procedure. A person may also challenge such a decision by way of 
judicial review.

Tudalen105



61

28.26 Where a notice of a hearing is given to an applicant, the Licensing Authority is 
required to provide the applicant with copies of the relevant representations that 
have been made.

28.27 The Licensing Authority will normally provide copies of the relevant 
representations to the applicant in full and without redaction. However in 
exceptional circumstances, where a person satisfies the Licensing Authority that 
they have genuine reasons to fear intimidation or violence if their personal 
details, such as name and address, are divulged to the applicant, the copies of 
the representations may be redacted accordingly.

28.28 In such circumstances the Licensing Authority will still provide some details to 
the applicant (such as street name or general location within a street), so that 
the applicant can fully prepare their response to any particular representation.

28.29 Alternatively persons may wish to contact the relevant Responsible Authority or 
their local Councillor with details of how they consider that the Licensing 
Objectives are being undermined so that the Responsible Authority can make 
representations on their behalf if appropriate and justified.

28.30 Further guidance on making representations is provided on the Licensing 
Authority’s website.

29.29.    Exercise and delegation of functions

29.1 The 2003 Act requires local authorities to act as the Licensing Authority and to 
set up a Licensing Committee to be responsible for all matters relating to the 
2003 Act.  The Licensing Committee further delegate to the Licensing Sub-
Committee, or by one or more officers acting under delegated authority.

29.2 It is considered that many of the functions will be largely administrative in nature 
with no perceived areas of contention. In the interests of efficiency and cost 
effectiveness these will, for the most part, be carried out by officers. The 
Licensing Authority, when acting as a Responsible Authority commenting on 
Licence applications, will have separate roles for officers.  The Senior Licensing 
Officer will act as the Responsible Authority, whilst the remaining team will 
administer the application.

29.3 The Schedule below sets out the presumed delegation of functions and 
decisions.  Notwithstanding this presumption of delegation, the Council reserves 
the right to refer any matter to the Licensing Committee or sub-committee.

Tudalen106



62

29.4 Schedule of delegation of licensing functions and decisions

Matter to be dealt 
with

Licensing 
Committee

Licensing 
Sub-

Committee
Officers

Application for 
personal licence

If a Police 
objection

If no objection 
made

Application for a 
personal licence with 
unspent convictions

All cases

Application for 
premises licence/club 
premises certificate

If a relevant 
representation 
made and not 
withdrawn or 

where an 
agreement 
has been 
reached 
following 

mediation.

If no relevant 
representation 

made 

Application for 
provisional statement

If a relevant 
representation 
made and not 
withdrawn or 

where an 
agreement 
has been 
reached 
following 
mediation

If no relevant 
representation 

made

Application to vary 
premises licence/club 
premises certificate

If a relevant 
representation 
made and not 
withdrawn or 

where an 
agreement 
has been 
reached 
following 
mediation

If no relevant 
representation 

made

Tudalen107



63

Application to vary 
designated premises 

supervisor

If a Police 
objection All other cases

Application for a 
minor variation All cases

Application to vary a 
licence on a 

community premises 
to include alternative 

licence condition

If Police 
objection All other cases

Request to be 
removed as 

designated premises 
supervisor

All cases

Application for 
transfer of premises 

licence

If a Police 
objection All other cases

Application for interim 
authorities

If a Police 
objection All other cases

Application to review 
premises licence/club 
premises certificate

All cases

Decision on whether 
a complaint is 

irrelevant frivolous 
vexatious etc.

All cases

Determination of a 
Police or 

Environmental Health 
objection to a 

temporary event 
notice

In all cases if 
not withdrawn.

Suspension of 
licences following 
non-payment of 

annual fees

All Cases

Tudalen108



64

30.30.   Reviews of licences

30.1 The Council can only review a licence where it is alleged by a “responsible 
authority", or other person that the licensing objectives are being breached. 
Responsible authorities will aim to give licence holders early warning of any 
concerns identified at the premises. Only responsible authorities or other 
persons (e.g. local residents, local organisations and councillors) can apply for 
the review of a licence; and determine its outcome at a hearing where an 
evidential basis for allegations made will be submitted. It views particularly 
seriously applications for the review of any premises licence which involves the:

 use of licensed premises for the sale and distribution of  controlled drugs 
and the laundering of the proceeds of drugs crimes;

 use of licensed premises for the sale and distribution of illegal firearms;
 evasion of copyright in respect of pirated films and music;
 underage purchase and consumption of alcohol;
 use of licensed premises for prostitution or the sale of unlawful 

pornography;
 use of licensed premises for unlawful gaming;
 use of licensed premises as a base for organised criminal activity;
 use of licensed premises for the organisation of racist, homophobic or 

sexual abuse or attacks;
 use of licensed premises for the sale of smuggled tobacco or goods;
 use of licensed premises for the storage or sale of stolen goods;
 the Police being frequently called to attend to incidents of disorder;
 prolonged and/or repeated instances of public nuisance;
 serious risk to public safety have been identified and the management is 

unable or unwilling to correct;
 Serious risk to children.

30.2 The Licensing Sub-Committee will consider all evidence provided at the hearing 
and apply appropriate weight to that evidence when making their decision.  

30.3 The Licensing Sub-Committee will consider all of the sanctions available to it 
provided for in the Act and guidance, including taking no action if appropriate.  
In cases where a licensing objective is seriously undermined, that revocation of 
the licence, even in the first instance, will be considered where appropriate to 
ensure the licensing objectives are promoted.

Tudalen109



65

30.4 In cases where a licensing objective is seriously undermined, the revocation of 
the licence, even in the first instance, will be seriously considered where 
appropriate to ensure the licensing objectives are promoted.

31.31.   Cumulative Impact Assessment

31.1 Under the 2003 Act, Licensing Authorities have the power to introduce a 
cumulative impact policy where there is evidence showing that a significant 
number of licensed premises concentrated in one area has led to an increase in; 
Crime and disorder, Public nuisance or to both. Where adopted, a Cumulative 
Impact Policy creates a rebuttable presumption that applications for new 
premises licences, or club premises certificates or variations, that are likely to 
add to the existing cumulative impact will normally be refused

31.2 The Statutory Guidance sets out the steps to be followed when considering 
whether to adopt a special policy within the Policy these include -
a) Identify concern about crime and disorder; public safety; public nuisance; or 

protection of children from harm
b) Consider whether there is good evidence that crime and disorder or nuisance 

are occurring, or whether there are activities which pose a threat to public 
safety or the protection of children from harm.

c) If such problems are occurring, identify whether these problems are being 
caused by the customers of licensed premises, or that the risk of cumulative 
impact is imminent.

d) Identify the boundaries of the area where problems are occurring
e) Consult with those specified by Section 5(3) of the Licensing Act and subject 

to the outcome of that consultation, include and publish details of any special 
policy in the licensing policy statement.

31.3 In April 2018, Section 141 of the Policing and Crime Act 2018 introduced a new 
Section 5A to the Licensing Act 2003 relating to Cumulative Impact Assessments 
(CIA).  Before an Impact assessment area can be introduced the Authority must 
give reasons why they are considering a CIA, what part(s) they are considering 
to be a CIA and whether it considers the CIA applies to all licences or those of a 
particular kind.  As such, the Authority must conduct a thorough assessment and 
if a CIA is introduced it must be reviewed at least every 3 years.  

31.4 The Licensing Authority acknowledges there are a number of existing measures 
available that are relevant to tackling unlawful and anti-social behaviour 
associated with licensed premises, including:

Tudalen110



66

 Planning controls
 Positive measures to create a safe and clean environment in partnership with 

local businesses, transport operators and other departments of the local 
authority

 The provision of CCTV surveillance, taxi ranks, provision of public 
conveniences open late at night, street cleaning and litter patrols

 Powers of local authorities to designate parts of the local authority area as 
places where alcohol may not be consumed publicly.

 The confiscation of alcohol from adults and children in designated areas
 Police enforcement of the general law concerning disorder and antisocial 

behaviour, including the issue of fixed penalty notices
 Prosecution for the offence of selling alcohol to a person who is drunk (or 

allowing such a sale) – Police powers to close down instantly for up to 24 
hours (extendable to 48 hours) any licensed premises or temporary event on 
grounds of disorder, the likelihood of disorder, or noise emanating from the 
premises causing a disturbance.

 Robust conditions on the licence promoting the four licensing objectives.
 The power of the Police, or other responsible authorities or any person to 

seek a review of the licence or certificate.
 Regular monthly Responsible Authority meetings, for interested parties to 

comment on, and providing an action plan, when dealing with problematic 
premises and areas.

32.32.    Early morning restriction orders (“EMRO”)

32.1 An EMRO restricts the time within which alcohol can be supplied. Alcohol supply 
can be prohibited between 0000-0600 and applies to Premises Licences, Club 
Premises Certificates and Temporary Event Notices. There are no exceptions 
save that which authorise supply of alcohol to residents with overnight 
accommodation via minibars and room service;

32.2 The Licensing Authority has not and is not currently considering the introduction 
of an EMRO. 

33.33. Hearings

33.1 Applications for licences and certificates will be determined following 
consultation with relevant responsible authorities.  Where no representations are 
received, they will be issued administratively by the Licensing Team, however, 
contentious applications must be referred to the Council’s Licensing Sub-
Committee for determination.

Tudalen111



67

33.2 The period of notice of a hearing that must be given to all relevant parties, and 
the information which may be disclosed, varies depending on the type of 
application, subject to regulations. A Licensing Sub-Committee of three Elected 
Members will determine a contentious application and will either grant a licence, 
grant a licence with amendments or refuse an application. Any party can appeal 
against the Council’s decision to a Magistrates’ Court.

33.3 At any time during the period of a licence, any responsible authority or other 
person can ask for the review of a licence or certificate. All review applications 
will be determined by the Licensing Sub-Committee. 

34.34.     Appeals

34.1 Entitlements to appeal for parties aggrieved by decisions of the Council are set 
out in Schedule 5 of the Act. Other than in the case of personal licences, an 
appeal has to be made to the local Magistrates’ Court. In the case of personal 
licences, the appeal must be made to the Magistrates’ Court for the area in which 
the Licensing Authority which has considered the application (or any part of it) 
is situated.

34.2 An appeal has to be instigated by giving notice of the appeal by the appellant to 
The Clerk to the Justices, 
Swansea Magistrates' Court
Grove Place
Swansea
SA1 5DB

Within a period of 21 days beginning with the day on which the appellant was 
notified by the Council of the decision appealed against.

34.3 On determining an appeal, the Court may:

 dismiss the appeal
 substitute any other decision which could have been made by the 

Council or
 remit the case to the Council to dispose of it in accordance with the 

direction of the Court.

The Court may make such order as to costs as it thinks fit.

34.4 In anticipation of such appeals, the Council will give comprehensive reasons for 
its decisions. On making findings of fact in its reasons, the Council will ensure 

Tudalen112



68

that they address the standard of proof and the burden of proof that they have 
adopted. The Council will also address the extent to which decisions has been 
made with regard to its statement of licensing policy and the Guidance issued 
by the Secretary of State under section 182 Implementing the determination of 
the Magistrates’ Courts

34.5 Where appropriate, the Licensing Authority will provide applicants and objectors 
etc. with information concerning their rights of appeal.

35.35. Implementing the determination of the Magistrates’ Court

35.1 As soon as the determination of the Magistrates’ Courts has been promulgated, 
the Council will not delay its implementation and necessary action will be taken 
forthwith unless ordered by a higher court to suspend such action [for example, 
as a result of an on-going Judicial Review]. The Act provides for no further 
appeal against the determination of the Magistrates’ Courts.

36.36.    Enforcement

36.1 The Licensing Authority has established joint enforcement protocols with the 
Police and other enforcing authorities. These protocols will provide for the 
targeting of agreed problem and high-risk premises, but with a lighter touch 
being applied to low-risk premises, which are shown to be well run.

36.2 The Licensing Authority intends that enforcement visits will be made to licensed 
premises as appropriate, to ensure that any conditions imposed as part of the 
licence are being complied with. These visits may be either proactive planned 
inspections based on the risk presented by the premises, history of non-
compliance etc., or reactive visits as a result of complaints.

36.3 In general, action will only be taken in accordance with agreed enforcement 
principles and in line with the Council’s own enforcement policy.  To this end the 
key principles of consistency, transparency and proportionality will be 
maintained. 

Tudalen113



69

37.37. Fees Generally

37.1 All fees are currently set by statute and the council is obliged to charge the fees 
as detailed in the Fees Regulations.

37.2 The Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2010 have provisions to give 
councils to set their fees locally, however at this time the relevant sections have 
not been commenced. When commenced the councils will calculate fees to 
recover the costs of the service and then consult on their implementation before 
asking the Licensing Committee to approve any change.

38.38. Annual Fees for Premises Licences and Club Premises 
Certificates

38.1 The 2003 Act and regulations made under the 2003 Act set out requirements for 
annual fees and require that the fee is paid on the due date which is every year 
on the anniversary of the original grant of the licence.

39.39. Licence suspension for non-payment of annual fee

39.1 Amendments made to the 2003 Act by the Police Reform and Social 
Responsibility Act 2010 give councils the power to suspend premises licences 
and club premises certificates where the annual fee required by regulations is 
not paid.

39.2 The Council will suspend any licence or certificate where the required fee is not 
paid by the ‘due date’, which is annually on the anniversary of the date that the 
licence was first granted.  The council will follow the below procedure:-

39.3 Upon notification/discovery that an annual fee is not paid, the council will give 
notice to the licence/certificate holder, in writing, 

 that the licence/certificate will be suspended 14 days from the date of the 
notice.  

 It will also state that the suspension will not become effective if the fee is 
paid prior to the suspension date.  

 If an administration error is claimed, the suspension date may be 21 days 
from the due date; or the date of suspension on the 14 day notice, 
whichever is later.   

Tudalen114



70

 A copy of the notice will also be served on the designated premises 
supervisor/premises manager if they are not the premises licence holder.

39.4 If the fee is not paid by the date specified on the notice the licence/certificate will 
be deemed suspended.  The licence/certificate holder and DPS/Manager will be 
immediately notified of the suspension becoming effective, and informed that the 
premises may no longer offer any licensable activities until such time as the fee 
is paid and the suspension lifted.  When the full payment is made the council will 
immediately lift the suspension, and confirm this in writing.

39.5 Where a licence/certificate is suspended and licensable activities are provided 
the council will consider prosecuting the provider for offences under section 136 
of the 2003 Act.

40.40.     Late night levies

40.1 A Late Night Levy (LNL) is an optional power, introduced by the Police Reform 
and Social Responsibility Act 2010 which allows Licensing Authorities to raise a 
contribution towards the costs of policing the night time economy (NTE) by 
charging a levy to holders of Premises Licences and Club Premises Certificates 
authorised to sell alcohol. A LNL must apply across the whole borough and also 
applies to all on- and off-licences. TENs are not included.

40.2 The Licensing Authority has not and is currently not considering the introduction 
of a late night levy.

41. Further Information

Further information about the Licensing Act 2003 and the Council’s licensing 
policy can be obtained from:

The Licensing Section
Neath Port Talbot Council 
Civic Centre
Port Talbot 
SA13 1PJ
Tel: 01639 763050
E-mail : licensing@npt.gov.uk     
Website: www.npt.gov.uk 

Tudalen115

mailto:licensing@npt.gov.uk
http://www.npt.gov.uk/


71

42. Glossary – Being developed

Tudalen116


	Agenda
	3 Derbyn cofnodion cyfarfod blaenorol y cyngor a'u cadarnhau os ystyrir bod hyn yn addas:Y Flwyddyn Ddinesig 2020/2021
	Cofnodion
	Minutes Public Pack, 14/02/2020 Council
	Cofnodion

	Minutes Public Pack, 26/02/2020 Council
	Cofnodion

	Minutes Public Pack, 06/03/2020 Council
	Cofnodion
	6 Appendix 1 and 2

	Minutes Public Pack, 28/05/2020 Council
	Cofnodion

	Minutes Public Pack, 02/07/2020 Council
	Cofnodion


	4 Deddf Trwyddedu 2003 - Adolygu'r Polisi Trwyddedu
	Appendix 1 - Draft Licensing Act Policy 2021


